
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Kate Spencer, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207063 

Email: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk  

(i) 

 

 

Friday, 07 February 2014 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

A meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Board will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 19 February 2014 
 

commencing at 5.30 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 
 

Members of the Board 

Councillor Thomas (J) (Chairman) 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Darling (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Pentney 

Councillor Stockman 

 

Councillor Hytche 

Councillor Davies 

Councillor McPhail 

Councillor Kingscote 

 

Co-opted Members of the Board 

Penny Burnside, Diocese of Exeter 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 2) 
 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the 

Board held on 29 January 2014. 
 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect 

of items on this agenda 
 

For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form 
should be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the 
meeting. 

 
b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in 

respect of items on this agenda 
 

For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on 
any potential interests they may have, they should contact 
Governance Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 

 
4.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
5.   Allocations Policy - Review and potential changes (Pages 3 - 48) 
 To consider the draft report to Council on the review of the 

Allocations Policy and to make any comments and/or 
recommendations. 
 

6.   Strategic Agreement between Torbay and Southern Devon 
Health and Care NHS Trust and Torbay Council 

(Pages 49 - 128) 

 To consider the proposed Annual Strategic Agreement between the 
Council and the Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS 
Trust and to make any comments and/or recommendations to the 
Council. 
 

7.   Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/2014 (Quarter 3) (To Follow) 
 To consider the projected outturn of the Council’s revenue budget 



 

for 2013/2014 as at the end of Quarter 3 and to make any 
comments, conclusions and/or recommendations to the Mayor and 
Council. 
 

8.   Capital Plan Budget Monitoring 2013/2014 (Quarter 3) (Pages 129 - 145) 
 To consider the projected position of the Council’s capital plan 

budget as at the end of Quarter 3 of 2013/2014 and to make any 
comments, conclusions and/or recommendations to the Mayor and 
Council. 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
 

29 January 2014 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Councillor Thomas (J) (Chairman) 

 

Councillors Bent, Darling (Vice-Chair), Davies, Hytche, Kingscote, McPhail,  
Pentney and Stockman 

 
(Also in attendance: The Mayor and Councillors Cowell, Excell, James, Pountney and 

Thomas (D)) 
 

 
39. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 27 November 2013 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

40. Review of Priorities and Resources 2014/2015  
 
The Board considered the “Conclusions and Recommendations” from the Review 
of Priorities and Resources which had been undertaken during January 2014. 
 

Resolved:  that the Conclusions and Recommendations be adopted by the 
Board and that the report from the Review of Priorities and Resources be 
completed and published. 

 
41. Corporate Capital Strategy  

 
The Board considered the draft Corporate Capital Strategy and asked a range of 
questions of the Mayor and officers. 
 

Resolved:  that it be recommended to the Council that the Corporate 
Capital Strategy be amended to highlight the opportunities available for 
releasing Council-owned land for affordable housing (to be provided by 
registered social landlands). 

 
42. Corporate Asset Management Plan  

 
The Board considered and noted the draft Corporate Asset Management Plan. 
 

43. Review of Reserves 2014/2015  
 
The Board considered and noted the Review of Reserves. 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Overview and Scrutiny Board   Wednesday, 29 January 2014 
 

 
44. Medium Term Resource Plan  

 
The Board considered the Medium Term Resources Plan and asked a number of 
questions of the Mayor and officers. 
 

Resolved:  that the Medium Term Resources Plan be updated to include 
the future loss of the crisis fund as announced by the Government. 

 
45. Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/2014 (Quarter 3)  

 
Consideration of this item was deferred to the next meeting of the Board. 
 

46. Capital Plan Budget Monitoring 2013/2014 (Quarter 3)  
 
Consideration of this item was deferred to the next meeting of the Board. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 2



 

 

Meeting:  Council Date:  27th February 2014 

Wards Affected:  All 

Report Title:  Review of Torbay’s Allocation Policy 

Is the decision a key decision? Yes 

When does the decision need to be implemented? Between 1st April and 1st Sept 

Executive Lead Contact Details:   Councillor, David Thomas, Deputy Mayor 
Executive Lead for Spatial Planning, Housing and Energy. 01803 207069 
david.thomas@torbay.gov.uk 
  
Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Julie Sharland, Strategic Housing Manager 01803 

208065, julie.sharland@torbay.gov.uk 

 

1. Purpose and Introduction 

 

1.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced changes in relation to both homelessness and 
allocations, which mean local authorities, are no longer required to keep an open 
housing register, but, are able to restrict access to their register for social housing. In 
Torbay we have an average of only 350 – 370 homes available for re-let per year. At 
least a third of these are Sheltered homes for those aged 55 and over.  

 
1.2 The Act enables housing authorities to better manage their housing waiting list by 

giving them the power to determine which applicants do or do not qualify for an 
allocation of social housing. Authorities will be able to operate a more focused list 
which better reflects local circumstances and can be understood more readily by local 
people. It will also be easier for authorities to manage unrealistic expectations by 
excluding people who have little or no prospect of being allocated accommodation  

 
1.3 In Torbay we are seeing an increasing demand in the use of emergency/temporary 

accommodation and high cost adult and children’s social care intervention services 
provided by the authority. This combined with the need to achieve significant budget 
savings, has led the Mayor, Executive Lead and members to request a further review 
of the Allocations Policy to ensure that we are providing the best opportunities for local 
residents and making the most appropriate use of our social housing stock. Our 
approach should reflect local circumstances that are understood by local people. 

1.4 Recent Statutory Guidance published December 2013 by Department for 
Communities and Local Government 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/allocation-of-accommodation-guidance-
for-local-housing-authorities-in-england 

  

Agenda Item 5

Page 3



 

2. Proposed Decision 

 
2.1 To approve that the Devon Home Choice Policy is amended in Torbay from 1st April 

2014 as follows:  
 

1. Band E applicants will be removed from the register and only those applicants 
in Bands A-D will be eligible for social housing in Torbay  

 
2. Applicants who have not bid for 12 months, or turned down three reasonable 

offers will be removed from the register. This will be applied as of 1st April 2014. 
 

3. A 5 year residency test will be applied as part of the qualification criteria, 
requiring the applicant (or member of the applicant’s household) to have lived 
within Torbay for 5 years. 
 
In addition other qualification criteria will apply to ensure that applicants who 

are not currently resident in the district/area but who can demonstrate a strong 

association to the local area will be able to qualify (e.g. through family 

association or employment). 

This is defined as;  

Need to work in Devon. The Local Government Association guidelines define 
this as employment other than of a casual nature. For the purposes of this 
policy this will be defined as having had permanent work with a minimum of a 
16 hour contract per week for the previous 6 months, and without a break in the 
period of employment for more than three months. 

 
Have family connections in Devon. The Local Government Association 
guidelines define this as immediate family members (parents, siblings and 
nondependent children) who have themselves lived in the area for five years. 

 
To ensure we maintain the protection provided by the statutory reasonable 
preference criteria and the statutory guidance.  Exceptions to the 5 year 
residency test will be: 

 

• Existing Social housing tenants, in Devon. (to promote downsizing) 

• Members of the Armed Forces and former Service personnel, where the 
application is made within five years of discharge  

• Bereaved spouses and civil partners of members of the Armed Forces 
leaving Services Family Accommodation following the death of their spouse 
or partner 

• Serving or former members of the Reserve Forces who need to move 
because of a serious injury, medical condition or disability sustained as a 
result of their service 

• People who are assessed as being within the reasonable preference 
categories – Bands A , B , Emergency and High Housing Need, as per the 
DHC Policy. ( This includes those fleeing violence and Statutorily 
Homeless)  

• Applicants requiring Sheltered Housing (represents 1/3 rd of all annual lets) 
 

Page 4



 

4. The allocation policy is amended to enable the Council to prioritise working 
households in areas of high unemployed households and where there is an 
evidenced need, via a local lettings plan. 

 
5. The Allocation Policy is amended to state the Council can introduce a Annual 

Lettings Plan ( this will be informed by the monitoring of location, types and 
length of tenancies over a 12 month period and Transfers)  

 

3. Reason for Decision 

            

3.1 To ensure a Housing Options approach to better manage the waiting list and 
expectations for access to Social Housing in Torbay which is in very limited supply. 

           

3.2 A strong and pro-active housing options approach brings several benefits: people are 

offered  support to access the housing solution which best meets their needs (which 

might be private rented housing, low cost home ownership or help to stay put); 

expectations about accessing social housing are properly managed; and social 

housing is focused on those who need it most. A lower waiting list can also be a by-

product.  

3.3 To ensure that social housing in Torbay goes to people who genuinely need and 

deserve them. 

3.4 To create more balanced and sustainable communities that are less benefit 

dependent. 

 

Supporting Information 

4. Position 

 

4.1  The recommendations have taken account of the current guidance as follows: 

Summary of the statutory guidance 

1.1 The guidance encourages local authorities, in deciding who qualifies for social 
housing, to prioritise applicants who can demonstrate a close association with their 
local area by adopting a residency requirement as part of their qualification criteria 
The Government believes that a reasonable period of residency would be at least two 
years (e.g. that only households who had lived in that area for at least 2 years could 
join the housing register).  

1.2 For areas like Devon where local authorities share a common allocation policy with 
their neighbours, the guidance states that local authorities may wish to adopt a 
broader residency test which would be met if an applicant lives in any of the partners’ 
districts (e.g. the whole of Devon rather than an individual district). It is suggested in 
the guidance that such an approach might be particularly appropriate where an 
established housing market area spans a number of local authority districts, and could 
therefore help promote labour mobility within a wider geographical area. 

1.3 Alongside a residency requirement, the guidance suggests that local authorities may 
want to adopt other qualification criteria to ensure that applicants who are not 
currently resident in the district/ area but who can still demonstrate a strong 

Page 5



 
association to the local area are able to qualify (e.g. through family association or 
employment).  

1.4 The guidance makes it clear that local authorities cannot apply a local connection test 
to prevent members of the armed forces (who have served within the last 5 years) or 
their bereaved partners from joining the housing register.  

1.5 The guidance also suggests that local authorities may wish to consider whether there 
should be other exceptions to any residency/ local connection requirement. A number 
of examples are provided:  

• People who need to move away from another area, to escape violence or harm 

• Those who need to return, such as homeless families and care leavers whom the 
authority have housed outside their district, and  

• Those who need support to rehabilitate and integrate back into the community. 

1.6 In addition, the guidance states that there may be sound policy reasons not to apply a 
residency test to existing social tenants seeking to move between local authorities, as 
it may help tenants to downsize. It is worth noting that the Government use the 
guidance to highlight their intention to introduce a Right to Move for social tenants 
seeking to move to take up a job or be closer to their work, whether within the local 
authority district or across local authority boundaries (which will go out for consultation 
in spring 2014).  

 
4.2 Torbay’s register data that has informed the recommendations 

 

As of October 2013, there were a total of 3101 households on the Torbay Housing Register.  
It has been proposed that those in band E, i.e. clients assessed as having no housing needs, 
and those who have not bid for a home within 12 months are removed from the register. 
 
554 households across bands A to D have never bid, or not bid within the year and there are 
1519 on band E.  However, 755 people in band E have also not bid. 
 
The consequence of applying this new criteria will be that a total of 2073 households will be 
removed from the Housing Register, with 1028 remaining, approximately one third of the 
original total. 
 
The table overleaf shows the over 55’s currently on the register (this data has been used to 
identify those applicants requiring sheltered housing.) 
  

Page 6



 

 
 

Banding 1 bed need 2 bed need Total 

A 1 0 1 

B 97 11 108 

C 88 15 103 

D 98 4 102 

E 341 6 347 

Total 625 36 661 

 
Devon Home Choice Policy v3.5 1.10.2013 

http://www.devonhomechoice.com/NovaWeb/Infrastructure/ViewLibraryDocument.aspx?ObjectID=20

52 

 

4.3 For further detailed analysis of those applicants most affected by the 

recommendations - Refer to Appendix 1 Analysis of Households affected  

 

5. Possibilities and Options 

            

5.1 Torbay is the first Local Authority within Devon to introduce a Residency Test; the 

Devon Home Choice Management board may take a view that this is too great a local 

flexibility for the Common agreement/ policy in place between all partners and request 

Torbay to leave the Partnership Arrangement. Torbay would then be required to fund 

and provide its own allocations Policy and system/ process.  

 

6. Fair Decision Making 

 

6.1 All applicants in Band E were contacted by letter and a further random selection of 

300 applicants across Bands A – D. Partners were contacted and the online 

questionnaire publicised on the website.  Only a total of 48 responses were received, 

following a 6 week consultation period.  The consultation results show that there is 

public support to implement the majority of changes suggested to the allocation policy. 

Changes to the recommendations have been made to take account of specific 

concerns. 

              

6.2 The main implications of each proposal can be summarised as follows: 
 

Proposal 
 

Implications Mitigation 

Removing Band E from the 

Register 

Only those with an 
established housing need in 
terms of the policy would be 
able to register for social 
housing. There were 1,519 

All applicants to be contacted 
and offered advice and 
assistance on other housing 
options including registering 
with South West homes 

Page 7



 
households on the register 
as of 1 October 2013 with no 
housing need. 

/private rented 
accommodation/shared 
equity.  

Removing applicants who 
have not bid for 12 months, or 
turned down three reasonable 
offers.  This will be applied as 
of 1st April 2014. 
 

For some assessed housing 

need a suitable property may 

not be available within a 12 

month period. It is common 

practice for people 

purchasing homes to view 

multiple homes without 

penalty, so why should 

applicants be treated any 

differently.  

Any applicant has the right to 

a review of the decision to 

remove them from the 

register. 

This gives a realistic 

message about the limited 

choice, available within the 

Social housing stock in 

Torbay. 

A 5 year residency test will be 

applied as part of the 

qualification criteria 

The Torbay register is no 

longer an open register, and 

people who do not meet the 

new qualifying criteria will be 

restricted from joining the 

Register 

The additional qualifying 

criteria and exceptions 

proposed will enable a range 

of people to register to meet 

the types of lets available. It 

will also ensure that the LA is 

able to support movement 

within the stock and keep to 

a minimum the use of 

Temporary Accommodation. 

Introduction of a Annual 

Lettings Plan 

If felt desirable, the Lettings 
Plan for new developments 
and identified specific areas 
can be used to achieve a 
distribution of the most 
desirable properties across 
the priority bands (thereby 
ensuring that there is an 
appropriate movement of 
households across the 
Housing Register and a 
sustainable mix of household 
incomes). In addition, the 
Lettings Plan can set an 
agreed target for lettings to 
transfer cases to ensure that 
there is appropriate 
movement within the stock  

 

 

6.3 Please refer to Appendix 2 Consultation feedback summary report  

 

7. Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

 

7.1 Not applicable 

 

8. Risks 

 

8.1 Torbay Council does not own any properties; it can only use its Allocation Policy for 

lettings to properties where a nomination right exists. The level of nominations will be 

Page 8



 

different for each Registered Provider , the changes proposed will restrict applicants 

from across Devon registering in Torbay, whereas many of the Registered Providers 

have properties across Devon and they may take the view that they no longer wish to 

be part of Devon Home Choice as not all applicants on the Devon Home choice 

register will be able to bid for Torbay properties, and they may consider running a 

separate register for those properties that fall outside of any nomination agreements. 

If this happens there is a potential cost for Torbay to provide a system for allocations 

via our own policy. This cost is currently covered by the Landlords within Devon Home 

choice at a cost of £30 per property advertised for let.  

8.2 With the implementation of the Benefit cap and Bedroom tax, early indications from 

the Registered Providers and the Housing Options Service show an increase in stock 

turn over and void times, together with an increased demand for smaller 1/ 2 Bed 

properties. We will need to monitor this data on an annual basis with our partners ( 

Annual Lettings plan) to inform any specific future lettings plans and development 

requirements. 

Appendices 

 

1. Analysis of the Housing register (affected Households) 

2. Consultation feedback summary 

 

 

 

Page 9



 

1 
Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

Allocations Policy Review       
Analysis of affected households 

October 2013 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

Page 10



 

2 
Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 

Contents 

 

 Item Page 

1 Background 2 

2 Analysis of applicants 6 

3 Band E applicants: ‘No housing need’ 8 

4 Non Bidding applicants: all bands 12 

5 Appendix A 

Proposed Questions for Consultation 

16 

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

1. Background 

 

 

 

Allocations policies were subject to tight legislative requirements, giving little room for local 

flexibility. The Localism Act 2011 introduced changes in relation to both homelessness and 

allocations, which mean local authorities, are no longer required to keep an open housing 

register, but are able to restrict access to their register for social housing. The Government 

is of the view that Local Authorities should ensure that they prioritise applicants who can 

demonstrate a close association with their local area. 

For example, authorities can restrict the register to only those with evidenced housing need, 

or only those with a local connection. At the same time the Act gives local authorities the 

power to award additional priority to certain households, for example, those in 

employment. 

 

The existing Torbay allocations policy was last reviewed and agreed by council in January 13.  

Social housing is a scarce resource, in Torbay we have a limited supply of 5,600 homes 

available to rent, and between 350 and 370 average re - lets per year. With the planned 

delivery of affordable homes only expected to be 100 per year, of which 70% should be 

rented and 30% should be shared ownership. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



 

3 
Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 The table reflects the current pipeline; there are no assurances that these homes will be 

delivered  

Year Rented Shared ownership 

2013/14 179 15 

2014/15 103 30 

2015/16 75 35 

2016/17 50 25 

2017/18 50 25 

Total 457 130 

 

The policy needs to promote and encourage households to seek alternatives to social 

housing. 

 

We are seeing an increasing demand in the use of emergency/temporary accommodation 

and high cost adult and children’s social care intervention services provided by the 

authority. This combined with the need to achieve significant budget savings, has led the 

Mayor, Executive Lead and members to request a further review to ensure that we are 

providing the best opportunities for local residents and making the most appropriate use of 

our social housing stock. Our approach should reflect local circumstances that are 

understood by local people. 

 

 

The code of guidance and the Housing Act 1996s166A(3) require us to avoid setting policy 

criteria which disqualify groups of people whose members are likely to be accorded 

reasonable preference for social housing.  

 

Activity Plan 

 

1. Members of the conservative group to agree scope of review and consultation 

questions. 

2. A six week public consultation, with a report to return to Overview and Scrutiny and 

Member groups, prior to final recommendations to full council  in February/ March 

2014 

3. Members to see the comments made through the consultation process regarding 

the proposed changes. 

Page 12



 

4 
Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

4. Provide further information and analysis regarding the make-up of bands and those 

applicants who would be directly impacted by the proposals. 

5. To agree final recommendation of allocation policy changes for full council. 

 

 

The following issues are under consideration:  

 

1. Apply a local connection criteria/ eligibility of 5 years residency for anyone wishing to 

register, who is not eligible under the reasonable preference criteria. (Allocations guidance) 

or apply a 2 year residency test to all new applicants as a new qualification criteria. ( the 

government latest proposal Oct 13 for strengthening statutory guidance on social housing 

allocations, it is also proposed that local authorities should consider adopting other 

qualification criteria alongside the residency test so that people who are able to 

demonstrate a strong association to the local area are not disadvantaged – this might 

include close family who have lived in the area for a min period of time and employment 

in the area for a min number of years ) 

 

2. Remove band E from the Torbay housing register and restrict the allocation of social 

housing to those with an evidenced housing need as defined within the policy (To manage 

unrealistic expectations by excluding people who have little or no prospect of being 

allocated housing. To reduce the processing time/ work load of housing options staff – there 

is a risk that initially this would create additional work in terms of households requesting a 

review of their priority) 

  

3. Remove applicants who have not bid for 12 months, or refuse three properties  

 

4. Give additional priority for those households working in Torbay. This could be applied to 

particular areas of deprivation to achieve more balanced sustainable communities. 

 

5. Give additional priority for those households volunteering 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

Summary 

As of Oct 2013, there were a total of 

that people in band E with ‘no housing needs’ and those who have not bid within 12 months 

are removed from the Register.

 

554 people across bands A to D have never bid, or not bid within the year and there are 

1519 on band E.  However, 755 people in band E have also not bid.

 

If the ‘cross over’s’ between the groups identified above are taken into consideration, there 

will be a total of 2073 people lifted from the Housing Register, with 1028 people remaining, 

approximately one third of the original total.

 

Non Bidders

554

27%

GO

2073

67%

As of Oct 2013, there were a total of 3101 on the Housing Register.  It has been proposed 

that people in band E with ‘no housing needs’ and those who have not bid within 12 months 

are removed from the Register. 

people across bands A to D have never bid, or not bid within the year and there are 

on band E.  However, 755 people in band E have also not bid. 

If the ‘cross over’s’ between the groups identified above are taken into consideration, there 

people lifted from the Housing Register, with 1028 people remaining, 

approximately one third of the original total. 

Non Bidders

554

27%

Band E

764

37%

STAY

1028

33%

755 

36% 

 

5 

on the Housing Register.  It has been proposed 

that people in band E with ‘no housing needs’ and those who have not bid within 12 months 

people across bands A to D have never bid, or not bid within the year and there are 

 
If the ‘cross over’s’ between the groups identified above are taken into consideration, there 

people lifted from the Housing Register, with 1028 people remaining, 

 

Band E

764

37%

STAY

1028

33%

Page 14



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

  

 

2.  Analysis of applicants

 

Definitions of categories below 

All Torbay Home Choice:  Applicants per band as at October 2013.

Bands Assessment of housing need

A Emergency Housing Need

B High Housing Need

C Medium Housing Need

D Low Housing Need

E No Housing Need

 Total 
*rounded up 

 

 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

1824

907

59%

30%

All bands average income

Analysis of applicants 

 

Home Choice:  Applicants per band as at October 2013. 

Assessment of housing need Applicants 

Emergency Housing Need 5 

High Housing Need 346 

Medium Housing Need 455 

Low Housing Need 776 

No Housing Need 1519 

3101 

*data unavailable for 19 households 

 

 

 

907

272
52 15 4

30%

9%
2% 0% 0%

All bands average income

Households

 

6 

 %* 

0.2% 

11% 

15% 

25% 

49% 

 

 

Households

Page 15



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

A

3

5%

Movement into Torbay without a 

local connection by band

 

 

 

 

B C D E

22 21

7
4

39% 37%

12%

7%

Movement into Torbay without a 

local connection by band

 

7 

 

Page 16



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

3. Band E applicants: ‘ No housing need’

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Never Bid

755

50%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

General

82%

Application Type 

Bidding history 

If you combine the number of band E applicants who have never bid and those who have 

not a bid within the last 12 months, you arrive at a figure of 

band E total of 1519, and 

 

Band E applicants: ‘ No housing need’ 

 

Never Bid Bid over 1 yr Bid within 1 yr

755

82

682

50%

5%

45%

Band E applicants

General Transfer

82%

18%

Application Type - Band E

If you combine the number of band E applicants who have never bid and those who have 

not a bid within the last 12 months, you arrive at a figure of 837.  This is 55%

and approximately 27% of the total register. 

 

8 

 

 

Series3

Series2

Series1

If you combine the number of band E applicants who have never bid and those who have 

55% of of the 

Page 17



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Male

1039

68.4%

Gender 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

16-24

234

7.5%

Age 

Application Type 

People who are registered to ‘transfer’ are those who are living in social housing and 

want to move within the area, but who are deemed to already live in suitable 

accommodation.  They are eligible for a mutual exchange.  ‘General needs’ re

 

 

Male Female Trans

1039

478

2

68.4%

31.5%

0.1%

Gender - Band E Applicants

25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

398

276 259
194 158

12.8%

8.9% 8.4%

6.3%
5.1%

Age - Band E Applicants

People who are registered to ‘transfer’ are those who are living in social housing and 

want to move within the area, but who are deemed to already live in suitable 

accommodation.  They are eligible for a mutual exchange.  ‘General needs’ re

 

9 

 

 

People who are registered to ‘transfer’ are those who are living in social housing and 

want to move within the area, but who are deemed to already live in suitable 

accommodation.  They are eligible for a mutual exchange.  ‘General needs’ records 

Page 18



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

867

Band E Applicants Income

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Visual Speech

2.6%
0.8%

Disability 

The chart shows the number and percentage of band E applicants with disabilities, by 

disability type.  Applicants ma

a disability (25.4%). 

 

 

 

 

445

143
33 12 19

Band E Applicants Income

Speech Hearing Other Mental Learning 

Dis

0.8%

3.5%

8.2%

13.6%

4.1%

Disability - Band E Applicants

The chart shows the number and percentage of band E applicants with disabilities, by 

disability type.  Applicants may have more than one disability.  386 band E applicants have 

 

10 

 

 

The chart shows the number and percentage of band E applicants with disabilities, by 

than one disability.  386 band E applicants have 

Page 19



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

Key to chart categories  

S1-A Are you currently serving or have you served in the regular UK armed Forces?

S1-B Are you a council or housing association tenant 

S1-C Are you seeking to live in a particular village within Devon where you have a local 
connection? 

S1-D Are you ready to move from supported accommodation to independent living?

S1-E Are you homeless or at risk of 

S1-F Are you struggling to afford your current home?

S1-G Do You Share Kitchen Toilet Bathroom etc

S1-H Health Wellbeing Made Worse By Current Home

S1-I Do you need to move because your current home is in very poor condition? 

S1-J Do You Have Children Under 8 Years Old And Live On Or Above The Third Floor

S1-K Do you want to live in sheltered housing

S1-L Do you need to move to escape violence (including domestic violence) or harassment? 

S1-M Do you need to move to be near to fa

S1-N Do you need to move to a larger home because you don’t have enough bedrooms for 
your household? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

25 72

350

Band E Reasons for application

Applicants may have more than one reason for moving 

Are you currently serving or have you served in the regular UK armed Forces?

Are you a council or housing association tenant who wants to move to a smaller home?

Are you seeking to live in a particular village within Devon where you have a local 

Are you ready to move from supported accommodation to independent living?

Are you homeless or at risk of becoming homeless? 

Are you struggling to afford your current home? 

Do You Share Kitchen Toilet Bathroom etc 

Health Wellbeing Made Worse By Current Home 

Do you need to move because your current home is in very poor condition? 

Do You Have Children Under 8 Years Old And Live On Or Above The Third Floor

Do you want to live in sheltered housing 

Do you need to move to escape violence (including domestic violence) or harassment? 

Do you need to move to be near to family to give or receive support?

Do you need to move to a larger home because you don’t have enough bedrooms for 

350

136

284

575

32

634

218

48
110 138

418

Band E Reasons for application

Applicants may have more than one reason for moving  

 

11 

 

Are you currently serving or have you served in the regular UK armed Forces? 

who wants to move to a smaller home? 

Are you seeking to live in a particular village within Devon where you have a local 

Are you ready to move from supported accommodation to independent living? 

Do you need to move because your current home is in very poor condition?  

Do You Have Children Under 8 Years Old And Live On Or Above The Third Floor 

Do you need to move to escape violence (including domestic violence) or harassment?  

mily to give or receive support? 

Do you need to move to a larger home because you don’t have enough bedrooms for 

207

Page 20



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

4.  Non bidding applicants: all bands

 

Non bidding applicants; all bands

As of Oct 2013, 3101 people were registered on the housing register.  Of that number, a total of 

1476 were recorded as having never made a bid, or as having not made a bid within one year.   This 

leaves a total of 1625 active applican

 

 

*No bid = applicants who have never bid and those who have not bid within one year

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Never Bid

1309

42%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Band A Band B

05

All applicants 

Bidding history 

Of the 3101 people registered for Social Housing, 

a bid or not having bid within one year.  

Non bidding applicants: all bands 

applicants; all bands 

people were registered on the housing register.  Of that number, a total of 

were recorded as having never made a bid, or as having not made a bid within one year.   This 

active applicants bidding on property within the last year. 

 

 

bid = applicants who have never bid and those who have not bid within one year 

Never Bid Not bid over 1 yr Bid within 1 yr

1309

167

1625

42%

5%

52%

All band applicants 

Band B Band C Band D Band E

119 154
366

837

227
301

410

682

All applicants - bid history

people registered for Social Housing, 1476 were recorded as having never made 

a bid or not having bid within one year.  This represents 48% of the Housing Register.

 

12 

people were registered on the housing register.  Of that number, a total of 

were recorded as having never made a bid, or as having not made a bid within one year.   This 

 

 

 

Bid

No Bid*

were recorded as having never made 

This represents 48% of the Housing Register. 

Page 21



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Male 

536

36.3%

All Bands 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

16-24

282

19.1%

All Bands 

Approximately 55% of band E has never bid, or not bid within 1 year 

27% of the total register 

 

 

 

Male Female Trans

536

938

2

36.3%

63.6%

0.1%

All Bands - Non Bidders - Gender

25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

336
263

231
192 172

22.8%

17.8%
15.7%

13.0%
11.7%

All Bands -Non Bidders - Age

of band E has never bid, or not bid within 1 year – that’s approximately 

 

13 

 

 

11.7%

that’s approximately 

Page 22



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

902

All Bands 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1

809

54.8%

All  Bands 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

394

128
26 10 16

All Bands - Non Bidders - Income 

2 3 4 5 6

444

159
50 11 3

30.1%

10.8%

3.4% 0.7% 0.2%

All  Bands - Non Bidders - Bedroom 

Requirement

 

14 

 

 

Bedroom 

Page 23



Draft – v1 – 11/11/13 

 

 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Visual Speech

46

3.1%

All Bands 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

All bands 

4% of people in ‘all bands’ have no local connection to Devon

 

The chart shows the number and

disability type.  888 applicants have a disability (29%).

 

 

 

 

 

Speech Hearing Other Mental Learning

8

63

106

198

55

0.5%

4.3%

7.2%

13.4%

3.7%

All Bands - Non Bidders - Disability

No Yes

232

2869
7%

93%

All bands - Households with no local 

connection to Devon 

of people in ‘all bands’ have no local connection to Devon 

The chart shows the number and percentage of non bidding applicants with disabilities, by

disability type.  888 applicants have a disability (29%). 

 

15 

 

 

Learning

Households with no local 

percentage of non bidding applicants with disabilities, by 

Page 24



 

 

 

Housing Allocation  

Policy Review 

 

 

Consultation Report 

January 2014 

Method 
Online & Paper 

Number of 
questionnaires 

returned 

Online 45 

Paper 3 

Total 48  

 
 
 

The survey was open from  
9th December 2013 to 17th January 2014 

 

                                     Appendix 2 

 

 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2

Page 25



2 
 

 

CONTENTS 

 

                 Page 

1 Introduction ………………………………………………..  2 

 

2 Methodology……………………………………………….  2 

 
3 Quality Assurance………………………………………..    2 

 
4 Summary of Results………………………………………  4 

 
5 Results………………………………………………………  5 

 
6 Respondent Profile……………………………………….  8 

 
7 Conclusion………………………………………………… 10 

 
8 Text Responses - Annex 1 to 6     13 

Page 26



2 
 

1. Introduction 

Consultation has been undertaken by Torbay Council on the review of the Housing Allocations 
policy.  

 
The Localism Act 2011 introduced changes in relation to both homelessness and allocations, 
which mean local authorities are no longer required to keep an open housing register, but, are 
able to restrict access to their register for social housing. In Torbay we have an average of only 
350 - 370 homes available for re-let per year. At least a third of these are Sheltered homes for 
those aged 55 and over. 
 
We are seeing an increasing demand in the use of emergency/temporary accommodation and 
high cost adult and children's social care intervention services provided by the authority. This 
combined with the need to achieve significant budget savings, has led the Mayor, Executive Lead 
and members to request a further review to ensure that we are providing the best opportunities for 
local residents and making the most appropriate use of our social housing stock. Our approach 
should reflect local circumstances that are understood by local people. 

 

2. Methodology 

The survey was conducted by means of an online Questionnaire on the Council website, a 
background document providing an analysis of potentially affected households on the Housing 
Register was also made available.  
 
Letters were also sent out to all of those currently registered on the Housing Register (Devon 
Home Choice).  
 
The tables below were constructed, along with the numbers of responses and the calculated 
percentages, from the set of responses received. All of the tables in the report use the overall 
number of complete answers to each proposal in the total of returned questionnaires as the 
denominator unless otherwise stated. 
 

 
 

3. Quality Assurance 

To ensure the quality of data provided, all of the information received and extracted from the 
online survey returns was verified and quality checked. This provides the assurance that the 
results based on them present an accurate representation of the respondent’s views.  

Page 27



3 
 

 

4. Summary of results 

• 52% all respondents answered “No” to the proposal to apply a minimum 5-year residency 
requirement. 
 

• Almost a third (29.2%) answered “No” to proposal 2 (the removal of those who had not bid 
on any properties for a year) 

  

• and nearly a quarter (22.9%) answered “No” to proposal 3 (the removal of those who had 
refused three reasonable offers of a home); 

 

•  Two thirds of all respondents (67%) answered “No” to proposal 4 to removal from the list of 
all persons/households now in Band E), (52.1% and 66.7% respectively); 
 

• Those saying “No” were just slightly over a fifth (20.8%) giving greater priority on the list to 
low income households,  

 
 
 

 
  

Page 28



4 
 

5.  Results 
 
Qu1) The Council is proposing applying a minimum 5 year length of time living in Torbay as a 
residency test to all applicants as the new qualification criteria for the housing register. Do you 
agree with this proposal? 
 

 Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 22 45.8% 

No 25 52.1% 

No response 1 2.1% 

Total 48 100.0 

 

 
Of the 25 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 23 respondents made 

comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Five years is too 
long 

“.Five years is a long time. Families with children will be 

established within the area long before this time.” 

“It is too general and there may be circumstances where this will 

disadvantage people who are in real need.” 

Fails to take 
individual 

circumstances into 
account 

“Some people have moved to the area legitimately (i.e.. private 

tenancy and/or employed) and due to unfortunate circumstances 

become reliant on social housing. Under the new proposal they 

would not be entitled to housing” 

“Every person or persons applying have to have their 

circumstances and welfare taken into account.” 

Discriminates 
against some types 

of people 

“It is too general and there may be circumstances where this will 

disadvantage people who are in real need.” 

“It discriminates against people wishing to move to the area for 

employment or caring responsibilities” 

“Some people have moved to the area legitimately (i.e. private 

tenancy and/or employed) and due to unfortunate circumstances 

become reliant on social housing. Under the new proposal they 

would not be entitled to housing” 

Existence of 
problem / 

ownership of social 
housing 

“…this proposal is trying to 'fix' a problem that does not exist. The 

vast majority of social housing lettings already go to local people 

and it is likely that all this will do is unfairly restrict housing for 

people that might not be quite as 'local' as others.” 

“ Torbay Council does not own any social housing properties and 

therefore it can only apply restrictions on lettings after agreeing 

them with the social landlords operating in Torbay.” 

 

Page 29



5 
 

 
 
Qu 2) The Council is proposing removing applicants who have not placed a bid for a property in 
over a year. This would be applied based on the housing register information at 1st October 2013. 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

 

 Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 34 70.8% 

No 14 29.2% 

No response 0 0.0% 

Total 48 100.0 

 

Of the 14 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 13 respondents made 

comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Goes against 
“choice” 

“…sometimes there are no suitable properties in the area you 

wish to apply for” 

“…the right property might not have come up…” 

“…properties that are advertised are not always in the area that 

you require…” 

Doesn’t account for 
“Why” no bids 

“Are we now saying take a property you do not want or be 

removed from the list. This would also apply to applicants waiting 

on properties which have been adapted for their physical 

disabilities.” 

“…may be some reason for not accessing the account…” 

“…wasn't given the opportunity to bid as I was placed in band E.” 

Not enough 
properties 

“There are approximately 300 vacancies every year in Torbay. So 

realistically we are not able to meet everyone's requirements in 

one year. Therefore applicants have a right to exercise their 

choice not to bid for properties they consider do not meet their 

needs. Equally a property of the right size to meet need may not 

have been advertised within one year.” 

 
 
 
  

Page 30



6 
 

Qu 3) The Council is proposing removing applicants from the housing register if they turn down 
three reasonable offers of a home. This would be applied based on the housing register 
information at 1st October 2013. Do you agree with this proposal? 
 

 Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 37 77.1% 

No 11 22.9% 

No response 0 0.0% 

Total 48 100.0 

 
Of the 11 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 10 respondents made 

comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

What is a 
“reasonable” offer? 

“The term "reasonable" is open to interpretation.” 

“There may be a number of factors involved so an arbitrary 

decision as to what constitutes a 'reasonable offer' is not sufficient 

to meet the needs of individual clients.” 

Choice is being 
very restricted 

“…difficult to make a decision on how appropriate a property is 

without seeing it and the area.” 

“…choice of a new home is a very important decision. It can make 

all the difference to the health and well being of all the occupants 

and if the new home turns out to be unsuitable, it is a very 

expensive mistake to fix. It is not uncommon for Owner Occupier’s 

to look at 25+ properties before finally deciding on the one that 

meets most of their needs and yet just because someone is poor, 

Torbay are proposing to take this important choice away from 

applicants. This is not a customer focused approach and again is 

trying to 'fix' a problem that doesn't exist. Choice is a good thing 

and the more choice an applicant has, the more likely they are to 

take responsibility for their decisions, good or bad.” 

Should ask for 
reasons 

“…maybe more detailed reasons why housing is not suitable that 

is not captured on original application. Applicants should be asked 

to justify their refusals after three though so their needs can be 

reassessed.” 

“…some people are on automatic bidding and don't have control 

on the properties bid on.” 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 31



7 
 

Qu 4) The Council is proposing removing band E i.e. clients assessed as having no housing needs 
and its applicants. Do you agree with this proposal? 

 
 Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 16 33.3% 

No 32 66.7% 

No response 0 0.0% 

Total 48 100.0 

 

Of the 32 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 31 respondents made 

comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Being in Band E 
doesn’t mean no 
housing needs 

“…sometimes people are wrongly placed in Band E…” 

“…many reasons why people in band E wish to move from their 

property, and home swapper does not work.” 

“These people are applying to social housing for a reason and if 

they are prepared to wait for a property this should be their 

choice.” 

“I disagree, as I myself am on the E band and I live in a home that 

is not suitable for my self and my husband.  It is cold and damp in 

the winter and we sit with no heating as we can not afford to eat 

and heat the property.” 

Band E people are 
often trying to 
downsize 

“Band E has persons in it who are desperate to downsize by 

transfer. They are having to pay for an extra money for bedrooms. 

They are mot only trying mutual exchange routes....this is a large 

band made up of a variety of people many who have problems 

just explained.....to cull this and hope it will go away seems to bury 

your head in the sand. Needs much more thought this particular 

band.” 

“…by removing band E you would be discriminating against those 

who you feel have adequate housing but if you actually look at 

individual cases such as myself, we have been forced into private 

housing and are actually struggling to afford the rent and building 

up a lot of debt,…” 

Detrimental to 
clients 

“Devon Homechoice partnership is in danger of collapsing, as 

each Council appears to be introducing different policies rather 

than the existing Devon wide approach. This adds complexity, 

costs and reduces customer service.”  

“There are applicants in band E who would accept properties that 

the other Bands have rejected and would happily apply for these.” 

 

Page 32



8 
 

Qu 5) The Council is proposing giving priority to low income households. Do you agree with this 
proposal? 

 
 Do you 

support this 

proposal? 

Number Percent 

Yes 38 79.2% 

No 10 20.1% 

No response 0 0.0% 

Total 48 100.0 

 
Of the 10 respondents who selected ‘No’ they do not support the proposal, 9 respondents made 

comments related to the proposal. These have been summarised into themes below: 

 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

Income ought not to 
be the only factor 

“…should be on a personal needs basis not a financial one, there 

are enough procedures in place to help genuine cases…” 

“I think someone like me who has a permanent illness should be 

given priority even above low income households. I feel trapped 

as there is nothing I can do to improve my position.” 

“You cannot only take into account the household income there 

are other factors that have an impact on a persons situation.” 

Danger of 
promoting poverty 

“Social housing is already allocated to those people who are in 

most need, which can and usually does mean households with a 

low income. This proposal is in danger of giving a perverse 

incentive to be poor and it is also almost impossible to administer.” 

If income is the 
main factor why 
should the cut-off 
point be so low 

“…the people on the next pay level should also be included.....I 

earn just too much to get any help from benefits etc all my money 

goes on rent (private) bills and food I have nothing left at the end 

of any month. I don't drink, I don't smoke, I don't drive, obviously, 

no car I am not classed as low income but I can't afford to live and 

there are many more like me so not just low income.” 

Each case should 
be assessed on 
own facts/needs 

“Each case should be assessed on housing need regardless of 

income.” 

“…social housing should be on a personal needs basis not a 

financial one, there are enough procedures in place to help 

genuine cases…” 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 33



9 
 

Qu6) Do you have any further comments? 

 
There were 29 respondents who made additional comments related to the proposal. These have 

been summarised into themes below: 

Category Examples of comments– where respondents said ‘No’ above 

These issues 
should not be 

framed as Yes/No, 
Black/White 

“These questions are black and white which allows no room for 

individual issues. Everyone is an individual and should be treated 

according to their needs.” 

“I am ashamed to live somewhere where the Mayor and the local 

council don't seem to care about individuals” 

Priority should be 
based on need 

“people on Band E appear to have no housing need, but I 

disagree as the property you are renting might be of poor 

condition and not maintained.” 

“I'm on a low income and paying a private landlord, I'm also in 

band "E" so where does that leave the hundreds of people in the 

same situation as mine.” 

“I don't think medical history is given enough consideration.” 

Priority should be 
for locals 

“…giving priority to local people with a true need….” 

“…people who have worked, lived and paid Council Tax etc in this 

area since they were born should also be given priority.” 

“Do more rigorous checks to make sure that only tenants who are 

fully entitled to rent them, do so. If tenants are antisocial, or don't 

look after the property properly, boot them out.” 

Good housing 
would improve 

health 

“The average house price is 12 times average income in the south 

west. This makes home ownership unaffordable for the majority of 

people in the Bay. Some of the private rented sector is highly 

priced and of very poor quality. Access to decent affordable 

housing is the bedrock to improving peoples health and well-

being.” 

“…with two of us here in the home registered as disabled and 

receiving highest rate disability allowance I am classed as having 

no housing needs.” 

Changes should be 
rethought 

Torbay appear to be proposing changes that have not been fully 

thought through. The evidence provided with this consultation 

does not prove the case being argued or show how the changes 

will achieve the required outcome.  Westward understands that 

the Council wants to make changes that will give additional priority 

to their residents but in doing so there is a real danger the Council 

will create confusion, increase costs, reduce customer service and 

raise expectations that are then not deliverable. Most importantly 

the Council seems to have forgotten that it doesn't own any social 

housing anymore and therefore needs to agree with all the 

Housing Associations working in Torbay a mutually agreeable way 

forward, rather than to change its policy in isolation. 

  

Page 34



10 
 

6. Respondent Profile 
 
What best describes your work situation? 
 

  
Respondents 

Employment Situation Number Percent 

Working Full-Time (30 hours plus per week) 16 33.3% 

Working Part-Time (Under 30 hours per week) 5 10.4% 

Wholly retired from work 6 12.5% 

Unemployed and available for work 1 2.1% 

Permanently sick / disabled 13 27.1% 

On a government supported training programme (e.g. 
Modern Apprenticeship) 0 0.0% 

Self employed full or part time 0 0.0% 

Full time education at school, college or university 1 2.1% 

Looking after the home 0 0.0% 

Other 5 10.4% 

Total 47  97.9% 

 

Gender 

  
Respondents 

Gender Number Percent 

Male 20 41.6%  

Female 27 56.3%  

    Not given 1 2.1% 

Total 48  100%  

 
Age 

  Respondents 

Age Band Number Percent 

Under 16 0 0.0% 

16 - 24 0 0.0% 

25 - 34 6 12.5% 

35 - 44 11 22.9% 

45 - 54 10 20.8% 

55 - 64 14 29.2% 

65 - 74 6 12.5% 

75 + 0 0.0% 

Total 47  97.9% 

Page 35



11 
 

 
 
 
Disability 

  
Respondents 

Disability Number Percent 

Disabled 20 41.6% 

Non-disabled 27 56.3% 

No response 1 2.1% 

Total 48  100.0% 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For further information please contact the Policy Performance and Review team on 
01803 207227 or email consultation@torbay.gov.uk 
 
The information used to collate this report has been collected and processed in 
accordance with the Data Protection Act, 1998. 
 

Page 36



- 
1
 -

 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

):
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 P
o

li
c

y
 

   S
in

ce
 th

e
 E

qu
a
lit

y 
A

ct
 2

0
10

 c
am

e
 in

to
 fo

rc
e
 th

e
 c

ou
n
ci

l h
a
s 

co
n
tin

ue
d
 to

 b
e
 c

om
m

itt
e
d 

to
 e

n
su

rin
g 

w
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
a
t m

e
et

 t
he

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 

n
e
ed

s 
of

 o
u
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

e
n
su

re
 w

e
 a

re
 a

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
 th

a
t 

is
 s

en
si

tiv
e
 t

o
 t

he
 n

ee
d
s 

of
 in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
ith

in
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
. T

h
is

 E
qu

a
lit

y 
Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t (

E
IA

) 
h
a
s 

b
ee

n
 d

e
ve

lo
p
ed

 a
s 

a
 t

oo
l t

o 
en

a
b
le

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 u
n
its

 to
 f

u
lly

 c
o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

pr
o
p
o
se

d
 d

e
ci

si
o
n
s 

on
 th

e
 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

  
 T

h
is

 E
IA

 w
ill

 e
vi

d
e
n
ce

 th
a
t 

yo
u
 h

a
ve

 f
u
lly

 c
o
ns

id
e
re

d
 th

e
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

yo
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
sa

l /
 s

tr
a
te

gy
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

ap
p
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

o
n
su

lta
tio

n
 w

ith
 k

e
y 

st
a
ke

ho
ld

e
rs

. T
h
e
 E

IA
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 C
o
u
n
ci

llo
rs

 a
n
d
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o 

m
a
ke

 in
fo

rm
ed

 d
e
ci

si
o
n
s 

a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 d
e
ci

si
o
n
-m

a
ki

n
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

.  
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 /
 H
e
a
d
 S
ig
n
 o
ff
: 
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
(s
) 
C
o
u
n
c
il
lo
r 
D
a
v
id
 T
h
o
m
a
s
 

 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

H
e
a
d
: 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 W
il
li
a
m
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
a
te
: 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

D
a
te
: 
 
6

th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

   R
e
le

v
a
n

c
e
 T

e
s
t 

–
 ‘
A

 P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a
te

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

’ 
 N

o
t 

a
ll 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
 o

r 
st

ra
te

gi
e
s 

w
e
 p

u
t f

or
w

a
rd

 w
ill

 b
e
 ‘r

e
le

va
n
t’ 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
of

 th
e 

a
ct

u
a
l o

r 
p
o
te

n
tia

l i
m

p
a
ct

 o
n 

th
e
 c

om
m

u
n
ity

 in
 r

e
la

tio
n
 t

o
 

e
qu

a
lit

y 
a
n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s.

 F
o
r 

in
st

an
ce

, a
 r

e
po

rt
 o

n
 c

ha
n
gi

n
g 

a
 s

u
pp

lie
r 

of
 c

o
p
ie

r 
p
ap

e
r 

m
a
y 

n
o
t 

re
qu

ire
 a

n 
E

IA
 to

 b
e
 c

om
p
le

te
d
 w

h
e
re

a
s 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
u
tli

n
in

g 
a
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
un

ity
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
p
o
o
l o

r 
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

po
si

n
g 

a
 c

lo
su

re
 o

f 
a
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

.  
 T

he
re

fo
re

 b
ef

o
re

 c
o
m

pl
e
tin

g 
th

e
 E

IA
 p

le
a
se

 a
n
sw

e
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g 
qu

e
st

io
n
s.

 If
 y

o
u
 a

n
sw

e
r 

‘y
e
s’

 t
o
 a

n
y 

of
 th

e
 q

u
e
st

io
n
s 

be
lo

w
 y

o
u
 m

u
st

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 
fu

ll 
E

IA
. 

 

1
)  

D
o
e
s
 t
h
is
 r
e
p
o
rt
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 a
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
?
  

 
Y

e
s 

N
 

2
) 

W
il
l 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
(i
.e
. 
a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 o
r 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
t/
c
h
a
n
g
e
) 
o
n
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
: 

•
 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 o
r 
e
q
u
a
li
ty
 g
ro
u
p
s
) 

•
 
O
u
r 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

•
 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 
‘k
n
o
c
k
-o
n
’ 
e
ff
e
c
ts
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
, 
o
u
r 

re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
s
, 
le
g
a
l 
o
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
) 

  Y
e
s 

Y
e
s 

Y
e
s 

 

  N
 

N
 

N
 

 

N
a
m
e
 (
K
e
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r/
A
u
th
o
r)
: 

Ju
lie

 S
ha

rla
n
d 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

H
o
u
si

n
g/

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

S
tr

a
te

gi
c 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

M
a
na

ge
r 

T
e
l:
 

0
1
80

3
 2

0
80

6
5 

D
a
te
: 

9
th

 D
e
ce

m
b
e
r 

20
1
3 

E
m
a
il
: 

Ju
lie

.s
h
a
rla

n
d
@

to
rb

a
y.

go
v.

u
k 

Agenda Item 5
Appendix 3

Page 37



- 
2
 -

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1
: 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l/
s
tr
a
te
g
y
/d
e
c
is
io
n
 

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

1
. 

C
le
a
rl
y
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
th
e
  

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
is
 t
h
e
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
?
 

            

 T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P
o
li
c
y
 o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 
(H
o
w
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
 a
p
p
li
e
d
) 
It
 i
s
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
o
li
c
y
. 

 T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
1
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
o
th
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 m

e
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r,
 b
u
t,
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
s
tr
ic
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
. 

In
 T
o
rb
a
y
 w

e
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 o
f 
o
n
ly
 3
5
0
 –
 3
7
0
 h
o
m
e
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 f
o
r 
re
-l
e
t 
p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 A
t 
le
a
s
t 
a
 t
h
ir
d
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 a
re
 S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 

h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 a
g
e
d
 5
5
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
r.
 

  W
e
 a
re
 s
e
e
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
/t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
 c
o
s
t 
a
d
u
lt
 a
n
d
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
. 
T
h
is
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
, 
h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r,
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
e
s
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
l 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 m

a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 u
s
e
 o
f 
o
u
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
. 
O
u
r 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
lo
c
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
. 

     
2
. 

W
h
o
 i
s
 i
n
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 

/ 
w
h
o
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
?
 

             

 L
o
c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 T
o
rb
a
y
 f
o
r 
a
t 
le
a
s
t 
5
 y
e
a
rs
 w

ill
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
tr
o
n
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 f
a
m
ily
 o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 

L
o
c
a
l 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 a
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 w

ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
h
ig
h
 d
e
n
s
it
y
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
. 

 H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
, 
b
e
e
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 h
a
v
in
g
 n
o
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
, 
( 
B
a
n
d
 E
) 
o
r 
e
it
h
e
r 
n
o
t 

b
id
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
fu
s
e
d
 3
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 o
ff
e
rs
 o
f 
a
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 w

ill
 b
e
 r
e
m
o
v
e
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
. 

  It
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 w

o
rk
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w

it
h
 o
u
r 
R
e
g
is
te
re
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
tu
rn
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 v
o
id
s
  
w
it
h
in
 

s
to
c
k
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
o
lic
y
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
. 
 

Page 38



- 
3
 -

 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
: 
E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 

T
o
rb

a
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l h
a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b
lig

a
tio

n
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

a
 d

u
ty

 u
nd

e
r 

th
e
 E

qu
a
lit

y 
A

ct
 2

0
1
0 

to
 e

lim
in

a
te

 d
is

cr
im

in
a
tio

n
, p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o
od

 r
e
la

tio
n
s 

a
n
d 

a
d
va

n
ce

 
e
qu

a
lit

y 
o
f 

o
p
po

rt
un

ity
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
op

le
 w

h
o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 c
ha

ra
ct

e
ris

tic
 a

n
d 

p
eo

p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o 
n
ot

.  
 T

he
 e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

se
ct

io
n 

e
n
su

re
s 

th
a
t,

 a
s 

a
 c

o
u
n
ci

l, 
w

e
 t

a
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
n
t t

h
e 

P
ub

lic
 S

e
ct

o
r 

E
qu

a
lit

y 
D

u
ty

 a
t 

an
 e

a
rly

 
st

a
ge

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
d
e
 e

vi
d
e
n
ce

 to
 e

n
su

re
 t

ha
t 

w
e
 f

u
lly

 c
o
n
si

d
e
r 

th
e
 im

p
ac

t 
of

 o
u
r 

de
ci

si
o
n
s 

/ p
ro

p
o
sa

ls
 o

n
 th

e 
T

o
rb

a
y 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

 E
v
id
e
n
c
e
, 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

  

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

3
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
?
  

 Y
e
s
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 R

e
g
is
te
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
, 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild

 
p
o
v
e
rt
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt
y
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 
D
e
v
o
n
 H

o
m
e
 C

h
o
ic
e
. 

    
4
. 

H
a
v
e
 y
o
u
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l?
 

   

Y
e
s
 -
 F
o
rm

a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 
S
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 

  

5
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 

  

S
ix
 w

e
e
k
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 o
n
lin

e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 9

th
 D

e
c
 t
o
 1
7

th
 J
a
n
. 
A
ll 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 H

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 m

o
s
t 
a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 (
 B
a
n
d
 E
) 
w
e
re
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 b
y
 l
e
tt
e
r,
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
w
it
h
 1
0
%
 r
a
n
d
o
m
 s
e
le
c
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 o
th
e
r 
B
a
n
d
s
. 
In
 t
o
ta
l 
1
8
0
0
 

le
tt
e
rs
 w
e
re
 s
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 b
o
th
 o
n
li
n
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
is
 4
8
. 
T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 p
u
b
lic
a
lly
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re
 c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 /
 s
u
rv
e
y
 d
e
ta
ils
 w

e
re
 a
ls
o
 

c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
. 
 

 

•
 

5
2
%
 a
ll 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 “
N
o
” 
to
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 a
p
p
ly
 a
 m

in
im

u
m
 5
-y
e
a
r 
re
s
id
e
n
c
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 

•
 

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
 t
h
ir
d
 (
2
9
.2
%
) 
a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 “
N
o
” 
to
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
2
 (
th
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h
a
d
 n
o
t 
b
id
 o
n
 a
n
y
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
 

y
e
a
r)
 

  

•
 

a
n
d
 n
e
a
rl
y
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
(2
2
.9
%
) 
a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 “
N
o
” 
to
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
3
 (
th
e
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h
a
d
 r
e
fu
s
e
d
 t
h
re
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

o
ff
e
rs
 o
f 
a
 h
o
m
e
);
 

 

Page 39



- 
4
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

•
 

 T
w
o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts
 (
6
7
%
) 
a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 “
N
o
” 
to
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
4
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
a
l 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
o
f 
a
ll 
p
e
rs
o
n
s
/h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

n
o
w
 i
n
 B
a
n
d
 E
),
 (
5
2
.1
%
 a
n
d
 6
6
.7
%
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
);
 

 

•
 

T
h
o
s
e
 s
a
y
in
g
 “
N
o
” 
w
e
re
 j
u
s
t 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 o
v
e
r 
a
 f
if
th
 (
2
0
.8
%
) 
g
iv
in
g
 g
re
a
te
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
is
t 
to
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
, 
 

 P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
fu
ll 
d
e
ta
ils
 

6
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
ts
 m
a
y
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
?
 

 

  
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 5
 y
e
a
r 
re
s
id
e
n
c
y
 t
e
s
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 o
th
e
r 
q
u
a
li
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 w

il
l 
a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 n
o
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
is
tr
ic
t/
 a
re
a
 b
u
t 
w
h
o
 c
a
n
 s
ti
ll
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
 s
tr
o
n
g
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re
a
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 q
u
a
li
fy
 (
e
.g
. 
th
ro
u
g
h
 f
a
m
il
y
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t)
. 
 

  
  
  
  
 T
h
is
 i
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
s
; 
 

  
  
  
  
 N
e
e
d
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 D
e
v
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 g
u
id
e
li
n
e
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
 

  
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 o
f 
a
 c
a
s
u
a
l 
n
a
tu
re
. 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 o
f 
th
is
 p
o
lic
y
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 b
e
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
s
  

  
 h
a
v
in
g
 h
a
d
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
 w

it
h
 a
 m

in
im

u
m
 o
f 
a
 1
6
 h
o
u
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
p
e
r 
w
e
e
k
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 6
  

  
 m

o
n
th
s
, 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 
a
 b
re
a
k
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
re
e
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

   
 H

a
v
e
 f
a
m
ily
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 D

e
v
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 g
u
id
e
lin

e
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
is
 a
s
  

  
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 f
a
m
ily
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 (
p
a
re
n
ts
, 
s
ib
lin

g
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
) 
w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
 

  
 l
iv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 f
o
r 
fi
v
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 

 T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 w

e
 m

a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 

  
  
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 5
 y
e
a
r 
re
s
id
e
n
c
y
 t
e
s
t 
w
il
l 
b
e
; 
 

 

•
 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 S
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
, 
in
 D

e
v
o
n
. 
(t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 d
o
w
n
s
iz
in
g
) 

•
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 A
rm

e
d
 F
o
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l,
 w

h
e
re
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in
 f
iv
e
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
f 
d
is
c
h
a
rg
e
  

•
 

B
e
re
a
v
e
d
 s
p
o
u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 o
f 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 A
rm

e
d
 F
o
rc
e
s
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 F
a
m
ily
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
a
th
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 s
p
o
u
s
e
 o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 

•
 

S
e
rv
in
g
 o
r 
fo
rm

e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 R

e
s
e
rv
e
 F
o
rc
e
s
 w

h
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ry
, 
m
e
d
ic
a
l 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 w

it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 –
 B
a
n
d
s
 A
 ,
 B
 ,
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 H

ig
h
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 N

e
e
d
, 
a
s
 p
e
r 
th
e
 D

H
C
 P
o
lic
y
. 
( 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
le
e
in
g
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 S
ta
tu
to
ri
ly
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
) 
 

•
 

A
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
in
g
 S
h
e
lt
e
re
d
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 (
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 1
/3
 r
d
 o
f 
a
ll 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
le
ts
) 

 

Page 40



- 
5
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

 
   P
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
  

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

It
 i

s
 n

o
t 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 s
ta

te
 t

h
a

t 
a

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 a

ff
e

c
t 

e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 e

q
u

a
lly

. 
T

h
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o

re
 i

n
-d

e
p

th
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
o

 s
e

e
 i

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c

te
d

 t
h

a
n

 o
th

e
rs

 –
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
. 

Y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
a

ls
o

 c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 i

s
s

u
e

s
. 

If
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
s

id
e

r 
th

e
re

 t
o

 b
e

 n
o

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 o
r 

n
e

g
a

ti
v

e
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
 ‘

n
e

u
tr

a
l’ 

c
o

lu
m

n
 t

o
 

e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
y

. 
E
V
E
R
Y
 B
O
X
 M

U
S
T
 B
E
 C
O
M
P
L
E
T
E
D
 –
 i
f 
th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
ta
te
 e
it
h
e
r 
‘N
o
 P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t’
 o
r 

‘N
o
 N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t’
. 

 
P
o
s
it
iv
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
t 
&
 M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

N
e
u
tr
a
l 
Im
p
a
c
t 

O
ld
e
r 
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

  

Y
e
s
 

 W
h
ile

 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
u
ild
 h
a
s
 

s
lo
w
e
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 o
f 
e
x
tr
a
 a
re
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

ill
 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
 

g
o
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 w

a
y
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
fr
a
il 

o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
. 
 

  

 
 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
a
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
te
n
a
n
c
y
 t
y
p
e
s
 f
o
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 s
tr
o
n
g
ly
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 

la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
is
 w

ill
 h
e
lp
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 b
e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o
f 

th
e
 s
to
c
k
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
w
h
e
n
 d
e
c
id
in
g
 o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 t
y
p
e
 t
o
 o
ff
e
r,
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r:
 T
h
e
 a
g
e
 a
n
d
 f
ra
ilt
y
 o
f 

th
e
 p
ro
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
a
n
t.
  

 T
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 a
p
p
lie

s
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
b
e
d
ro
o
m
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 n
e
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 

m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t:
 

•
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 c
a
n
 s
h
a
re
 a
 b
e
d
ro
o
m
 

u
p
 u
n
ti
l 
1
0
 r
e
g
a
rd
le
s
s
 o
f 
s
e
x
 

•
 

S
a
m

e
 s

e
x 

ch
ild

re
n 

ca
n 

sh
a
re

 
a
 b

ed
ro

om
 u

p
 to

 2
0 

•
 

P
e
o
p
le

 r
e
qu

ire
 t

he
ir 

ow
n
 

ro
o
m

 w
h
e
n
 th

e
y 

a
re

 2
1 

  
    

Page 41



- 
6
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

P
e
o
p
le
 w

it
h
 c
a
ri
n
g
  

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 

 

 
E
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
a
re
rs
 

F
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 a
re
 a
llo

c
a
te
d
 a
n
 e
x
tr
a
 

b
e
d
ro
o
m
 w

h
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
  
to
 m

e
t 
th
e
 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

  

Y
e
s
 

 
W
h
ils
t 
o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 c
h
o
ic
e
 t
o
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 

w
h
e
re
v
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 m

u
s
t 
s
ti
ll 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 w

h
o
 f
a
ll 
in
to
 t
h
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

o
v
e
r 
th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t:
 P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 o
n
 m

e
d
ic
a
l 
o
r 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

g
ro
u
n
d
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 i
s
 g
iv
e
n
 

to
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a
 d
is
a
b
ili
ty
. 

-
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 w

ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 D

e
v
o
n
 H

o
m
e
 

C
h
o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 w

ill
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 l
e
t 
u
s
in
g
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
m
a
tc
h
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
ir
c
u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
. 
 

 -
 

A
n
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
t’
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 n
e
e
d
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 

re
g
is
tr
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l 
le
tt
e
r,
 

w
it
h
 a
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
th
a
t 
a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 m

a
k
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
e
l 
th
is
 i
s
 w

ro
n
g
. 

 -
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 a
n
y
 a
p
p
lic
a
n
t 
is
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
 o
f 

w
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 o
r 
p
a
rt
 

w
h
e
e
lc
h
a
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 -
 

A
ll 
la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 

re
c
o
rd
 o
f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
/ 
a
d
a
p
te
d
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 (
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

a
d
a
p
ta
b
le
),
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

w
it
h
 t
h
is
. 
W

h
e
re
 a
n
 u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 i
s
n
't
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 

w
ill
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 p
re
-v
o
id
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo
re
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
re
 a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
. 

 -
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
d
v
e
rt
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 

d
e
ta
ils
(e
.g
. 
to
 c
la
ri
fy
 t
h
e
 b
a
th
in
g
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
, 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 s
ta
ir
 l
if
t 

e
tc
) 

 -
 

A
t 
th
e
 p
o
in
t 
w
h
e
re
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

Page 42



- 
7
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

s
e
ts
 a
n
 a
d
v
e
rt
 a
s
 '
R
e
a
d
y
 t
o
 

a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
' 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 w

h
e
th
e
r 

th
e
y
 w

o
u
ld
 l
ik
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 

b
e
fo
re
 a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
/ 
a
d
a
p
te
d
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 i
s
 l
e
t.
 P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
 t
h
a
t 
it
 

w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 o
n
ly
 a
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 
to
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
rt
 l
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
. 

  

W
o
m
e
n
 o
r 
m
e
n
 

  
Y
e
s
  

T
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 D

e
v
o
n
 H

o
m
e
 C

h
o
ic
e
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
/ 
p
o
lic
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 

c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 f
a
ll 
w
it
h
in
 

o
n
e
 o
r 
m
o
re
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 w

h
o
 h
a
v
e
 

u
rg
e
n
t 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
: 
 

(a
) 
fo
rm

e
r 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
rm

e
d
 F
o
rc
e
s
  

(b
) 
s
e
rv
in
g
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

A
rm

e
d
 F
o
rc
e
s
 w

h
o
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 m

o
v
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ry
, 
m
e
d
ic
a
l 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

(c
) 
b
e
re
a
v
e
d
 s
p
o
u
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 o
f 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 A
rm

e
d
 

F
o
rc
e
s
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

F
a
m
ily
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
llo

w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
a
th
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s
p
o
u
s
e
 o
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
r 
 

 
  

Page 43



- 
8
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

(d
) 
S
e
rv
in
g
 o
r 
fo
rm

e
r 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 R

e
s
e
rv
e
 

F
o
rc
e
s
 w

h
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

m
o
v
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
a
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju
ry
, 
m
e
d
ic
a
l 

c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 o
r 
d
is
a
b
ili
ty
 

s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

 
P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 b
la
c
k
 o
r 
fr
o
m
 

a
 m

in
o
ri
ty
 e
th
n
ic
 b
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

(B
M
E
) 

(P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 G
y
p
s
ie

s
 /
 

R
o
m

a
 a

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
) 

B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
is
 u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
th
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
, 
if
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
lic
a
n
t 
h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 a
 s
e
c
u
re
 t
e
n
a
n
t,
 

a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

o
b
ta
in
 a
n
 o
u
tr
ig
h
t 
p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
rd
e
r 

u
n
d
e
r 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 8
4
 o
f 
th
e
 H

o
u
s
in
g
 A
c
t 

1
9
8
5
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 i
n
 P
a
rt
 

1
 o
f 
S
c
h
e
d
u
le
 2
 o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 

8
. 

 

C
a
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 o
n
 a
n
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is
. 
T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 

d
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 w

h
e
th
e
r 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

o
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
n
ie
d
 t
h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 
to
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
w
it
h
 D

e
v
o
n
 H

o
m
e
 

C
h
o
ic
e
, 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r:
 

T
h
e
re
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 r
e
lia

b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

v
io
le
n
t 
o
r 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
, 
ra
c
is
t 
o
r 
h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic
 

a
b
u
s
e

 
 

T
h
e
 L
o
c
a
lis
m
 A
c
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
t 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
a
t 
c
e
rt
a
in
 p
e
o
p
le
 f
ro
m
 

a
b
ro
a
d
 w

it
h
 l
im

it
e
d
 r
ig
h
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

U
n
it
e
d
 K
in
g
d
o
m
 a
re
 n
o
t 
e
lig

ib
le
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
llo

c
a
te
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
s
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 ‘
T
h
e
 A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 H

o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 (
E
lig

ib
ili
ty
) 

(E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
0
6
’ 
(a
s
 

a
m
e
n
d
e
d
).
  

 

   

R
e
lig

io
n
 o
r 
b
e
lie
f 
(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

la
c
k
 o
f 
b
e
lie

f)
 

 

  
 

 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 l
e
s
b
ia
n
, 
g
a
y
 o
r 

b
is
e
x
u
a
l 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 w

ill
 b
e
 a
p
p
lie

d
 

in
 d
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 w

h
e
th
e
r 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

 
  

Page 44



- 
9
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 
o
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
n
ie
d
 t
h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 
to
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
w
it
h
 D

e
v
o
n
 H

o
m
e
 

C
h
o
ic
e
, 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r:
 

T
h
e
re
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 r
e
lia

b
le
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

v
io
le
n
t 
o
r 
a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r,
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
, 
ra
c
is
t 
o
r 
h
o
m
o
p
h
o
b
ic
 

a
b
u
s
e
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 t
ra
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 

 
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 w

it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
is
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
. 

P
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 i
n
 a
 m

a
rr
ia
g
e
 

o
r 
c
iv
il 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

 

 
 

 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
o
p
le
 w

h
o
 a
re
 

tr
a
n
s
g
e
n
d
e
re
d
 w

it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
is
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
. 

W
o
m
e
n
 w

h
o
 a
re
 p
re
g
n
a
n
t 
/ 
o
n
 

m
a
te
rn
it
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w

h
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 

to
 l
a
rg
e
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

b
e
c
o
m
e
 f
o
s
te
r 
c
a
re
rs
 o
r 
a
d
o
p
t 

w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 B
a
n
d
 B
 u
n
d
e
r 

‘S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
’ 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

b
e
in
g
 a
g
re
e
d
 w

it
h
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

 
  

S
o
c
io
-e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 

(I
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
h
ild
 

p
o
v
e
rt
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
) 

Y
e
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

th
o
s
e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 l
o
w
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 

w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 
d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 
 

P
u
b
lic
 H

e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 (
H
o
w
 

w
ill
 y
o
u
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
o
rb
a
y
) 

Y
e
s
 T
h
e
 p
o
lic
y
 w

ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
u
ild

 o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

re
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 e
a
rl
y
 h
e
lp
/ 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

 
 

8
. 

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
id
e
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 

w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 
w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

A
re

 a
n

y
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s

 y
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 O

R
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
s

?
 P

le
a

s
e

 e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
s

e
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

y
o

u
 m

a
y

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
is

it
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
n

c
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
 

) A
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
o
m
e
 C
h
o
ic
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 o
n
 a
p
p
ly
in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

fl
e
x
ib
il
it
ie
s
, 
a
t 
th
is
 t
im
e
 i
t 
is
 n
o
t 
c
le
a
r 
h
o
w
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
ta
b
il
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
s
 t
o
 

Page 45



- 
1
0
 -

 

N
o
 

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
  

 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p
o
li
c
y
. 
 

T
h
is
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a
 c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 I
T
 d
a
ta
 b
a
s
e
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 t
h
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
T
o
rb
a
y
 o
n
ly
. 
E
x
a
c
t 
c
o
s
ts
/ 
c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
n
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

8
b
 
C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 I
m
p
a
c
ts
 –
 O
th
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 

w
h
ic
h
 m

ig
h
t 
w
o
rs
e
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
) 

 

A
re

 a
n

y
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 i

m
p

a
c

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s

 y
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 o
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

?
 P

le
a

s
e

 e
x

p
la

in
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
s

e
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

y
o

u
 m

a
y

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

v
is

it
 t

h
is

 s
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
n

c
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
) 

 A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

 
S
e
c
ti
o
n
 3
: 
M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

9
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ri
s
e
 a
n
y
 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 w
il
l 

b
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
?
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

P
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
 

 
  
  
  
 I

m
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

s
/ 
im

p
a
c
ts

  
  
  
  
  

M
it

ig
a
ti

o
n

  

R
e
m
o
v
in
g
 B
a
n
d
 E
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 

O
n
ly
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
it
h
 a
n
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 

in
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
o
li
c
y
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
g
is
te
r 

fo
r 
s
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
T
h
e
re
 

w
e
re
 1
,5
1
9
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 o
n
 

th
e
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
s
 o
f 
1
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 w
it
h
 n
o
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
. 

A
ll
 a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
ta
c
te
d
 a
n
d
 o
ff
e
re
d
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 o
n
 

o
th
e
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
g
is
te
ri
n
g
 w
it
h
 

S
o
u
th
 W

e
s
t 
h
o
m
e
s
 /
p
ri
v
a
te
 

re
n
te
d
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
/s
h
a
re
d
 

e
q
u
it
y
. 
 

R
e
m
o
v
in
g
 a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
b
id
 f
o
r 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th
s
, 
o
r 
tu
rn
e
d
 d
o
w
n
 

th
re
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 o
ff
e
rs
. 
 

T
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
p
p
li
e
d
 a
s
 o
f 

1
s
t  
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 

 

F
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 a
 1
2
 m
o
n
th
 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
It
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 h
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 v
ie
w
 

m
u
lt
ip
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
o
u
t 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
, 
s
o
 w
h
y
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts
 b
e
 t
re
a
te
d
 a
n
y
 

d
if
fe
re
n
tl
y
. 
 

A
n
y
 a
p
p
li
c
a
n
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 r
ig
h
t 

to
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 

to
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 t
h
e
m
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

re
g
is
te
r.
 

T
h
is
 g
iv
e
s
 a
 r
e
a
li
s
ti
c
 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 l
im
it
e
d
 

c
h
o
ic
e
, 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
 i
n
 

T
o
rb
a
y
. 

A
 5
 y
e
a
r 
re
s
id
e
n
c
y
 t
e
s
t 
w
il
l 

b
e
 a
p
p
li
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

T
h
e
 T
o
rb
a
y
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
is
 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 
a
n
 o
p
e
n
 r
e
g
is
te
r,
 

T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
q
u
a
li
fy
in
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 a
n
d
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

Page 46



- 
1
1
 -

 

q
u
a
li
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 

a
n
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 d
o
 n
o
t 

m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
w
 q
u
a
li
fy
in
g
 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 w
il
l 
b
e
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 

fr
o
m
 j
o
in
in
g
 t
h
e
 R
e
g
is
te
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 w
il
l 
e
n
a
b
le
 a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 r
e
g
is
te
r 

to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 
le
ts
 

a
v
a
il
a
b
le
. 
It
 w
il
l 
a
ls
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 L
A
 i
s
 a
b
le
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 s
to
c
k
 a
n
d
 k
e
e
p
 

to
 a
 m
in
im
u
m
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4
: 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
  

 

N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
il
s
 

1
0
. 

O
u
tl
in
e
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a
c
tu
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
r 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

  

A
 n
e
w
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
L
e
tt
in
g
s
 P
la
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
le
ts
, 
ty
p
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

te
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
. 
T
h
is
 w

ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 l
e
tt
in
g
s
 p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 a
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
a
n
d
s
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m

o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
to
c
k
 a
n
d
 a
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 m

ix
 o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 i
n
c
o
m
e
s
. 

 

Page 47



- 
1
2
 -

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5
: 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
  

 
N
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

T
ic
k
 

�
 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
/j
u
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

1
1
. 

           

S
ta
te
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

C
le

a
rl

y
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 
a

n
d

 j
u

s
ti

fy
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s

 f
o

r 
th

is
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 f
o

u
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 p

o
s

s
ib

le
 f

ro
m

 
a

n
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
(a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

th
a

n
 o

n
e

 m
a

y
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 a

 
s

in
g

le
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l)

. 
P

le
a

s
e

 
s

e
le

c
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 
a

n
d

 j
u

s
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
s

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

d
e

c
is

io
n
 

  

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 1
: 
N
o
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -
 E

IA
 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
v

e
rs

e
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
in

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q

u
a

lit
y

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 

 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 2
: 
A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 b
a
rr
ie
rs
 –

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 
to

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k

e
n

 o
r 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p

ro
m

o
te

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

 

√ 

P
le
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
r 
to
 t
a
b
le
 a
b
o
v
e
 n
o
 9
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 3

: 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

- 
D

e
s

p
it

e
 

h
a

v
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 
im

p
a

c
t 

/ 
m

is
s

e
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s

 o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q

u
a

lit
y

. 
F

u
ll 

ju
s

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

, 
e

s
p

e
c

ia
lly

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
, 

in
 l

in
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 ‘
d

u
e

 r
e

g
a

rd
’.

  
 

 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 4
: 
S
to
p
 a
n
d
 r
e
th
in
k

 –
 E

IA
 h

a
s

 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
c

tu
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

u
n

la
w

fu
l 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 o

r 
a

d
v

e
rs

e
 

im
p

a
c

t 
h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

 

 

Meeting:  Overview and Scrutiny Board Date:  19 February 2014 

                  Council       27 February 2014 

Wards Affected:  All 

Report Title:   Strategic Agreement Between Torbay and Southern Health and Care 
NHS Trust and Torbay Council  
 

Executive Lead Contact Details:  Christine Scouler, Executive Lead for Adult Social 

Care and Older People, (01803) 553236, Christine.scouler@torbay.gov.uk 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:  Caroline Taylor, Director of Adult Social Care, 

(01803) 207116, caroline.taylor@torbay.gov.uk 

 
1. Purpose 

1.1 This is the Annual Agreement between Torbay Council who commissions services 

for Adult Care from the NHS and the Torbay & Southern Devon Health and Care 

NHS Trust. It sets out within the budget target the performance for Adult Care in the 

forthcoming financial year. It also refers to the broader context in which the 

agreement is framed and sets out roles and responsibilities for the forthcoming 

year. The Council is trying to achieve continuing good service in Adult Care for 

local citizens within the context of tight financial constraints, and preserving the 

principle of integrated health and social care at the frontline. 

2. Proposed Decision 

2.1 That the Strategic Agreement between Torbay and Southern Health and Care NHS 
Trust and Torbay Council set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report be 
approved.  

3. Reasons for Decision 

3.1 The agreement sets out the strategic direction which is designed to maximise 

choice and independence for those requiring adult social care and support. At a 

national level the funding arrangements for adult social care are under review. The 

Dilnot report has been published and we are working to implement changes for 

April 2016.  The financial arrangements are based on what is known at present and 

the requirements of The Better Care Fund (BCF)  

3.2 The agreement is in the context of the NHS White Paper and the NHS Policy of 

transforming community services. This agreement is set in the context of a number 

of continuous changes as part of the agenda of public sector reform. The Clinical 

Commissioning Group has authority for commissioning NHS services for Torbay 

and South Devon and we are working closely with them. In the new financial year 

Agenda Item 6

Page 49



 

 

we expected to see the Torbay and Southern Health and Care NHS Trust be 

acquired by another foundation trust.  

The Council continues to work within this context based on our commitment to an 

integrated model of health and care as the best way of supporting individuals and 

local communities.  

3.3 The agreement is structured on the four domains outlined in the revised adult social 

care outcomes framework which is a national framework. The majority of 

performance indicators associated with each domain will be measured monthly 

although several rely on annual or bi-annual surveys and they will be reported as 

national results become available. 

4. Summary 

4.1 The ASA outlines performance outcomes within the budget envelope provided by 

the Council and outlines elements of the work plan being undertaken by the Trust 

on our behalf in the next financial year as well as specifying roles and 

responsibilities. 

Supporting Information 

5. Position 

This agreement has been considered through the budget consultation process and 

the budget process for adult social care has included equality impact assessments 

for any proposed changes. 

6. Possibilities and Options 

6.1 This is an annual agreement which is required in order to manage our 

commissioning of adult social care. 

7. Preferred Solution/Option 

7.1 The alternative is not to have an agreement which would lead to a lack of clarity in 
outcomes for adults social care over the next financial year and lack of clarity in 
governance of roles and responsibilities.  

8. Consultation 

 This agreement has been part of the budget consultation process however specific 

changes for groups of users or individuals will include detailed engagement and 

consultation as part of any proposed change. The ASA has been considered by 

Overview and Scrutiny and the agreement has been amended in accordance with 

their recommendations. 

9. Risks 
 
9.1 Outline of significant key risks 

The agreement sets out performance within the tight financial constraints of the 
public sector and includes an ambitious programme of transforming services within 
adult social care in the forthcoming year in order to meet good outcomes for local 
people within available finance. 

Page 50



 

 

 
 
9.2 Ordinary residence 

Movement of ordinary residence can create in year pressures and this will be 
monitored closely through social care programme board 

 
9.3 The scale of savings required  

Savings plans targets are significant and over a two year period will require radical 
changes in the range of services available, the level of care that can be provide and 
the way services are delivered. 

 
9.4 Risk of capacity to deliver changes 

The requirements of this commissioning agreement are the further changes and 
savings to back office and assessment processes. Capacity in zone teams may 
impact on the pace of delivery. This is mitigated through assurance from the trust 
that operational services at the front end can be delivered in a different way. 

 
9.5 Community concern 

Concern may be raised in response to implementation of the programmes of work 
outlined in this agreement which may affect the pace of delivery. This is mitigated 
through the close involvement of, and engagement with, individuals and 
communities. 
 

9.6 Care home fees 
Care home fees have been set within a new banding structure for residential care 
set last year. This is mitigated through a consultation process with providers. The 
process may be open to challenge. 

 
9.7 Acquisition process 

The Trust is expected to be acquired by another NHS Foundation Trust in 
September 2014 and this could result in distraction from delivery of this agreement. 
This is mitigated through close working between senior officers and the NHS; the 
Mayor and Councillors; NHS chairs and board members. 
 
Risk rating is included as an appendix to the ASA 
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 Strategic Agreement between Torbay and Southern Health and Care NHS 

Trust and Torbay Council – Policy Framework 
Appendix 2 Annex A to the ASA (Budget Proposals 2014/15 and 2015/16: Adult Social 

Care) 
Appendix 3 Annex B to the ASA (Key Performance Indicators) 
Appendix 4 Annex C to the ASA (Risk Matrix) 
Appendix 5 Annex D to the ASA (2014/15 ASC Outcomes Framework) 

Page 51



 
1

 
 

     

A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

 
T
o
rb
a
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 a
n
d
 T
o
rb
a
y
 a
n
d
 S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 C
a
re
 N
H
S
 T
ru
s
t 
 

 
fo
r 
th
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
  

 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 t
o
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
5
 

 
     

F
IN

A
L
 D

R
A

F
T

 F
O

R
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 

  

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1

Page 52



 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 

1
. 

P
u

rp
o

se
 a

n
d

 O
v

e
rv

ie
w

  
 

2
. 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

  

3
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
 

4
. 

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 D

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 K

e
y

 D
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
 

5
. 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
2

0
1

4
-1

6
  

6
. 

C
li

e
n

t 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
–

 R
a

te
s 

2
0

1
4

-1
6

  

7
. 

R
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 R

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

 

   

A
n

n
e

x
 A

 –
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

 

A
n

n
e

x
 B

 –
 K

e
y

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

 

A
n

n
e

x
 C

 –
 R

is
k

 M
a

tr
ix

  
 

A
n

n
e

x
 D

 –
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 A

S
C

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
 

 
 

Page 53



 
3

1
. 

P
u

rp
o

se
 a

n
d

 S
co

p
e

 o
f 

th
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

 

T
h

is
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 w
a

y
 i

n
 w

h
ic

h
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 T

o
rb

a
y

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
 D

e
vo

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 C

a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
st

 (
th

e
 T

ru
st

) 
w

ill
 

w
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
xt

 p
e

ri
o

d
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  

 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
a

s 
fo

rm
a

ll
y 

co
n

st
it

u
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 1
s
t
 o

f 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

2
 w

h
e

n
 N

H
S 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 h

e
ld

 b
y

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

a
re

 

T
ru

st
 t

ra
n

sf
e

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
ly

 f
o

rm
e

d
 S

o
u

th
 D

e
vo

n
 a

n
d

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

li
n

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

C
C

G
).

  
A

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 t
h

e
 D

A
S

S
 r

o
le

 

re
tu

rn
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

  
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s,
 o

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

, 
h

a
s 

b
e

co
m

e
 c

le
a

re
r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 

2
0

1
1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

g
u

n
 t

o
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

. 
 T

h
e

se
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

a
re

 r
e

fl
e

ct
e

d
 in

 t
h

is
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

s 
fa

r 
a

s 
th

e
y 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

. 
 H

o
w

e
v

e
r 

a
n

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

 w
il

l 
b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 i

n
 o

th
e

r 
p

la
ce

s.
   

 T
h

e
 r

e
sp

e
ct

iv
e

 r
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

e
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 h
a

v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 B

o
th

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 N

H
S

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
rs

, 
o

th
e

r 
p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 s

e
ct

o
r 

to
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 t

h
e

 

m
o

d
e

l 
o

f 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 T

o
rb

a
y

 i
s 

re
n

o
w

n
e

d
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
n

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 (

IC
O

) 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
in

g
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

cq
u

ir
in

g
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
su

lt
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

 

W
h

e
re

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

se
rv

ic
e

 s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 c

la
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 a
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y 

fo
r 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
fu

n
ct

io
n

s,
 o

r 
to

 e
n

su
re

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
a

n
d

 

ti
m

e
ly

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 o

u
tl

in
e

d
, 

th
e

se
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
. 

 

 T
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 le

ve
l 

o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

, 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

is
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

a
re

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
. 

 T
h

e
 f

ig
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 a

re
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
id

-y
e

a
r 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
t 

3
0
t
h
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

fl
u

ct
u

a
te

 a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
t 

a
n

y
 p

o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e
. 

 T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 li

k
e

ly
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 o
v

e
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
th

is
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

s 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

b
e

lo
w

 b
e

gi
n

 t
o

 im
p

a
ct

. 
 T

h
e

 a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 

d
e

ta
il

 i
n

 S
e

ct
io

n
 5

 a
n

d
 A

n
n

e
x 

A
. 

 
 

Page 54



 
4

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 T

y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 U

se
rs

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 N
u

rs
in

g
 H

o
m

e
 C

a
re

 
6

3
5

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

co
st

in
g

 o
v

e
r 

£
6

0
6

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
  

1
7

2
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

co
st

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 £
3

7
1

 a
n

d
 £

6
0

5
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k 

1
0

5
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

co
st

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 £
7

1
 a

n
d

 £
3

7
0

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 
7

6
7

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

co
st

in
g

 u
n

d
e

r 
£

7
0

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k 
3

4
7

 

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
2

,0
2

6
 

 
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 f

u
ll

y
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
a

re
 b

u
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
. 

 T
h

is
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
s:

  

 

�
 

P
e

o
p

le
 li

vi
n

g
  i

n
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s 
 

1
3

3
 

�
 

P
e

o
p

le
 li

vi
n

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o

m
e

s 
1

1
4

 

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
 2

4
7

 
 

 

T
o

ta
l 

2
,2

7
3

 

    

  
 

Page 55



 
5

1
.1
 

O
v

e
ra

ll
 c

o
n

te
x

t 
a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 

 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
d

a
 

In
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 m

a
jo

r 
re

fo
rm

s 
co

m
e

 in
to

 e
ff

e
ct

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 A

ct
 2

0
1

2
. 

 T
h

e
 A

ct
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
s 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

co
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
cr

o
ss

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

co
n

ti
n

u
it

y 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

 P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

re
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

h
a

s 
m

o
ve

d
 t

o
 l

o
ca

l g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
h

a
s 

m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 l

o
ca

l 
C

li
n

ic
a

l 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
s 

(C
C

G
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 N
H

S 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

. 
 P

a
ti

e
n

ts
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 c

h
o

o
se

 f
ro

m
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
ct

o
r.

  L
o

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
d

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 p

re
ve

n
ti

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

h
a

p
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

fo
r 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
s 

a
re

 s
e

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 l
o

ca
l 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

. 
  

 T
h

e
 c

a
re

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

cu
s 

o
f 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
a

b
o

u
t 

sa
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

q
u

e
st

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

w
 w

e
 p

a
y

 f
o

r 
ca

re
 i

n
 a

n
 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
ca

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

ly
 a

n
sw

e
re

d
 b

y 
D

il
n

o
t 

re
fo

rm
s.

  T
h

is
 w

il
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
 a

 f
o

cu
se

d
 s

e
t 

o
f 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

lo
ca

ll
y 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

m
e

a
n

s 
te

st
in

g
 f

o
r 

ca
re

. 

 

Lo
ca

ll
y

  

T
h

e
 j

o
in

t 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
u

n
d

e
rp

in
s 

th
e

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

tr
a

ve
l 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 N
H

S
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

a
re

 T
ru

st
. 

 

 T
h

e
 l

o
ca

l 
co

n
te

xt
 i

s 
sh

a
p

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a

re
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 (
IC

O
) 

a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
th

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

b
e

in
g

 a
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
‘p

io
n

e
e

r’
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

n
n

o
va

ti
o

n
. 

 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 w

il
l c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ce

 f
o

r 
th

o
se

 r
e

q
u

ir
in

g
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 A
s 

fa
r 

a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
, 

w
it

h
in

 F
a

ir
 A

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 C

a
re

 c
ri

te
ri

a
 (

F
A

C
S

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s,

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
se

e
k 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

y 
li

fe
st

yl
e

s.
   

 1
.2
 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
co

n
te

x
t 

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 (

A
S

C
) 

a
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
g

re
a

t 
p

re
ss

u
re

 a
n

d
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 r

e
fo

rm
 t

h
o

u
g

h
 D

il
n

o
t 

it
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 p
re

ss
u

re
 c

o
u

n
ci

ls
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 s
a

fe
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 l

e
ss

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

. 

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 i

n
 li

n
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e
 s

p
e

n
d

in
g

 r
e

vi
e

w
 (

2
0

1
1

-2
0

1
5

),
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 s

u
b

st
a

n
ti

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s.
  T

h
e

 

T
ru

st
 a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 

C
C

G
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 t
h

e
 t

ig
h

t 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

 o
v

e
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
th

e
 b

e
st

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

se
 c

o
n

st
ra

in
ts

 a
n

d
 in

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 D

A
S

S,
 m

a
ki

n
g

 a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
ge

s 
to

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 w

it
h

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

se
r 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 

Page 56



 
6

1
.3
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 

 T
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

’s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 i
s 

fo
r 

a
 H

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
: 

W
h

e
re

 w
e

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 e
ve

ry
o

n
e

 t
o

 e
n

jo
y

 a
 

h
e

a
lt

h
y

, 
sa

fe
 a

n
d

 f
u

lf
il

li
n

g
 li

fe
. 

 T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

h
re

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

to
 b

e
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

is
 v

is
io

n
: 

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
st

 s
ta

rt
 i

n
 li

fe
 

•
 

A
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 li

fe
 w

it
h

 a
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 g

a
p

 i
n

 li
fe

 e
xp

e
ct

a
n

cy
 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

u
n

d
e

r 
e

a
ch

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 
 T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 w
il

l 
ch

a
ll

e
n

ge
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
in

 T
o

rb
a

y
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 w

e
ll

 t
h

e
y 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
se

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 w
il

l 
b

e
 l

o
o

ki
n

g
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
. 

 

1
.4
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l:
 C

Q
C

 (
C

a
re

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
) 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 w

il
l 

d
ri

ve
 im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
ca

re
 c

h
e

ck
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 

u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
s 

th
a

t 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
m

e
e

t 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s.
 N

IC
E

 t
a

ke
s 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
e

xc
e

ll
e

n
ce

 

in
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
. 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
ill

 c
o

-o
p

e
ra

te
 w

it
h

 a
n

d
 b

e
 g

u
id

e
d

 b
y

 b
o

th
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 i

n
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
so

ci
a

l 
ca

re
. 

 C
Q

C
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s:

 

•
 

M
a

k
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
u

se
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

e
 g

re
a

te
st

 i
m

p
a

ct
 

•
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

w
 w

e
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

•
 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

u
il

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

c 

•
 

B
u

il
d

 o
u

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 c

a
re

 

•
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 o
f 

o
u

r 
u

n
iq

u
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
o

n
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 

•
 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 o

u
r 

d
ri

ve
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 a
 h

ig
h

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 

   
  

   
   

   
 L

o
ca

l:
 T

o
rb

a
y

 a
n

d
 S

o
u

th
e

rn
 D

e
v

o
n

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 C
a

re
 N

H
S

 T
ru

st
 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 o

f 
b

o
th

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
it

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

s 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y.
  

A
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 is

 i
n

 u
se

. 
 T

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
: 

•
 

A
 C

a
re

 H
o

m
e

 S
e

lf
-A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
o

o
l 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

s;
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

ri
g

g
e

r 
T

o
o

l 
(Q

U
E

ST
T

) 
to

 b
e

 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y 

th
e

 h
o

m
e

 e
le

ct
ro

n
ic

a
ll

y 
o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
si

s,
 w

it
h

 d
ir

e
ct

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 T

ru
st

 d
a

ta
b

a
se

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

is
 

•
 

A
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 F
in

a
n

ce
 A

u
d

it
 T

o
o

l 
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
o

r 
b

i 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
si

s 
- 

th
is

 w
il

l 
re

p
la

ce
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

Page 57



 
7

•
 

A
n

 O
b

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

C
h

e
ck

li
st

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 v

is
it

in
g

 T
ru

st
 s

ta
ff

 

•
 

A
 m

o
d

e
l,

 s
ti

ll
 i

n
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 t

o
 g

a
u

g
e

 c
lie

n
t 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

  

 1
.5
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
li

ve
r 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

  A
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

 w
il

l 
si

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s 

B
o

a
rd

 (
S

A
B

).
  

R
e

g
u

la
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

A
B

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
e

n
su

re
 h

ig
h

 l
e

ve
l 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 b
y

 t
h

e
 D

A
S

S
 a

n
d

 E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 L

e
a

d
 f

o
r 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

. 

T
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

il
l 

b
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

je
ct

 o
f 

a
 P

e
e

r 
R

e
vi

e
w

 (
A

D
A

S
S

 a
n

d
 L

G
A

) 
in

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

cu
s 

o
f 

th
is

 w
il

l 
b

e
 

o
n

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y 
in

 a
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 o

n
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

fe
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o

m
e

s.
  T

h
e

 T
ru

st
 

a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

cl
o

se
ly

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 a

n
y

 is
su

e
s 

ra
is

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 R
e

vi
e

w
. 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

h
a

v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 t

o
 im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

 a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 

in
q

u
ir

y
 i

n
to

 W
in

te
rb

o
u

rn
e

 V
ie

w
. 

 W
o

rk
 w

il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

fu
tu

re
 m

il
e

st
o

n
e

s 
a

re
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

re
tu

rn
in

g
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

o
 

th
e

ir
 h

o
m

e
 a

re
a

 (
w

h
e

n
 s

a
fe

) 
a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

vi
e

w
 o

u
r 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
it

h
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y 

re
fl

e
ct

 a
n

d
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 o
n

  
th

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

 p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 b

e
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
. 

A
n

 o
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

a
se

 t
h

e
 S

in
g

le
 P

o
in

t 
o

f 
A

cc
e

ss
 T

e
a

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 P

o
li

ce
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 C
h

il
d

re
n

s’
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
s 

b
e

in
g

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 

im
p

ro
v

e
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 w
h

o
le

 f
a

m
il

y
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 a
ro

u
n

d
 

D
o

m
e

st
ic

 A
b

u
se

 a
n

d
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

u
n

d
e

r 
P

R
E

V
E

N
T

 a
re

 m
e

t.
 

T
h

e
re

 w
il

l 
b

e
 a

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir

 r
o

le
, 

a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s 

M
u

lt
i-

A
g

e
n

cy
 T

ra
in

in
g

 P
o

li
cy

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0

0
%

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t.

 

 

1
.6
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y

  

 T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 b

y 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 w

il
l 

b
e

 f
ra

m
e

d
 b

y
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 l

o
ca

l 

p
o

li
cy

 d
ri

v
e

rs
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

: 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
a

ct
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 C

a
re

 B
il

l 
a

n
d

 D
il

n
o

t 
re

fo
rm

s:
  A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

a
te

 i
s 

2
0

1
6

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 C

C
G

 

w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
ri

m
 p

e
ri

o
d

 a
re

 ‘
D

il
n

o
t’

 c
o

m
p

li
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 b

u
il

d
 

to
w

a
rd

s 
a

 f
u

tu
re

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l a
d

d
re

ss
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
it

a
li

se
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 r

e
fo

rm
s.

 

Lo
ca

ll
y

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 I
C

O
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 P

io
n

e
e

r 
p

ro
je

ct
 w

il
l 

d
ri

ve
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 

to
 b

o
th

 s
h

a
p

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

 s
h

a
p

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 A

SA
. 

M
o

re
 im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

, 
b

u
t 

st
il

l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

xt
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o

ve
 l

o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
sk

e
d

 t
o

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

in
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 w
il

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

 a
 s

e
a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 le

ve
l 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
o

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 

Page 58



 
8

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

se
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

w
il

l n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

ll
y 

e
n

d
o

rs
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 a
s 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 f
u

ll
 

p
u

b
li

c 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

W
h

il
st

 m
a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
s 

a
re

 i
n

te
rd

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 

th
e

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

in
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 w

il
l 

b
e

 t
o

: 

 

•
 

R
e

vi
e

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
a

re
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

a
ll

 p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 c

a
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

a
ll

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 e

li
g

ib
il

it
y 

cr
it

e
ri

a
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 F
A

C
S

, 
R

A
S

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

st
 C

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 R

is
k

 P
o

li
ci

e
s.

  W
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 

in
cl

u
d

e
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
cc

o
rd

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

’s
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 a

n
y

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
h

a
rg

in
g 

p
o

li
ci

e
s.

  
  

•
 

R
e

vi
e

w
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

o
f 

e
ve

ry
o

n
e

 r
e

ce
iv

in
g

 a
 c

h
a

rg
e

a
b

le
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
ch

a
rg

in
g

 p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
re

 

b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
li

e
d

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
it

a
b

ly
. 

•
 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
h

e
re

 a
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

la
rm

 is
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
a

 p
e

rs
o

n
’s

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 n
e

e
d

s 
it

 i
s 

fu
n

d
e

d
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  

•
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
p

h
a

se
 o

f 
th

e
 O

cc
o

m
b

e
 H

o
u

se
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  

•
 

B
ri

n
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

T
h

e
se

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
il

l 
b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 1
 a

n
d

 2
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
a

ki
n

g
 p

la
ce

 i
n

 

q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 3
 a

n
d

 4
. 

 

•
 

B
ri

n
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s,
 a

n
d

 a
ll

 b
a

ck
 o

ff
ic

e
 

fu
n

ct
io

n
s,

 a
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 c
o

st
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 w

a
y.

  
T

h
e

se
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 1

 a
n

d
 2

 w
it

h
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 t

a
ki

n
g

 p
la

ce
 i

n
 q

u
a

rt
e

rs
 3

 a
n

d
 4

. 

 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
ll

y
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

n
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 b
u

il
t 

in
to

 C
IP

 p
la

n
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 n
e

e
d

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 in
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s 
w

il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 

to
 f

a
ll

. 
 T

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s 
h

a
s 

fa
ll

e
n

 b
y

 a
n

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
4

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

7
 t

o
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
, 

th
e

 p
la

n
s 

in
 t

h
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 t

re
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 b

u
t 

a
t 

a
 r

a
te

 o
f 

6
%

 p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

. 
 

 1
.7
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 I
n

te
n

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 W
o

rk
 p

la
n

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
: 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 a
 j

o
in

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

 c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 w
il

l 

e
n

su
re

 i
t 

is
 a

li
g

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 N
H

S
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s.

  T
h

e
 i

n
te

n
ti

o
n

 i
s 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 t

o
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
te

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
, 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
, 

h
o

u
si

n
g

, 
p

u
b

li
c 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 li
n

k
e

d
 

to
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

io
n

e
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
v

e
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

  
T

h
is

 w
il

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
st

re
a

m
li

n
e

 a
n

d
 

m
a

ke
 b

e
st

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

. 

 

Page 59



 
9

T
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

it
 i

s 
vi

ta
l 

th
a

t 
co

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s 
in

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
e

r 
fu

n
ct

io
n

s 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 s

h
a

re
 i

n
te

ll
ig

e
n

ce
 i

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 d
e

m
a

n
d

, 
b

u
il

d
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
li

e
n

ce
 in

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
la

ce
, 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

q
u

a
li

ty
 i

s 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
vi

d
e

r 
ca

p
a

b
il

it
y

 is
 m

a
tc

h
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 w

il
l b

e
 p

u
rs

u
e

d
 i

n
 li

n
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
o

f 
th

e
 P

io
n

e
e

r 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 I
C

O
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
n

 e
n

a
b

le
r 

in
 t

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

 W
h

il
st

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 C
C

G
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
li

ve
r 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 o

r 
m

a
cr

o
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
a

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
ic

ro
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

: 

•
 

 T
h

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 o
f 

ca
re

 p
a

ck
a

g
e

s 
to

 m
e

e
t 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

n
 a

n
 in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

b
a

si
s.

  

•
 

A
ct

iv
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 p

o
o

li
n

g
 o

f 
in

te
ll

ig
e

n
ce

 i
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y

 a
ll

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
in

 T
o

rb
a

y.
 

•
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v

id
e

rs
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
e

lf
-a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

lf
-m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

g
a

in
st

 a
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 m
a

tr
ix

 (
k

n
o

w
n

 

a
s 

th
e

 Q
U

E
S

T
T

 t
o

o
l)

. 

•
 

In
st

ig
a

ti
n

g
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
se

 a
re

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 a
n

d
 e

sc
a

la
ti

n
g

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
w

h
e

re
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 

co
m

p
ly

in
g

 

w
it

h
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s 

to
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

f 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
 

ce
ss

a
ti

o
n

. 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 a
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 c

a
re

rs
 t

h
a

t 
is

 i
n

 li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

a
re

 B
il

l.
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 C
C

G
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

d
u

lt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
in

 li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 i

n
te

n
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
il

l 
b

e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 b
y

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i

n
 

co
n

ju
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 p
ro

vi
d

e
rs

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

 o
f 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 m

o
re

 c
o

st
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 s

y
st

e
m

 w
id

e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 t
a

ke
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
. 

 A
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

se
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
is

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

 1
.8
 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 I

n
v

o
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
ce

ss
 

A
s 

th
e

 A
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
le

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

le
a

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 d

ri
v

e
n

 b
y 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

n
d

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
  T

h
e

 T
ru

st
 i

s 
co

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

ke
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
re

co
g

n
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 a
n

d
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

. 
  

A
s 

a
 p

ro
vi

d
e

r 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l e
n

g
a

g
e

 a
ll

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

e
si

g
n

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
, 

p
la

yi
n

g
 a

n
 a

ct
iv

e
 r

o
le

 w
it

h
 T

o
rb

a
y

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

cr
u

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

. 
 

W
h

e
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

w
il

l 
re

su
lt

 i
n

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 l
e

ve
l 

o
r 

ty
p

e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 b

y
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

, 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
co

m
p

ly
 

w
it

h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
vi

e
w

/r
e

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

ca
re

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

n
d

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
o

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

re
 g

iv
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

n
o

ti
ce

 o
f 

a
n

y
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s.

 

Page 60



 
1
0

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

w
a

tc
h

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
in

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

u
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 k

e
y

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

se
rv

ic
e

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
si

g
n

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

ls
o

 e
xp

e
ct

s 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 a
ct

iv
e

ly
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
in

 T
o

rb
a

y
 in

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s.

  
T

h
is

 w
il

l 
a

p
p

ly
 i

rr
e

sp
e

ct
iv

e
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
a

re
 d

ri
ve

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

ce
ss

it
ie

s 
o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

t 

o
r 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

l 
e

v
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
  

 

1
.9
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
ct

 

1
9

8
3

 a
n

d
 N

H
S

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

re
 a

ct
 1

9
9

0
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

. 
 T

h
e

se
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
: 

•
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

‘s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t’
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
A

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ra

ct
it

io
n

e
rs

 (
A

M
H

P
) 

•
 

A
ft

e
rc

a
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
se

ct
io

n
 1

1
7

 

•
 

G
u

a
rd

ia
n

sh
ip

 u
n

d
e

r 
se

ct
io

n
 7

 

•
 

C
a

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 d
e

le
g

a
te

s 
m

a
n

y 
o

f 
th

e
se

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 
to

 D
e

v
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 N

H
S 

T
ru

st
, 

a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

  D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

is
su

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
st

n
e

ss
 o

f 
so

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

se
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 A
 v

is
it

 f
ro

m
 C

Q
C

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 M
e

n
ta

l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 A

ct
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 i

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 f

o
cu

se
d

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 is
su

e
s.

  
T

h
e

se
 s

te
m

 f
ro

m
 

h
is

to
ri

ca
l 

co
m

p
le

xi
ti

e
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
yi

n
g

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
, 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t,

 r
e

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 i

ss
u

e
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 o
f 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

h
a

t 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
h

a
ve

 o
n

 s
ta

ff
 r

o
le

s 
(e

.g
.,

 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 i
n

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s)
. 

 

W
h

il
st

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 i

ss
u

e
s,

 o
th

e
rs

 r
e

m
a

in
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
re

se
n

t 
a

 b
lo

ck
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

O
v

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

xt
 y

e
a

r,
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 w
il

l 
b

e
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

: 

•
 

C
la

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 i

n
p

u
t 

o
f 

a
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 p
e

rs
p

e
ct

iv
e

 i
n

to
 C

C
G

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

•
 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
ss

u
e

s:
 r

e
so

lu
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

re
la

te
d

 i
ss

u
e

s;
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

u
cc

e
ss

io
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

; 
re

vi
e

w
 o

f 
ro

le
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

so
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 D

P
T

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 b
e

st
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 T

o
rb

a
y.

 

 

2
. 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

ss
u

e
s 

fo
r 

1
4

/1
5

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 l
o

ca
l 

m
u

lt
id

is
ci

p
li

n
a

ry
 t

e
a

m
s 

h
a

s 
p

ro
ve

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 m

o
d

e
l 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 t

o
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

n
e

e
d

s 
sw

if
tl

y
 a

n
d

 a
b

le
 t

o
 f

a
ci

li
ta

te
 r

e
h

a
b

il
it

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

v
o

id
a

n
ce

 o
f 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

a
n

d
 h

o
sp

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
si

o
n

s.
 

Page 61



 
1
1

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 m

o
d

e
l 

re
li

e
s 

o
n

 a
 l

e
ve

l 
o

f 
st

a
ff

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y

 n
o

t 
b

e
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 i

n
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fr
o

n
t 

li
n

e
 p

o
st

s 
w

e
re

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
, 

th
e

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

o
f 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 w

o
rk

lo
a

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

A
s 

th
e

re
 i

s 
e

vi
d

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
co

m
p

le
x 

a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 a

re
 i

n
cr

e
a

si
n

g
, 

so
m

e
 r

e
d

e
si

g
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 is

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

 

T
ru

st
 i

s 
a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
it

s 
d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

w
h

il
st

 r
e

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
d

e
l 

fo
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 d
e

li
ve

ry
. 

A
s 

it
 i

s 
cl

e
a

r 
th

a
t 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
re

 n
o

w
 s

tr
e

tc
h

e
d

 t
o

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

, 
p

la
n

s 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

d
e

p
lo

ye
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 

p
la

ce
s 

in
 t

h
e

 s
ys

te
m

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 o
p

ti
m

u
m

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
n

e
e

d
s 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
. 

It
 is

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
st

e
m

 f
o

r 
li

n
ki

n
g

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

so
rt

 o
f 

so
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 w
id

e
n

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 m
o

re
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

, 
a

n
d

 l
e

ss
 e

m
p

h
a

si
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

O
th

e
r 

is
su

e
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 1
5

/1
6

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

: 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

n
e

w
 l

e
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 o

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 T

ru
st

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 t

h
e

 li
ke

ly
 im

p
a

ct
 o

f 

th
e

 C
a

re
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 B
il

l 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 D
il

n
o

t)
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
fi

n
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
. 

 E
a

rl
y

 s
co

p
in

g
 m

a
k

e
s 

it
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 c
a

re
rs

’ 

e
n

ti
tl

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 d
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

o
r 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

b
a

ck
 o

ff
ic

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

Z
e

ro
 B

a
se

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

. 
 A

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

so
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 

w
il

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

 i
n

p
u

t 
fr

o
m

 f
ro

n
t 

li
n

e
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 i
n

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 

•
 

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
v

ie
w

s.
  A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
s 

to
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l m
e

th
o

d
s 

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

. 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 s
o

m
e

 r
o

le
s 

m
a

y 
re

su
lt

, 
w

it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

ll
. 

•
 

 E
li

g
ib

il
it

y
 C

ri
te

ri
a

. 
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l c

ri
te

ri
a

 a
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
re

vi
si

o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

li
ke

ly
 t

o
 r

e
su

lt
 in

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
ju

st
 l

o
ca

l 
p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

. 
 M

e
a

n
w

h
il

e
, 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l 

re
-l

a
u

n
ch

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

it
 is

 b
e

in
g

 f
o

ll
o

w
e

d
 r

o
b

u
st

ly
 in

 a
ll

 p
a

rt
s 

o
f 

th
e

 s
ys

te
m

. 
 

•
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s-
b

a
se

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
. 

 W
h

il
st

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

li
sa

ti
o

n
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

 i
n

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 e

xt
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

se
 

a
n

d
 s

tr
e

a
m

li
n

e
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

to
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
n

te
rf

a
ce

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

P
ri

m
e

 P
ro

vi
d

e
rs

. 
 N

e
w

 p
a

ym
e

n
t 

sy
st

e
m

s 

a
n

d
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

b
e

 n
e

e
d

e
d

. 
 I

t 
is

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

T
ru

st
 s

ta
ff

 w
il

l 
co

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
n

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

-b
a

se
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

b
e

 p
a

ss
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 P
ri

m
e

 P
ro

vi
d

e
r 

to
 f

u
lf

il
 in

 a
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 w

a
y 

a
ft

e
r 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l a

n
d

 

th
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
y.

  T
h

is
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 w
il

l i
m

p
a

ct
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 o
n

 s
o

m
e

 r
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 w

il
l h

a
ve

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

tr
a

in
in

g
 i

m
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

a
ll

. 

 

O
p

ti
m

is
in

g
 u

se
 o

f 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d

 s
k

il
ls

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

ch
a

n
g

in
g

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 

•
 

W
o

rk
 a

n
a

ly
si

s.
  D

e
ta

il
e

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 b

y 
th

e
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

b
e

in
g

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i

n
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 g
e

t 
a

 c
le

a
r 

p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

ty
p

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
xi

ty
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

ke
n

 b
y

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

st
a

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
im

e
 t

a
ke

n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 c
a

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir

e
ct

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

w
il

l 
co

ll
e

ct
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

im
e

 a
tt

ri
b

u
te

d
 t

o
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
su

p
e

rv
is

io
n

, 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
n

o
n

-d
ir

e
ct

 c
li

e
n

t 
a

ct
iv

it
y.

  T
h

is
 in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

e
vi

d
e

n
ce

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
o

 b
a

se
 a

n
y

 f
u

tu
re

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 r
e

st
ru

ct
u

re
, 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

h
yp

o
th

e
si

s 
b

e
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
5

0
:5

0
 r

a
ti

o
 o

f 

re
g

is
te

re
d

:n
o

n
-r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 m

a
y 

n
e

e
d

 a
d

ju
st

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 li

g
h

t 
o

f 
co

m
p

le
xi

ty
 a

n
d

 r
is

k.
 

Page 62



 
1
2

•
 

R
e

a
li

g
n

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
s 

in
d

ic
a

te
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
b

ta
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
si

s.
  

T
h

is
 m

a
y

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 j

o
b

 d
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
so

m
e

 s
ta

ff
, 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y 
re

q
u

ir
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

•
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

. 
 A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

so
ci

a
l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 D

P
T

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 T
ru

st
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 N
H

S
 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 C

a
re

 A
ct

 (
to

 p
e

o
p

le
 u

n
d

e
r 

6
5

) 
a

n
d

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
ct

 (
a

ll
).

  T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

co
m

p
le

x 
co

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 w

h
ic

h
 im

p
e

d
e

 c
le

a
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y.
  

T
h

e
se

 n
e

e
d

 u
rg

e
n

t 
re

so
lu

ti
o

n
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 a
d

d
re

ss
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

is
su

e
s.

 

•
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

cy
 D

u
ty

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 T
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o

d
e

l 
fo

r 
o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 i
s 

n
o

t 
su

st
a

in
a

b
le

 in
 t

h
e

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
. 

 A
 r

e
vi

e
w

 w
il

l 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 

p
re

p
a

re
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
th

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 a
d

d
 r

e
si

li
e

n
ce

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

h
il

st
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

fi
t 

w
it

h
 d

a
yt

im
e

 a
d

u
lt

 a
n

d
 c

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 

T
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 m

o
d

e
l 

w
il

l 
b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 1
4

/1
5

. 

•
 

A
n

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 m
o

d
e

l 
to

 b
u

il
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 l

o
ca

l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

•
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 e

v
e

n
ts

. 
 F

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

co
n

fe
re

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
sh

o
p

s 
in

 1
3

/1
4

, 
th

e
 T

ru
st

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

w
o

rk
 s

ta
ff

 in
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 C
P

T
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 H

C
P

C
 

re
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

. 
 I

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 lo
ca

l 
e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 a

n
d

 k
e

e
p

 c
o

st
s 

d
o

w
n

, 
so

ci
a

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
il

l 
b

e
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 h

a
v

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

in
p

u
t 

to
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
se

. 

•
 

S
u

cc
e

ss
io

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

cr
u

it
m

e
n

t.
  T

h
e

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 s
o

ci
a

l 
w

o
rk

 q
u

a
li

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 O
p

e
n

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 b

y
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
ir

 a
ca

d
e

m
ic

 s
tu

d
ie

s.
  I

t 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

st
u

d
e

n
ts

. 

•
 

A
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 F

o
cu

s 
G

ro
u

p
 w

il
l 

b
e

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

 v
o

ic
e

 f
o

r 
so

ci
a

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

is
su

e
s 

 

3
 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t  

  

A
S

C
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

Fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

A
S

C
O

F)
 a

n
d

 O
th

e
r 

K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 M

e
a

su
re

s 

T
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

A
S

C
O

F)
 is

 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt

h
’s

 m
a

in
 t

o
o

l 
fo

r 
se

tt
in

g
 d

ir
e

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

in
g

 

tr
a

n
sp

a
re

n
cy

 i
n

 a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
. 

 T
h

e
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
a

s 
fi

rs
t 

p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 i

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 a

n
d

 s
in

ce
 t

h
e

n
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 k
e

p
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
co

n
st

a
n

t 
re

vi
e

w
 

to
 e

n
su

re
 a

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

th
a

t 
re

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
tt

e
r 

m
o

st
 t

o
 u

se
rs

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

. 
 

T
h

e
 A

S
A

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

s 
a

ll
 t

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 in

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 A
S

C
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

Fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

th
e

r 
m

e
tr

ic
s 

th
a

t 
e

m
p

h
a

si
se

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

r-
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
cy

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
  

F
o

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
e

a
ch

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 p
la

ce
d

 

w
it

h
in

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 4

 A
S

C
O

F 
D

o
m

a
in

s 
a

n
d

 a
n

 o
v

e
rv

ie
w

 is
 g

iv
e

n
 b

e
lo

w
 (

se
e

 A
n

n
e

x 
D

 f
o

r 
th

e
 A

S
C

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

).
 

    

Page 63



 
1
3

3
.1
 

D
o

m
a

in
 1

: 
E

n
h

a
n

ci
n

g
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

li
fe

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s 

T
h

is
 r

e
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
th

e
y

 r
e

ce
iv

e
. 

 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
it

 f
o

cu
se

s 
o

n
 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 b
y

 a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

ct
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
ve

 o
n

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

. 
 I

t 
co

ve
rs

 i
ss

u
e

s 
o

f 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
li

sa
ti

o
n

, 
ch

o
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

co
n

tr
o

l,
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ce

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

. 

 A
 n

e
w

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

in
d

ic
a

to
r 

1
C

 i
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
, 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 u
si

n
g

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 w

h
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 s

e
lf

-d
ir

e
ct

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 

a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 r

e
ce

iv
in

g
 d

ir
e

ct
 p

a
y

m
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 w

il
l 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

m
e

a
su

re
 1

C
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
li

se
d

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

 W
h

a
t 

su
cc

e
ss

 w
il

l 
lo

o
k

 l
ik

e
: 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 c

a
n

 li
ve

 t
h

e
ir

 li
ve

s 
to

 t
h

e
 f

u
ll

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

ce
 b

y
 a

cc
e

ss
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

ce
iv

in
g

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y

 

n
e

e
d

 i
t 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 c
a

n
 b

a
la

n
ce

 t
h

e
ir

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

o
le

s 
a

n
d

 m
a

in
ta

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
si

re
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 c

a
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 w

h
a

t,
 h

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 is

 d
e

li
ve

re
d

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 c

a
n

 s
o

ci
a

li
se

 a
s 

m
u

ch
 a

s 
th

e
y 

w
is

h
 t

o
 a

vo
id

 b
e

in
g

 l
o

n
e

ly
 o

r 
is

o
la

te
d

. 

 

3
.2
 

D
o

m
a

in
 2

: 
D

e
la

y
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
ca

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

  

T
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 is
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 b
y

 p
re

ve
n

ti
n

g
 n

e
e

d
s 

fr
o

m
 in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 w
h

e
re

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
, 

o
r 

a
re

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

, 
so

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 n

e
e

d
s.

  I
t 

is
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
e

a
rl

y
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 t
o

 p
re

ve
n

t 
o

r 
d

e
la

y
 n

e
e

d
s 

fr
o

m
 a

ri
si

n
g

, 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
e

co
v

e
ry

, 

re
h

a
b

il
it

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 a
 n

e
e

d
 i

s 
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 o

r 
a

ft
e

r 
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

ve
n

t.
 

 M
a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
re

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

  T
h

e
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
re

in
fo

rc
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

 s
tr

o
n

g
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 s

in
ce

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

o
f 

p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
 d

e
la

yi
n

g
 o

r 
a

v
o

id
in

g
 c

li
n

ic
a

l i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

r 

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

a
re

 p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
. 

 S
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 h

a
s 

a
 k

e
y

 r
o

le
 i

n
 a

v
o

id
in

g
 i

n
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

a
re

 p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 im

p
a

ct
 n

e
g

a
ti

ve
ly

 o
n

 

re
co

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 m

o
re

 c
o

st
ly

. 

 A
 n

e
w

 m
e

a
su

re
 2

D
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

sh
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s:

 s
e

q
u

e
l 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
.  

T
h

is
 m

e
a

su
re

 r
e

fl
e

ct
s 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

o
f 

th
o

se
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 s

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ce

 (
o

ft
e

n
 d

e
sc

ri
b

e
d

 a
s 

re
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
h

a
b

il
it

a
ti

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s)

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r,

 w
h

e
re

 n
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
q

u
e

st
 w

a
s 

m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 

 W
h

a
t 

su
cc

e
ss

 w
il

l 
lo

o
k

 l
ik

e
: 

•
 

E
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 h

a
s 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 e

n
jo

y
 t

h
e

 b
e

st
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 li

fe
 a

n
d

 b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

ca
re

 n
e

e
d

s 
w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

Page 64



 
1
4

•
 

E
a

rl
ie

r 
d

ia
g

n
o

si
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 w
ill

 r
e

d
u

ce
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
cy

 o
n

 i
n

te
n

si
v

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

•
 

W
h

e
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
re

 r
e

co
ve

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 b
e

in
g

 il
l,

 t
h

a
t 

re
co

v
e

ry
 h

a
p

p
e

n
s 

in
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

o
 

re
g

a
in

 t
h

e
ir

 h
e

a
lt

h
, 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

ce
 a

s 
q

u
ic

kl
y

 a
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

 

3
.3
 

D
o

m
a

in
 3

: 
 E

n
su

ri
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

T
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fo

r 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 i
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 i

n
fl

u
e

n
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
ce

iv
e

. 
 A

 k
e

y 
e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 is

 h
o

w
 e

a
sy

 it
 i

s 

to
 f

in
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 a

re
 t

re
a

te
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
  S

p
e

ci
fi

c 
q

u
a

li
ty

 d
a

ta
 i

s 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

m
e

 b
y

 f
o

r 

th
is

 d
o

m
a

in
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
ro

m
 l

o
ca

l 
su

rv
e

ys
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
. 

 
 

 
A

 n
e

w
 m

e
a

su
re

 3
E

 I
m

p
ro

vi
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 c
a

re
 i

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
su

re
 r

e
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 

 
m

e
a

su
re

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

in
te

gr
a

te
d

 c
a

re
. 

W
h

a
t 

su
cc

e
ss

 w
il

l 
lo

o
k

 l
ik

e
: 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
 u

se
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 s

a
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 
ca

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 f
e

e
l 

th
e

y
 a

re
 r

e
sp

e
ct

e
d

 a
s 

e
q

u
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 c
a

re
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
m

, 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
y 

a
re

 e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

o
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y

 n
e

e
d

 h
e

lp
 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
re

rs
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

ir
 d

ig
n

it
y

 i
s 

re
sp

e
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
y

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 is

 s
e

n
si

ti
ve

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 

 

3
.4
 

D
o

m
a

in
 4

: 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

se
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
m

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
m

 f
ro

m
 a

v
o

id
a

b
le

 h
a

rm
 

T
h

is
 d

o
m

a
in

 c
o

ve
rs

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

ls
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
y

st
e

m
 –

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

fe
. 

 A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

 s
a

fe
ty

 n
e

t 
w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 r
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

e
m

 t
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 w

id
e

r 
a

sp
ir

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
ro

te
ct

in
g

 f
ro

m
 a

v
o

id
a

b
le

 h
a

rm
 a

n
d

 c
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i

n
 a

 s
a

fe
 

a
n

d
 s

e
n

si
ti

ve
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
re

sp
e

ct
s 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 c

h
o

ic
e

s.
  I

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
sa

fe
ty

, 
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 n
u

m
e

ri
c 

m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

ts
, 

it
 is

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 

q
u

a
li

ta
ti

v
e

ly
 o

r 
q

u
a

n
ti

ta
ti

ve
ly

 m
e

a
su

re
 e

v
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
e

n
e

d
. 

 I
t 

is
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

d
 m

o
re

 w
o

rk
 w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 d
o

n
e

 o
n

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ri
n

g
 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 d
o

m
a

in
. 

 A
s 

w
it

h
 C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 i

s 
in

 i
ss

u
e

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

 W
h

a
t 

su
cc

e
ss

 w
il

l 
lo

o
k

 l
ik

e
: 

•
 

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 e

n
jo

y
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
sa

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 f

e
e

l 
se

cu
re

 

•
 

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 a

re
 f

re
e

 f
ro

m
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
b

u
se

, 
h

a
ra

ss
m

e
n

t,
 n

e
g

le
ct

 a
n

d
 s

e
lf

-h
a

rm
 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 a

re
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
v

o
id

a
b

le
 d

e
a

th
, 

d
is

e
a

se
 a

n
d

 in
ju

ri
e

s 

  

Page 65



 
1
5

3
.5
 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

M
a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

 A
S

C
O

F
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
re

 d
e

ri
v

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

A
S

C
 S

u
rv

e
y 

o
r 

C
a

re
r’

s 
Su

rv
e

y.
  A

s 
su

ch
, 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
s 

o
n

ly
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 o
n

ce
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

  T
h

e
 a

b
il

it
y

 e
xi

st
s 

to
 b

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

g
a

in
st

 o
th

e
r 

lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
 f

o
rm

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
’s

 P
o

li
cy

 D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 W
h

e
re

 p
o

ss
ib

le
, 

h
o

w
e

ve
r,

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
s 

m
e

a
su

re
d

 o
n

 a
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
si

s 
(s

e
e

 A
n

n
e

x 
B

).
 

 

3
.6
 

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 t
o

 L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 t
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 

g
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

in
 A

p
ri

l 2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 a
d

vi
se

d
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
in

g
 f

e
n

ce
d

 f
o

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 

 

3
.7
 

S
e

ct
o

r 
Le

d
 I

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 P
e

e
r 

R
e

v
ie

w
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

In
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 t

h
e

 s
o

u
th

 w
e

st
 r

e
g

io
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
o

p
t 

a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
co

-o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 1
6

 L
A

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

W
 A

D
A

S
S

 b
ra

n
ch

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
 s

e
ct

o
r 

le
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  T
h

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 “

T
a

ki
n

g
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

” 
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 (
LG

A
).

   

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
st

, 
th

e
 s

e
ct

o
r 

le
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

se
d

 b
y

: 

•
 

G
iv

in
g

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 f
o

cu
s 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

, 
th

e
ir

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

•
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 a
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g 

•
 

Lo
o

ki
n

g
 a

t 
th

e
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

•
 

S
e

tt
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

s 
o

n
e

 o
f 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 e

xc
e

ll
e

n
ce

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 t

o
 s

e
lf

-a
ss

u
re

 

•
 

A
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 o

p
e

n
n

e
ss

 a
n

d
 h

o
n

e
st

y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

co
-o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 1

6
 L

A
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

e
e

r 
ch

a
ll

e
n

g
e

, 
sh

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

, 
sh

a
ri

n
g

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
p

e
e

r 
re

vi
e

w
 o

n
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 t
a

ke
s 

p
la

ce
 in

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

. 

 

3
.8
 

Jo
in

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 N

e
e

d
s 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(J
S

N
A

) 
 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 u
se

 t
h

e
 J

SN
A

 a
s 

a
 k

e
y

 s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 3
.9
 

B
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

s 
w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

T
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 d

ir
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

d
u

lt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

, 
a

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 i

n
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
, 

is
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 s

e
v

e
ra

l 
b

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

p
o

rt
s 

p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
2

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
N

H
S 

a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 d

a
ta

b
a

se
s.

 

•
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 O

ff
ic

e
 –

 R
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 C

a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
C

o
st

s 

Page 66



 
1
6

•
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 U
se

 o
f 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

T
o

w
a

rd
s 

E
xc

e
ll

e
n

ce
 in

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l C
a

re
 (

T
E

A
S

C
) 

B
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
in

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

In
st

it
u

te
 o

f 
P

u
b

li
c 

C
a

re
 (

IP
C

) 
B

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

in
g

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

T
h

e
 f

ir
st

 t
h

re
e

 g
iv

e
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 li

st
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
re

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
s;

 t
h

e
 f

o
u

rt
h

 w
a

s 
a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 c

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

d
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 b
y

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
  T

h
e

 D
r 

F
o

st
e

r 
N

H
S 

d
a

ta
b

a
se

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 T
o

o
lk

it
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

cc
e

ss
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
ve

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
su

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

a
re

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 b
e

lo
w

: 

 F
in

d
in

g
 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 

A
S

C
 S

u
rv

e
y

 -
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 

F
in

d
in

g
s 

•
 

O
ve

ra
ll

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 f

o
r 

th
e

 o
ve

r 
6

5
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

a
s 

 2
6

t
h
 h

ig
h

e
st

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y;
 t

h
e

 1
8

 

–
 6

4
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 q

u
a

lit
y 

o
f 

li
fe

 w
a

s 
b

e
lo

w
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 (
1

3
3

rd
  

o
u

t 
o

f 
 1

4
9

 lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s)
 

•
 

H
ig

h
 l

e
ve

l 
o

f 
sa

ti
sf

a
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
cl

ie
n

ts
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 

•
 

C
li

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

l i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 d

a
il

y 
li

ve
s 

•
 

 A
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
cl

ie
n

ts
 (

5
7

.7
%

) 
fi

n
d

 a
cc

e
ss

in
g

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
ce

 e
a

sy
 

co
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 (

5
5

.8
%

).
  

A
 s

m
a

ll
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 (
0

.6
%

) 
a

re
 

h
ig

h
ly

 d
is

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 c
a

re
; 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 i
s 

1
.1

%
 

•
 

A
 s

li
g

h
tl

y 
h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
cl

ie
n

ts
 f

e
e

l 
u

n
sa

fe
; 

7
.3

 %
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
 

6
.6

%
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
w

e
st

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
 6

.2
%

 

•
 

 1
8

.8
%

 o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 v
ie

w
 t

h
e

ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
s 

“b
a

d
” 

o
r 

“v
e

ry
 b

a
d

”;
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 i
s 

 

1
9

.3
%

, 
th

e
 S

o
u

th
w

e
st

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 i

s 
1

8
.9

%
 

C
a

re
 H

o
m

e
s 

•
 

C
a

re
 h

o
m

e
 p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 b

y 
2

7
%

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 

’0
7

 a
n

d
 N

o
v’

1
3

 f
ro

m
 9

6
0

 t
o

 

6
9

7
 c

li
e

n
ts

, 
i.

e
.,

 4
 –

 5
 %

 p
/a

. 

•
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

n
u

rs
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

h
o

m
e

 c
li

e
n

ts
 is

 l
o

w
. 

 T
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 is

 a
 

2
9

:7
1

 r
a

ti
o

. 
 T

h
e

 T
o

rb
a

y 
ra

ti
o

 i
s 

cl
o

se
r 

to
 1

1
:8

9
. 

 O
n

e
 f

a
ct

o
r 

in
 t

h
is

 i
s 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

to
 b

e
 t

h
e

 

d
ir

e
ct

 i
n

p
u

t 
o

f 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y 

n
u

rs
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re
 t

e
a

m
s 

is
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

w
it

h
in

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
ca

re
 h

o
m

e
s.

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
a

se
d

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

•
 

 1
3

%
 o

f 
cl

ie
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 T

o
rb

a
y 

re
ce

iv
e

 l
e

ss
 t

h
a

n
 2

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

d
o

m
ic

il
ia

ry
 c

a
re

 e
a

ch
 w

e
e

k.
  

T
h

is
 i

s 
in

 li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
1

0
.4

%
. 

 

•
 

 2
9

.8
%

 o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 i

n
 e

xc
e

ss
 o

f 
1

0
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
d

o
m

ic
il

ia
ry

 c
a

re
 e

a
ch

 w
e

e
k.

  
T

h
is

 i
s 

w
e

ll
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 o
f 

4
3

%
. 

 T
h

is
 is

 s
u

rp
ri

si
n

g
 w

h
e

n
 t

a
ki

n
g

 a
cc

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

re
d

u
ce

d
 r

e
li

a
n

ce
 o

n
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
o

in
ts

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 

in
te

rm
e

d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 B

a
y 

w
h

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
se

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

Page 67



 
1
7

F
in

d
in

g
 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 

cl
ie

n
ts

. 

•
 

A
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
cl

ie
n

ts
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 2
 –

 5
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
ca

re
; 

2
9

%
 a

g
a

in
st

 a
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2

0
%

. 
T

h
e

 I
P

C
 r

e
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

te
d

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
a

 R
e

a
b

le
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a

m
 t

h
a

t 

co
u

ld
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 c

li
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 lo

w
e

r 
le

ve
l 

n
e

e
d

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

y 
n

o
t 

a
u

to
m

a
ti

ca
ll

y 
h

a
ve

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 

th
e

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re
 t

e
a

m
s 

w
h

o
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

n
e

e
d

s.
   

C
a

re
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

C
o

st
s 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 is
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 a
 o

n
e

 o
f 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

: 
 

•
 

T
o

rb
a

y’
s 

u
n

it
 c

o
st

 f
o

r 
a

n
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
 i

s 
in

 li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ve

ra
g

e
 

a
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 N

A
O

 R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 i

n
 A

u
g

u
st

 ‘
1

2
 

•
 

T
h

e
 U

se
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

re
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

ts
 T

o
rb

a
y 

a
s 

h
a

vi
n

g
 h

ig
h

 c
a

re
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

co
st

s.
  S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
co

st
s 

a
re

 e
xp

la
in

e
d

 b
y:

 

�
 

A
n

 i
n

a
b

il
it

y 
to

 a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
 c

a
re

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
st

s 
a

g
a

in
st

 i
n

-h
o

u
se

 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
–

 5
0

%
 o

f 
LA

s 
h

a
ve

 t
h

e
 a

b
il

it
y 

to
 d

o
 t

h
is

 

�
 

C
a

re
 h

o
m

e
 f

e
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
a

y 
a

re
 l

o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

o
 c

a
re

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

co
st

s 
a

u
to

m
a

ti
ca

ll
y 

fo
rm

 a
 l

a
rg

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
st

 p
o

o
l 

�
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 r
e

li
a

n
ce

 o
n

 c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
 p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 i
s 

li
k

e
ly

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

fr
o

n
tl

in
e

 s
ta

ff
 t

im
e

, 
e

.g
,.

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

r 
cr

is
e

s,
 m

o
re

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

re
vi

e
w

s,
 e

tc
. 

A
cu

te
 C

a
re

 R
e

la
te

d
 

•
 

 5
0

%
 o

f 
cl

ie
n

ts
 d

ie
 a

t 
“h

o
m

e
” 

–
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ve
ra

g
e

 is
 b

e
lo

w
 4

4
%

  

•
 

W
h

o
le

 s
ys

te
m

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 g

o
o

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 w
in

te
r 

p
re

ss
u

re
s 

p
e

ri
o

d
 

•
 

A
ve

ra
g

e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

st
a

y 
fo

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 o
ve

r 
6

5
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 a

s 
a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 a
re

 t
h

e
 

lo
w

e
st

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
st

 

•
 

P
re

vi
o

u
s 

g
o

o
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 a
d

m
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
 r

a
te

s 
h

a
s 

re
ce

n
tl

y 

b
e

e
n

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

u
b

li
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
e

vi
se

d
 d

a
ta

 s
e

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
ke

s 
co

m
p

a
ri

so
n

s 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
. 

 W
o

rk
 i

s 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y 

to
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 d

a
ta

 s
e

ts
 t

o
 r

e
so

lv
e

 a
n

y 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 t

re
n

d
s.

 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 r
e

la
te

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

•
 

 8
9

.6
7

%
 o

f 
vu

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

li
vi

n
g

 f
ro

m
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
8

6
%

 (
2

0
1

2
/1

3
).

 S
o

 f
a

r 
in

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 t
h

e
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 9
0

.1
%

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
8

6
%

 (
Q

tr
 1

 a
n

d
 2

 o
f 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

) 

  

Page 68



 
1
8

3
.1

0
 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
R

is
k

 S
h

a
re

 a
n

d
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
: 

 

T
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 r
is

k 
sh

a
ri

n
g

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

w
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 u

n
ti

l 
th

e
 n

e
w

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

a
re

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 is

 f
o

rm
a

ll
y 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 t
ra

n
sf

e
r 

in
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o

 T
ru

st
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 I
C

O
, 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 i

s 
th

a
t 

a
 r

e
vi

se
d

 r
is

k
 s

h
a

re
d

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

st
it

u
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
th

a
t 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
tr

a
n

sf
e

r 
in

to
 

th
e

 n
e

w
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

. 

T
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

st
il

l t
o

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
ie

s,
  i

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 r
e

vi
se

d
 r

is
k

 s
h

a
re

 w
il

l i
n

v
o

lv
e

 a
 5

0
%

/5
0

%
 r

is
k

 s
h

a
re

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 I

C
O

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
e

rs
, 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
C

G
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

th
e

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 r
is

k
 i

n
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 

co
n

tr
a

ct
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 I
C

O
. 

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
u

n
ti

l 
re

vi
se

d
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

xi
ti

n
g

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
a

p
p

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 a
ss

u
m

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y 
fo

r 

b
o

th
 i

n
-h

o
u

se
 L

D
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
se

ct
o

r 
co

m
m

is
si

o
n

e
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
, 

w
h

il
st

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 a
ss

u
m

e
s 

th
e

 r
is

k
 f

o
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
co

st
s.

   

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
ri

sk
s 

to
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 T
ru

st
 in

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 r

is
k

s 
a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 

A
n

n
e

x 
C

 a
n

d
 in

cl
u

d
e

 i
ss

u
e

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
: 

•
 

O
rd

in
a

ry
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ce

 

•
 

R
is

k
 o

f 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 t
o

 d
e

li
ve

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 

•
 

C
a

re
 h

o
m

e
 f

e
e

s 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 c
o

n
ce

rn
 

•
 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

 4
. 

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 D

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 K

e
y

 D
e

ci
si

o
n

s  

 

4
.1

. 
T

h
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

re
it

e
ra

te
s 

se
ct

io
n

 2
2

.3
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t,
 i.

e
.,

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 m
a

y 
n

o
t 

m
a

ke
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

u
n

il
a

te
ra

ll
y 

if
 t

h
e

y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

cr
it

e
ri

a
 o

f 
a

 ‘
k

e
y

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

’.
 

 4
.2

. 
K

e
y 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

re
 m

a
d

e
 b

y 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 i

ts
 c

o
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

. 
 I

n
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 8

 o
f 

th
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
 k

e
y

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

is
 d

e
fi

n
e

d
 a

s 
a

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

xe
rc

is
e

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

fu
n

ct
io

n
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

li
k

e
ly

 t
o

: 

•
 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 i

n
cu

rr
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
 o

r 
m

a
ki

n
g

 o
f 

sa
vi

n
g

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 £
2

5
0

,0
0

0
 

•
 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 a

n
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

%
 o

r 
m

a
y 

ce
a

se
 a

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 

•
 

a
ff

e
ct

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 i
n

-h
o

u
se

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 b

e
 o

u
ts

o
u

rc
e

d
 o

r 
vi

ce
 v

e
rs

a
 

•
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
cr

it
e

ri
a

 s
ta

te
d

 w
it

h
in

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 8
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

 

Page 69



 
1
9

W
h

e
n

 a
g

re
e

in
g

 w
h

a
t 

co
n

st
it

u
te

s 
a

 k
e

y
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
, 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

p
u

b
li

c 
in

te
re

st
 in

 t
h

e
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
e

 l
e

ve
l 

o
f 

in
te

re
st

 t
h

e
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
t 

is
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 d

e
ci

si
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
o

 b
e

 k
e

y.
 

 

5
. 

S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

   

 

T
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 i
s 

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 le
v

e
ls

 li
st

e
d

 i
n

 A
n

n
e

x 
B

 a
lo

n
g

 w
it

h
 a

n
y

 l
o

ca
l 

a
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 1

s
t
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

A
S

S
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

. 
 

 

 
2

0
1

1
-1

2
 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

 
2

0
1

3
-1

4
 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 

B
a

se
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
3

9
,0

8
9

 
4

0
,0

3
5

 
  

  
  

 4
0

,3
3

9
  

3
8

,2
7

3
 

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

G
o

vt
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 

 2
,3

2
2

 
 2

,2
2

4
 

  
  

  
  

 2
,9

6
6

 
2

,9
6

6
 

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
4

1
,4

1
1

 
4

2
,2

5
9

 
4

3
,3

0
5

 
4

1
,2

3
9

 

JC
E

S 
  

  
 5

4
1

 
  

  
 5

6
0

 
  

  
4

9
9

 
4

9
8

 

T
O

T
A

L 
4

1
,9

5
2

 
4

2
,8

1
9

 
4

3
,8

0
4

 
4

1
,7

3
7

 

 

6
. 

C
li

e
n

t 
C

h
a

rg
e

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
  

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
 

 

 
R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

ch
a

rg
e

s 
to

 b
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 e
a

ch
 A

p
ri

l 
a

s 
d

ir
e

ct
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
R

A
G

 (
C

h
a

rg
in

g
 f

o
r 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 G

u
id

e
).

 

 

C
li

e
n

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

b
o

th
 l

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
rt

 s
ta

y
 p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
ca

p
it

a
l 

a
n

d
 i

n
co

m
e

. 

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

n
o

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

li
e

n
ts

 u
n

d
e

r 
In

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 C
a

re
 o

r 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 C

a
re

. 

 

T
h

e
 C

a
re

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 c
li

e
n

ts
 i

n
 r

e
ce

ip
t 

o
f 

a
 c

h
a

rg
e

a
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 a

 f
u

ll
 w

e
lf

a
re

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

ch
e

ck
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 F

A
B

 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 a

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

cc
o

rd
a

n
ce

 w
it

h
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
e

a
lt

h
 c

ir
cu

la
r 

LA
C

(2
0

0
1

) 
3

2
. 

 N
o

n
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

A
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IP
 s

ch
e

m
e

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
, 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l b

ri
n

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 f
o

r 
re

vi
se

d
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
. 

    

Page 70



 
2
0

7
 

R
o

le
s 

a
n

d
  

R
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
ie

s 

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(D

A
S

S
) 

–
 h

a
s 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 h

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
to

 

th
e

 T
ru

st
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s.
  

S
h

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
fo

r 
T

o
rb

a
y

 f
u

lf
il

li
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e

 D
A

S
S

 r
o

le
. 

 T
h

e
 D

A
S

S
 i

s 
a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 s
e

v
e

n
 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
f 

th
e

 r
o

le
 b

u
t 

w
il

l 
d

e
le

g
a

te
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 
P

ra
ct

ic
e

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

to
 t

h
e

 T
ru

st
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
u

ty
 D

A
S

S.
  S

h
e

 d
e

le
g

a
te

s 
a

sp
e

ct
s 

o
f 

th
e

 f
in

a
n

ci
a

l m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 r
o

le
 t

o
 

th
e

 F
in

a
n

ce
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
o

f 
T

SD
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

xe
cu

ti
v

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a

n
ce

 a
t 

T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 b

u
t 

re
ta

in
s 

o
v

e
ra

ll
 a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y 
fo

r 
th

e
 A

S
C

 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 E

x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

- 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 p

o
li

ti
ca

l 
st

e
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
 a

d
u

lt
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

. 
 T

o
 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
/m

o
n

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 d
ri

ve
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
. 

 

•
 

E
x

e
cu

ti
v

e
 H

e
a

d
 F

in
a

n
ce

 –
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 a

 l
e

a
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 

 T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
T

ru
st

 C
h

ie
f 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(C
O

O
) 

–
 h

a
s 

d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
ru

st
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 m
e

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 T
ru

st
’s

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

Z
o

n
e

 b
a

se
d

 t
e

a
m

s.
  

T
h

e
 C

O
O

 w
il

l 
ta

k
e

 l
e

a
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
o

f 
F

in
a

n
ce

 –
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 a

 l
e

a
d

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

ll
o

ca
te

d
 t

o
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

. 
 T

h
is

 w
il

l i
n

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

e
 D

A
SS

 i
n

 a
n

a
ly

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 

in
te

rp
re

ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
, 

a
g

a
in

st
 l

o
ca

ll
y

 a
g

re
e

 K
P

Is
 a

n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
b

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

in
g

 d
a

ta
, 

a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

t 
se

tt
in

g
, 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

. 
 

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
A

ss
o

ci
a

te
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

–
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l l

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 f

o
r 

so
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 l

e
a

d
 o

n
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
o

f 
ca

re
, 

sa
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

  
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
  

•
 

R
o

le
 o

f 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

p
le

x
 C

a
re

 –
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 a
d

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 l

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 i

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

n
e

e
d

s,
 t

h
e

 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 i

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 O
rd

in
a

ry
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ce

, 
th

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

ju
d

ic
ia

l 
re

vi
e

w
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

in
 

re
g

a
rd

 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

ca
re

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

o
r 

ve
xa

ti
o

u
s 

co
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
 

 

S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 (

S
C

P
B

) 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

C
G

 in
te

n
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
 j

o
in

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 I
C

O
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l i

n
cl

u
d

e
 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

in
g

 r
e

vi
se

d
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l i

n
cl

u
d

e
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 T
h

e
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 B
o

a
rd

 w
il

l 
b

e
 r

e
vi

se
d

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

se
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
 

Page 71



 
2
1

T
h

is
 S

C
P

B
 i

s 
o

ve
rs

e
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
e

n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
 T

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 w
il

l 
d

ri
ve

 a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s.

  
It

s 

T
e

rm
s 

o
f 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 a
re

a
s:

 

�
 

T
o

 a
ss

is
t 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
ir

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

te
xt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 

T
ru

st
 f

a
ce

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

ch
a

n
g

in
g

 p
u

b
li

c 
se

ct
o

r 
re

fo
rm

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 p
u

b
li

c 
re

so
u

rc
e

s.
   

�
 

T
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

p
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
vi

e
w

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
st

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

ti
n

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
o

se
 

a
re

a
s 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

se
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
n

y
 c

o
st

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

o
v

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

is
. 

�
 

T
o

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

vi
e

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
/o

r 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 in
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

e
n

ch
m

a
rk

in
g

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.

 

�
 

T
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

a
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
s 

a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y

 i
n

-y
e

a
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

co
n

ce
rn

, 
ra

is
in

g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 w

id
e

r 
a

u
d

ie
n

ce
, 

a
s 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

. 
  

�
 

T
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
n

d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

d
ir

e
ct

iv
e

s 
tr

a
n

sl
a

ti
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
to

 c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

in
g

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
va

l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

ru
m

s.
  T

h
is

 w
il

l i
n

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 i

n
it

ia
l 

li
st

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
a

s 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

-1
5

 a
n

d
 o

n
w

a
rd

s.
 

�
 

T
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
n

d
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 f

u
tu

re
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

�
 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 ‘

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
cc

o
u

n
t’

. 
 

�
 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

/b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

u
se

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s 

o
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s:

 

 

•
 

A
d

u
lt

s 
P

o
li

cy
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
p

 
•
 

A
D

A
S

S
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

•
 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

cr
u

ti
n

y 
•
 

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 t
e

a
m

s 
w

it
h

in
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
-B

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
 

•
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 G
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 

•
 

Jo
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 (

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

 

 

Page 72



   
 

 

A
n
n
e
x
 A

 

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
4

/
1

5
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
5

/
1

6
: 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

   

 N
a
m
e
: 

C
a
ro
li
n
e
 T
a
y
lo
r 
/ 
D
r 
S
o
n
ja
 M
a
n
to
n
 
P
o
s
it
io
n
: 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 /
 C
h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 U
n
it
: 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
: 
T
o
rb
a
y
 &
S
o
u
th
e
rn
 D
e
v
o
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L
e
a
d
: 

C
ll
r 
S
c
o
u
le
r 

D
a
te
: 

6
th
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

 A
t 

a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t

im
e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 D
e
v
o
n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t 

(T
S

D
H

C
T

) 
is

 w
o
rk

in
g
, 

o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
o
 

c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 a

ro
u
n
d
 2

,2
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 T

o
rb

a
y
. 

  
A

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 a

 t
h
ir
d
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
re

d
 f
o
r 

in
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
o
r 

n
u
rs

in
g
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 c

a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
. 

T
o
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 p

e
rs

o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
 s

ta
ff
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 T

ru
s
t 

fi
rs

t 
o
f 

a
ll 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 e

v
e
ry

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

to
 i

d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
. 
 T

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 t
h
e
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
; 
th

is
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
n
e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l,
 t
h
e
ir
 

fa
m

ily
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
h
o
w

 t
h
is

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

ri
g
h
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
  

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
k
e
s
 s

u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

a
re

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
  
  

*T
y
p
e
 o
f 
D
e
c
is
io
n
  

•
 
In
te
rn
a
l 
 -
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 /
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

-s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

•
 
M
in
o
r 

–
 L

o
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/
in

te
re

s
t 
  

•
 
M
a
jo
r 

- 
H

ig
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t/
in

te
re

s
t 
  

  
 

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 2

Page 73



   
 

 S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
f 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
 a
n
d
 2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
. 
U
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
 p
o
s
it
io
n
: 
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 
fr

o
m

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

   

 
5
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 0
    

 
N

/A
 

 
In

 p
la

c
e
 

 N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 
 

N
/A

 

 
2
. 
R
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
: 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
in

 t
h
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

c
a
rc

it
y
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

 

9
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

 

In
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 

fr
o
m

  
1
/4

/1
4
 

 N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
s
o
m

e
 b

lo
c
k
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 A

 
le

a
d
 i
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 a

d
ju

s
t 
th

e
ir
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
th

o
d
s
. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 
to

 b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

2
. 

S
h
o
u
ld

 a
n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 b
e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

th
e
n
 a

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

Page 74



   
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

3
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
A
ll
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
la
n
s
: 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

(A
t 
a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 1

,3
9
1
 p

e
o

p
le

 
re

c
e
iv

in
g
 c

a
re

 a
t 
h
o
m

e
) 

 

1
,2

9
0
,0

0
0
 

 

4
9
8
,0

0
0
 

 

H
ig

h
 –

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

p
le

x
 C

a
re

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 t
e
a
m

 

 

 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 

 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
n
e
e
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

e
t 
w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
 

 

 X
 

 
 

4
. 
C
a
re
 H
o
m
e
 P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 &
 R
a
te
s
 

(t
h
e
re

 a
re

 7
6
5
 c

li
e
n

ts
 

p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 R

H
 /
 N

H
 c

a
re

) 

 

3
7
1
,0

0
0
 

 

3
6
0
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 
w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
o
s
e
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 

h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 b

y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 4

%
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r.

  
It
 i
s
 

a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 t
re

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 

 X
 

 
 

5
. 
E
q
u
it
a
b
le
 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

N
o
n
-r
e
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
C
h
a
rg
in
g
 

p
o
li
c
y
; 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 

p
o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

n
o
n
-r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
 

 

5
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 

T
h
e
 n

o
n
-r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 

c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 L

iv
in

g
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

 p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 

c
a
re

. 

 X
 

 
 

Page 75



   
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

 
6
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
s
: 

F
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

 

9
4
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

to
 c

e
a
s
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

la
rm

 u
n
le

s
s
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

h
a
s
 

F
a
ir
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

F
A

C
S

) 
e
lig

ib
le

 
n
e
e
d
. 

 

 X
 

 
 

 
7
. 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 A
la
rm
s
: 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

la
rm

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

. 
  

 

4
8
,0

0
0
 

 

4
8
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
 

 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
lt
e
r 

e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
la

rm
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
la

rm
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
‘c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

a
re

’.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
in

 f
u
tu

re
 a

la
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
 

T
h
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 f
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
to

 a
g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

e
t.
  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

la
rm

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
o
r 

h
e
lp

fu
l.
 

 

 
 X
 

 

Page 76



   
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

8
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

a
g
re

e
d
. 
 

 

1
5
0
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

g
re

e
d
, 
a
n
d
 p

u
t 
in

to
 

p
la

c
e
, 
fo

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

  

 X
 

 
 

9
. 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 D
is
a
b
il
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
F
u
n
d
: 

It
 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 f
u
n
d
 i
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 

 

1
7
,0

0
0
 

 

1
7
,0

0
0
 

 

L
o
w

 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fu

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

. 
  

 
 

 X
 

1
0
. 
C
a
re
r’
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

T
h
is

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
 

5
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 £

3
1
7
,0

0
0
 

  

 

1
8
,0

0
0
 

 0
 

 

L
o
w

 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

r’
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

 

 X
 

 
 

Page 77



   
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
1
. 
V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 S
e
c
to
r 
B
lo
c
k
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
: 

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

r 
re

d
u
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
it
h
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

s
e
c
to

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

T
ru

s
t 
is

 £
2
5
6
k
. 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

N
il 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 &

 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 
 

•
 

1
0
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 3

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
D

e
v
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il,

 A
g
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 B

ri
x
h
a
m

 
D

o
e
s
 C

a
re

) 
 

•
 

N
o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 4

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
V

o
c
a
l,
 

P
a
rk

v
ie

w
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 &

 2
 B

ip
o
la

r 
s
e
lf
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
) 
 

•
 

W
it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

 s
o
m

e
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 

y
e
a
rs

) 
to

 3
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 –
 R

e
la

te
, 
A

C
E

 a
n
d
 

R
e
th

in
k
  

 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
6
2
,4

0
0
 

 T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
3
,6

0
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 A

S
C

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
ta

l 
v
ia

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
. 

 
 

 X
 

1
2
. 
R
e
d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
: 

to
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
c
e
s
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 

 

 

1
2
2
,0

0
0
 

 

1
,0

9
5
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 T

ru
s
t 
w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
4
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

re
d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
s
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 
s
ti
ll 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

IA
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 e

m
b
a
rk

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
4
. 
 

 
 

 X
  

Page 78



   
 

 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 –
 O
u
tl
in
e
 d
e
ta
il
s
 

 
N
e
t 
S
a
v
in
g
s
  

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o
s
t 

In
c
lu

d
e
 b

ri
e
f 

o
u
tl
in

e
 

+
 y

e
a
r 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
  

In
 p
la
c
e
 

0
1
/0
4
/1
4
 

If
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
o
r 

la
te

r 
s
ta

te
 

d
a
te
 

R
is
k
s
 /
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 /
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

•
 

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 

•
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

•
 

K
n
o
c
k
 o

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 

d
e
c
is
io
n
* 

2
0
1
4
/1
5
 

£
  

2
0
1
5
/1
6
 

£
  

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

1
3
. 
R
e
d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
d
e
li
v
e
ry
 

m
o
d
e
l:

  
T

h
e
 T

ru
s
t 
is

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 m

a
k
in

g
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 
b
u
t 

g
iv

e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
o
d
e
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 m

a
y
 b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 n
e
w

 c
a
re

 m
o
d
e
l 

fo
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
  

 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

 

1
,0

6
9
,0

0
0
 

 

M
e
d
iu

m
/H

ig
h
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 

T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 T

ru
s
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 
n
e
w

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 b
e
 m

a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

IA
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 e

m
b
a
rk

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
4
. 

 
 

 X
 

T
o
ta

l 
s
a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
  

£
2
,8

8
8
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
s
a
v
in

g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

£
3
,3

9
5
,0

0
0
 

S
u
b
 t
o
ta
l 

£
6
,2
8
3
,0
0
0
 

  

T
O
T
A
L
  

£
7
,8
4
9
,0
0
0
 

 

£
1
,5
6
6
,0
0
0
: 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

J
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
s
h
a
re

d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 
n
e
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 

Page 79



A
n

n
e

x
 B

 

K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

  

 

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

 T
a

rg
e

t
 A

ct
u

a
l

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 

D
a

te
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c

li
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 s

e
lf

 d
ir

e
c

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

N
o

t 
in

 A
S

A
7

0
%

5
3

%
7

0
%

A
S

C
O

F
 K

P
I 

- 
th

is
 K

P
I 

w
il

l 
b

e
 k

e
p

t 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
s

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

ta
rg

e
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 

in
c

re
a

s
e

d
 t

o
 1

0
0

%
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
/1

5
 t

o
 

c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
 w

it
h

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c

a
re

rs
 a

s
s

e
s

s
e

d
3

1
%

2
8

%
3

1
%

2
6

%
3

5
%

S
e

t 
a

t 
th

e
 S

o
u

th
 w

e
s

t 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 b

u
t 

to
 b

e
 

re
v

ie
w

e
d

 o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 C
a

re
 

B
il

l 
a

re
 k

n
o

w
n

.

N
o

. 
o

f 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

N
o

t 
in

 A
S

A
7

1
7

6
9

7
6

7
6

6
4

4

T
o

 b
e

 s
e

t 
a

t 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 l
e

s
s

 6
%

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
s

s
u

m
e

d
 i

n
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
p

s
o

a
ls

 

A
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
h

a
b

/i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re
8

0
%

8
2

%
8

1
.8

%
8

2
%

A
S

C
O

F
 K

P
I 

- 
c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
, 

n
o

 

fo
re

c
a

s
t 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

7
0

%
7

0
%

6
5

%
6

8
%

7
0

%

%
 C

li
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
8

5
%

8
8

%
8

0
%

9
0

%
8

0
%

%
 P

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

e
d

s
9

5
%

9
4

%
9

5
%

9
4

%
9

5
%

T
im

e
li

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c

a
re

 p
a

c
k

a
g

e
s

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t
8

5
%

9
9

%
8

5
%

9
7

%
8

5
%

%
 A

d
u

lt
s

 w
it

h
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s
 i

n
 s

e
tt

le
d

 a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

6
0

%
6

9
%

6
9

%
6

8
%

6
9

%

%
 A

d
u

lt
s

 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it

h
 s

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 M

H
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

6
.0

%
5

.5
%

5
.5

%
2

.8
%

5
.5

%

%
 A

d
u

lt
s

 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it

h
 s

e
c

o
n

d
a

ry
 M

H
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i

n
 s

e
tt

le
d

 a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

7
0

%
7

7
%

7
7

%
6

0
%

7
7

%

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
c

li
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
N

o
t 

in
 A

S
A

1
0

%
9

%
1

0
%

%
 c

li
e

n
ts

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 a
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

N
o

t 
in

 A
S

A
1

8
%

2
0

.0
%

1
8

%

N
o

. 
o

f 
o

v
e

rd
u

e
 r

e
v

ie
w

s
N

o
t 

in
 A

S
A

4
7

2
5

0
0

4
0

3
5

0
0

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s

 -
 N

o
. 

a
le

rt
s

N
o

t 
in

 A
S

A
2

6
8

2
7

0
1

6
4

2
7

0

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s

 -
 %

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s
 <

5
 d

a
y

s
7

5
%

8
2

%
7

5
%

6
9

%
7

5
%

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s

 -
 %

 c
a

s
e

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 <

2
0

 d
a

y
s

3
5

%
8

0
%

7
0

%
5

2
%

7
0

%

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s

 -
 N

o
. 

re
p

e
a

t 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 i
n

 l
a

s
t 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
1

6
1

6
1

6
2

2
1

6

T
h

e
s

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 a
ll

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

2
1

0
3

/1
4

 i
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

in
g

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

e
tt

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

s
y

s
te

m
 w

id
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 i

n
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 b

e
y

o
n

d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
d

u
ri

n
g

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 i
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 

w
il

l 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 f
o

re
c

a
s

t,
 m

o
n

it
o

r 

a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 K
P

Is
 w

il
l 

th
e

n
 b

e
 r

e
s

e
t 

o
n

 

th
e

 b
a

s
is

 o
f 

th
a

t 
w

o
rk

. 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

C
o

m
m

e
n

t
M

e
a

su
re

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 3

Page 80



A
n
n
e
x
 C

 

R
is

k
 M

a
tr

ix
 

A
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

ri
sk

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 A

S
A

: 
T

h
e

 r
is

k
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
is

 g
ri

d
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

’s
 r

is
k
 s

co
ri

n
g

 m
a

tr
ix

 u
n

d
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

 s
co

re
 o

f 
4

 o
r 

le
ss

 i
s 

re
g

a
rd

e
d

 lo
w

, 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 6

 a
n

d
 9

 a
s 

m
o

d
e

ra
te

 a
n

d
 1

0
 t

o
 2

5
 a

s 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t.
  

R
is

k
 

R
is

k
 d

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 

R
is

k
 S

co
re

 

Im
p

a
ct

 
Li

k
e

li
h

o
o

d
 

S
co

re
 

O
rd

in
a

ry
 

re
si

d
e

n
ce

 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
rd

in
a

ry
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ce

 

ca
n

 c
re

a
te

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

p
re

ss
u

re
s 

a
n

d
 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 c
lo

se
ly

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
ci

a
l C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

B
o

a
rd

 

•
 

A
d

h
e

re
n

ce
 t

o
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 b
y 

fr
o

n
t 

li
n

e
 t

e
a

m
s 

a
n

d
 t

o
 a

ss
e

ss
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l o
n

ly
 u

se
rs

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

o
rd

in
a

ry
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ce

 d
o

e
s 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 t
h

e
ir

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s.
  

•
 

A
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

to
co

l 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 a

n
d

 is
 

b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
li
e

d
. 

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 i
s 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 

C
o

m
p

le
x 

C
a

re
 R

e
v
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l.

 

•
 

C
lo

se
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

o
ci

a
l C

a
re

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 (

M
o

n
th

ly
 r

e
p

o
rt

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y 

re
p

o
rt

 

to
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ce

 B
o

a
rd

.)
 

4
 

4
 

1
6

 

T
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

sa
v

in
g

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

p
la

n
s 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 o

ve
r 

a
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 w

il
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
 r

a
d

ic
a

l 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

, 
th

e
 

le
v
e

l o
f 

ca
re

 t
h

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 d

e
li
v
e

re
d

. 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 /

 r
e

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

g
a

in
st

 F
A

C
 

cr
it

e
ri

a
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
ss

e
ss

in
g

 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s 

sa
fe

 o
r 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l a
n

d
 m

a
ke

 u
p

 

o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
s.

 

•
 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

, 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 C
C

G
 w

il
l 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
se

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

ct
o

r 
to

 s
e

cu
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

p
u

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

re
d

e
si

g
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

  

•
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

re
, 

le
ve

l 
a

n
d

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

w
il
l b

e
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

fo
rm

a
l 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

p
o

li
cy

. 
 

4
 

4
 

1
6

 

R
is

k
 o

f 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 

to
 d

e
li

v
e

r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

T
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 t

h
e

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

to
 

b
a

ck
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s.

 C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 i
n

 z
o

n
e

 t
e

a
m

s 

•
 

T
h

is
 i
s 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 T
ru

st
 t

h
a

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
a

t 
th

e
 f

ro
n

t 
e

n
d

 c
a

n
 b

e
 d

e
li
ve

re
d

 i
n

 a
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y
. 

 

•
 

A
S
A

 K
P

Is
 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 m
o

n
th

ly
 m

e
tr

ic
s 

th
a

t 
w

il
l d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
 a

n
y 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

  c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 

4
 

3
 

1
2

 

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 4

Page 81



R
is

k
 

R
is

k
 d

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

M
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
 

R
is

k
 S

co
re

 

Im
p

a
ct

 
Li

k
e

li
h

o
o

d
 

S
co

re
 

m
a

y 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
a

ce
 o

f 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
. 

 

•
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

u
p

d
a

te
s 

to
 O

LG
, 

S
C

P
B

 a
n

d
/o

r 
C

IB
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 a
n

y
 

co
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
/s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 n
e

e
d

s/
ri

sk
s.

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

co
n

ce
rn

 

C
o

n
ce

rn
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

a
is

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 

to
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 i
n

 

th
is

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 a

ff
e

ct
 

th
e

 p
a

ce
 o

f 
d

e
li
ve

ry
. 

T
h

is
 i
s 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

•
 

 T
h

e
 c

lo
se

 i
n

vo
lv

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f,
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
, 

th
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
ce

ss
e

s.
  

•
 

M
o

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

ca
se

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

co
m

p
le

x 
ca

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

a
n

e
l.

 

•
 

E
sc

a
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
ca

se
s 

to
 t

h
e

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n

ci
l L

e
g

a
l s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

n
d

 b
ri

e
fi

n
g

 f
o

r 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

w
h

e
re

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
, 

se
n

si
ti

v
e

 o
r 

co
n

te
n

ti
o

u
s 

ca
se

s 
a

ri
se

s.
 

4
 

3
 

1
2

 

C
a

re
 H

o
m

e
 F

e
e

s 
C

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 f
e

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 

w
it

h
in

 a
 n

e
w

 b
a

n
d

in
g

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
ca

re
 s

e
t 

la
st

 y
e

a
r.

  

•
 

T
h

is
 i
s 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
it

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
. 

3
 

3
 

9
 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 

 

T
h

e
 T

ru
st

 i
s 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
cq

u
ir

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
N

H
S
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
st

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
ld

 r
e

su
lt

 in
 

d
is

tr
a

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
th

is
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

•
 

T
h

is
 i
s 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
lo

se
 w

o
rk

in
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
e

n
io

r 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 t
h

e
 T

ru
st

s 
a

n
d

 C
C

G
, 

th
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

ci
ll
o

rs
, 

N
H

S
 

C
h

a
ir

s 
a

n
d

 B
o

a
rd

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

. 
 

•
 

T
h

e
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 f

ro
n

tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 w
il
l 
b

e
 m

in
im

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
it

ig
a

te
d

 b
y
 

fr
e

q
u

e
n

t 
st

a
ff

 b
ri

e
fi

n
g

s 
a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
s 

fr
o

m
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

3
 

2
 

6
 

 

Page 82



The Adult Social Care 
Outcomes Framework 
2014/15

November 2013

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 5

Page 83



Title:
Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework

Author: Directorate/ Division/ Branch acronym / cost centre 

SCLGCP - 18280

Document Purpose:

Policy

Publication date: (NB: month/year)
November 2013

Target audience:

Public and local authorities

Contact details:
(NB: postal and/or email address for the responsible team responsible this document)

Jennifer Byrom

Jennifer.byrom@dh.gsi.gov.uk

You may re-use the text of this document (not including logos) free of charge in any 
format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this 
licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/

© Crown copyright 

Published to gov.uk, in PDF format only.

www.gov.uk/dh  

Page 84



The Adult Social Care 

Outcomes Framework 

2014/15

Prepared by the Department of Health

November 2013

3

Page 85



Contents

Foreword 5

Introduction 7

The role of the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 8

Adult Social Care Outcomes in 2012/13 10

The 2014/15 Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 22

- Domain 1: Enhancing quality of life for people with care and support needs 26

- Domain 2: Delaying and reducing the needs for care and support 31

- Domain 3: Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support 35

- Domain 4: Safeguarding people whose circumstances make them vulnerable and 

protecting them from avoidable harm 

37

Next steps 39

Annex  A - Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 2014/15 - at a glance 40

Annex  B - NHS Outcomes Framework 2014/15 - at a glance 41

Annex C - Public Health Outcomes Framework 2014/15 - at a glance 42

Annex D - Shared and complementary measures in the Health and Social Care 

Outcomes Frameworks 

43

Annex E - Local authority outcomes 44

4

Page 86



Foreword

Every person using health and care services deserves the highest quality care and 
support. One of our key ways to make this happen is through transparency. The
Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework, with its focus on promoting better 
outcomes and experiences for people who use care, and carers, measures how 
well care and support delivers the outcomes that matter the most to people. We 
need to know how the system performs on those issues – and take action based 
on this information so that we continually improve and do better for the people we 
support. 

The ASCOF measures how well the care and support system achieves the things 
we would expect for ourselves and for our friends and relatives. People who use 
care and support, carers and the public can use this information to see how well 
their local authority is performing, helping people to hold their council to account 
for the quality of the care they provide, commission or arrange. Councils 
themselves use the measures to help them drive up standards of care, and give 
people genuine choice and control over the services they use.

The ASCOF is continually evolving, and is being further strengthened for 2014/15. 
This year, the ASCOF, alongside the NHS Outcomes Framework, will do more to 
support our ambition for joined-up services within, and between, health and social 
care. The Government is fully committed to driving care that is genuinely joined-up
around the needs of people, not the needs of services. We want a system which 
recognises that people’s outcomes and experiences of care will only improve if all 
parts of the system work together with a common purpose. To this end, for the first 
time the ASCOF will include a new measure of whether people experience care 
that is joined-up and seamless. It will provide us with the evidence to better 
understand the extent to which people experience person-centred, coordinated 
care, and highlight where we can do better. Other changes to the framework this 
year will support a renewed focus on preventing and delaying the need for care 
and support, and will better reflect councils’ progress in delivering personalised 
care for both users of care and carers. 

This year also marks a significant milestone for the framework, with two complete 
years’ worth of outcomes-focused data available. This enables us, locally and 
nationally, to develop a view of the progress being made across adult social care, 
whilst exposing the areas where there is room to do more to ensure that everyone 
has access to the best possible care and support. 

Alongside the ASCOF for 2014/15, we are also launching an interactive website
for the ASCOF1, which will enable people to see how well their council is 
performing in achieving the best possible outcomes for their local populations.

1 http://ascof.hscic.gov.uk

5

Page 87



Despite making good progress in 2012/13, it was disappointing to see that some 
local authorities missed the sector’s ambition that 70% of eligible people should 
have access to a personal budget, which make a real difference to the lives of the
people who use them. In the future, the Care Bill sets out that everyone needing 
care and support will have access to a personal budget as part of their care and 
support plan, ensuring that they are able to exercise control over how care and 
support is provided. Therefore, councils should have clear plans in place to deliver 
personal budgets as part of the Care Bill reforms. These plans should also focus 
upon outcomes to ensure that systems are optimised to deliver personal budgets 
that offer true choice and control. The Personal Budget Outcome Evaluation Tool 
(POET) is one effective approach to monitor the effectiveness of personal budget 
processes.

It was however encouraging that the number of people experiencing a delayed 
transfer of care from hospital has fallen for another year, as has the number of 
delayed transfers which are attributable to social care. This suggests that we are 
getting better at providing care which is integrated and coordinated between both 
health and social care services. The new measure of integration in this year’s
framework will also capture the extent to which people experience integrated care, 
and help identify where improvements can be made. 

It was also encouraging to see that the number of users of adult social care who 
are very or extremely satisfied with their care and support has risen for a second 
year. However, fewer than half of carers reported the same level of satisfaction, 
demonstrating that there is more to be done to ensure that everyone has the best
experience.

The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework, with its clear focus on promoting 
people’s quality of life and their experience of care, and on care and support that is 
both personalised and preventative, remains our key tool to track progress locally 
and nationally towards the realisation of our ambitions for care and support. It is 
important that councils, alongside their local populations, continue to use the 
ASCOF, and the NHS and Public Health Outcomes Frameworks, to better 
understand the quality of services being provided, to jointly identify local priorities 
for improvement, and to drive improvement against those priorities. 

                                                                   

Rt Hon Jeremy Hunt MP

Secretary of State for Health

Norman Lamb MP

Minister of State for Care 
Services

6

Page 88



Introduction

1. The Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) is the Department of 

Health’s main tool for setting direction and strengthening transparency in adult 

social care. The framework was first published in March 2011, and since then

has been kept under constant review to ensure a continued focus on measures 

that reflect the outcomes which matter most to users of adult social care services 

and carers.

2. This document sets out the ASCOF for 2014/15. The framework has been co-

produced with local government, with a focus on ensuring that the framework 

continues to reflect the changing role of local government, and that all measures 

retain an outcome focus. We continue to be mindful of the reporting burden 

placed on councils when developing the ASCOF. 

3. The Care and Support White Paper2 and the Care Bill3 set out the Government’s 

vision for a reformed care and support system, which places the person at the 

very heart of the health and care services they receive. The ASCOF will support 

councils in leading this transformation by providing a clear focus for local priority 

setting and improvement. Through use of the ASCOF, alongside the outcomes 

frameworks for the NHS and public health, local government and its partners will

be supported to provide high quality, seamless care and support, integrated 

around the needs of the people who use them. 

4. This document:

- Describes how the ASCOF should be used as a tool to support local 

improvement in care and support;

- Provides a national commentary on adult social care outcomes in 2012/13;

- Sets out the ASCOF for 2014/15; and, 

- Outlines a forward look for the framework for future years. 

5. This document should be read in conjunction with the forthcoming ‘Handbook of 

Definitions for the Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework for 2014/15’, which 

will set out the detailed definitions for each measure, with worked examples. This 

handbook will be published in the spring. 

2
Caring For Our Future: reforming care and support. Published by the Department of Health in July 2012

3
Progress of the Care Bill can be seen at http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2013-14/care.html

7

Page 89



The role of the Adult Social Care Outcomes 

Framework

6. A system of sector-led improvement has now been embedded for adult social 

care, with councils being supported to take responsibility for their own 

performance and improvement, developing a system of performance 

management ‘by councils, for councils’. The ASCOF plays a key role in this 

system – providing robust comparable information on the outcomes and 

experiences of people who use adult social care, and carers.

7. The key roles of the ASCOF are:

- Locally, the ASCOF supports councils to improve the quality of the care and 

support services they provide. The ASCOF, now in its fourth year, provides

councils with robust information they can use to monitor the success of local 

interventions in improving outcomes. The data stimulates discussions between 

councils, and promotes the sharing of learning and best practice. The sector 

also uses the ASCOF in their own progress reporting, and forms the core of the 

information the sector uses to scrutinise its own performance.

- Locally, the ASCOF also supports improvement in adult social care services 

through strengthened accountability to local people. By fostering greater 

transparency on the success of care and support services in improving 

outcomes for the people who use those services, the ASCOF enables local 

people to hold their council to account for the quality of the services they 

provide, commission or arrange. The ASCOF is being used by local government

in the production of their local accounts, as part of efforts to enhance 

transparency and better exploit information to support improvement. 

 

- At the national level, the ASCOF demonstrates the performance of the adult 

social care system as a whole, and its success in delivering high-quality,

personalised care and support. The framework supports Ministers in 

discharging their accountability to the public and Parliament for the adult social 

care system, and continues to inform and support national policy development.

Integrated care and support

8. Another key role of the ASCOF is to promote more joined-up working at the local 

level. The three outcomes frameworks for health, public health and adult social 

care provide all parts of the system with a shared sense of priorities, a focus for 

improvement and aligned incentives. The three outcomes frameworks therefore 

form the basis for integrated working locally and support local partners to identify 

8

Page 90



shared responsibilities, pursue shared goals and improve outcomes for their 

communities. 

9. By highlighting the challenges faced by the health and care system locally, the 

outcomes frameworks provide a common basis for action. The principle vehicle

for joint working at the local level is health and wellbeing boards, which bring the 

whole system together and maximise the opportunities to deliver integrated care 

across the NHS, public health and social care services, and to influence the 

wider determinants of health.

Equality

10.The ASCOF, together with the outcomes frameworks for the NHS and public health,
provides a comprehensive overview of the outcomes achieved by people who use 
health and care services. By measuring the outcomes and experiences of people 
who use care and support, broken down by equality characteristic where the data 
permit, the frameworks support greater transparency on equality both locally and 
nationally. The frameworks therefore support local and national action to identify 
instances of discrimination and opportunities to advance equality. 

11.The Department is currently carrying out a review of all the data disaggregations 
available for the health and adult social care outcomes frameworks, and is working 
with stakeholders to identify the benefit and feasibility of increasing the data 
breakdowns available. 

12.The measures within the ASCOF are also used to monitor the progress of the 
Department in meeting its equality objectives for 2012-16. Further information about 
this can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/department-of-
health-equality-objectives-2012-to-2016.

Page 91



Adult Social Care Outcomes in 2012/13

13.Nationally, the ASCOF is the Department’s key tool for measuring the progress of 
the adult social care system, supporting our understanding of the outcomes and 
experiences of people who use care and support, and carers. 

14.The ASCOF was first launched for the year 2011/12. As such, the publication of 
outcomes data for 2012/13 this autumn4 offers the first opportunity to compare adult 
social care outcomes over two years, and measure progress towards our ambitions 
for care that is personalised, preventative and high quality. 

15.The framework supports the comparison of the outcomes and experience of care 
and support for different groups of users and carers, and allows a focus on different 
themes. When interpreting comparisons between groups, or across local 
authorities, we need to be mindful that a wide range of factors, including levels of 
care need and people’s expectations of care and support, may have an impact on 
their outcomes and their satisfaction with their care. This is particularly true of the 
survey-based measures, where it is currently not possible to identify the specific
impact of adult social care services on the outcome being achieved.

16.However, where disparities in outcomes are marked, this should be a prompt for 
further local investigation, which may highlight the need to do more to ensure that 
everyone who receives care is supported to achieve the best possible outcomes, 
and the best possible experience of their care and support. 

17.The following commentary highlights variation in outcomes across local authorities, 
and, for some measures, identifies those councils which are delivering outcomes at 
the bottom or top of the national range. 

Key findings for 2012/135

18.Overall, outcomes for 2012/13 demonstrate a stable picture, with performance
broadly similar to 2011/12. There continue to be marked disparities in the outcomes 
and experiences of different groups, and between local authority areas. Key 
findings for 2012/13 include:

- There have been slight increases in both social care related quality of life, and 

satisfaction of people who use services with the quality of their care and support. 

- Most local authorities did not achieve the ambition of the provision of personal 
budgets to 70% of people who use care and support, and carers. Those 
councils which missed the objective should look to their peers for examples of 
how to make personal budget provision a success6.

4
These data are as published by the Health and Social Care Information Centre in November: 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

5
Findings based on the data as published by the Health and Social Care Information Centre in November.

6
Based on interim data, as published by the HSCIC in November. 

10

Page 92



- At the local level, there continue to be large variations in the number of 
people with a learning disability, or who are in contact with a mental health 
service, who live independently7.

- The proportion of people who use adult social care services who say those 
services have made them feel safe and secure has increased at the national 
level for 2012/13. 

- The proportion of people in receipt of local authority-funded care who report 
that they have adequate, or as much control as they want over the daily life 
has remained stable. The proportion of people who use services who found 
it extremely or very easy to find information about care and support has also 
remained stable. However, for both measures, this was not the case for 
around a quarter of those surveyed, showing that more needs to be done to 
ensure that everyone is receiving the best possible service. 

19.The following commentary considers the extent to which the data from the ASCOF 
demonstrates improvement in adult social care services across the following key 
themes of the Care and Support White Paper:

- I am happy with the quality of my care and support

- I am supported to maintain my independence for as long as possible

- I understand how care and support works, and what my entitlements are

- I am in control of my care and support

- I know that the person giving me care and support will treat me with dignity and 
respect

7
Findings based on provisional Mental Health data, as published by the HSCIC in July. Final data will be 

published in December 2013. 

Page 93



I am happy with the quality of care and support I receive and I know 

that the person giving me care and support will treat me with dignity 

and respect

20.High quality, responsive care and support, in which people are treated with dignity 

and respect, is a cornerstone of our ambitions for care reform. Performance against 

the ASCOF, with its focus on people’s outcomes and experiences of their care and 

support, is a key marker of progress against the ambition of high quality care for all. 

21.The social care-related quality of life measure within the ASCOF gives an 

overarching view of the quality of life of users of care and support. In 2012/13, 

social care-related quality of life was 18.8 out of a maximum possible score of 24 for 

users of social care, compared to 18.7 in 2011/12. In addition to this, 64.1% of 

users reported that they were extremely or very satisfied with the care and support 

services they received in 2012/13, an increase from 62.8% in 2011/12. Whilst it is 

positive that nearly two thirds of users of care say they are extremely or very 

satisfied with their care and support, this clearly leaves scope to do more to ensure 

that everyone has a good experience. 

Figure 1: Social-care related quality of life for users of social care services, by local 

authority8

8
 The black lines at the top of each bar show how accurate the proportion is for each local authority. The bottom 

of the black line indicates the lowest likely proportion of people for this local authority, and the top indicates the 
highest. These confidence intervals are included as there is a degree of uncertainty because these are survey 
estimates. That is, only a sample has been surveyed, and hence the proportions are representative of the real 

figure for the whole population. The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at: 

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610.  

0

5

10

15

20

S
o

ci
a

l-
ca

re
 r

e
la

te
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 

Local authority 

 2012-13

2012-13 National Average

12

Page 94



22. In 2012/13, carers reported an average quality of life score of 8.1 out of a maximum 

of 12, with older carers reporting better outcomes and experiences than their 

younger counterparts. For example, 45.8% of carers aged 65 or older reported that 

they were extremely or very happy with the care and support services they 

received, compared to 39.7% for those aged 18-64. This shows there is scope to do 

more to do to improve the quality of life for young carers. 

I am supported to maintain my independence for as long as possible

23.The Government is working to change the focus of care and support services from 

reacting when people reach crisis point, to actively promoting well-being, supporting 

people to remain independent and connected to their communities. The ASCOF 

supports a focus on these priorities with direct measures of independent living.

24.Stable and appropriate accommodation for people with learning disabilities and 

mental health problems has a strong impact on their safety and overall quality of 

life, and mitigates the risk of social exclusion. At the national level, the proportion of 

adults in contact with secondary mental health services who live independently, with 

or without support, has remained relatively stable, with a slight increase from 54.6% 

in 2011/12 to 59.3% in 2012/13. The proportion of adults with learning difficulties 

living in stable and appropriate accommodation has also undergone a welcome 

increase, from 70.0% in 2011/12 to 73.5% in 2012/13. 

Figure 2: The proportion of adults with a learning disability who live in their own home 

or with their family in 2012/13, by local authority.

Page 95



25.However, there continue to be marked differences in the extent to which these 

groups are supported to live independently. The local authorities with the highest 

rates of people with learning disabilities living in stable and appropriate 

accommodation are Brent, Rochdale, Oldham, Tameside, Salford and Knowsley, 

with this being the case for over 90% of people. However, Hounslow, Blackpool, 

Birmingham, Bromley, Havering, Lambeth and Solihull local authorities have the 

lowest rates, with fewer than 60% of people with a learning disability living in stable 

and appropriate accommodation.  

Figure 3: Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services who 

live independently, with or without support in 2012/13, by local authority

26.The proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services who live 

independently was 59.3% in 2012/13, a welcome increase from 54.6% in 2011/129.

Whilst this is very positive, again there are large local variations, suggesting there 

may be room for councils to improve access to independent living for this group.

9
2012/13 findings based on provisional data, as published by the HSCIC in July.. 

14

Page 96



This highlights the need for further enquiry by local authorities to understand the 

reasons behind their local performance, and, where necessary, to take action. 

Permanent admissions

27.The number of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes is a 

good measure of the effectiveness of care and support in delaying dependency on 

care and support services, and the inclusion of this measure in the framework 

supports local health and social care services to work together to reduce avoidable

admissions where appropriate.

28.Measures focussing on delaying dependency for older people show a stable picture 

at the national level in 2012/13 compared to 2011/12. In 2012/13 there were 697.2 

permanent admissions to residential care or nursing homes per 100,000 population 

for adults aged 65 or over, which is similar to 695.9 in 2011/12. Where there have 

been increases in admissions locally, this highlights the need for further enquiry by 

councils to understand the cause of the increase and, where necessary, to take 

action. 

29.Figure 4 shows the national variation in performance, with Nottingham, Isle of Wight 

and Southampton having more than 1,000 permanent admissions of older people to 

residential and nursing care per 100,000 population. In contrast, four councils 

(Kensington and Chelsea, Sutton, Croydon and Ealing) had a rate of fewer than 300 

per 100,000 population. 

Reablement services

30.Reablement or rehabilitation services seek to support people, in order to minimise 

their need for on-going support and to maximise their independence. The ASCOF 

captures the effectiveness of these services for older people, measuring the 

proportion of older people still at home 91 days after being discharged from hospital 

into reablement or rehabilitation services.

31.The proportion of older people who were still at home 91 days after discharge from 

hospital into reablement services was broadly stable at 81.4% in 2012/13,

compared to 82.7% in 2011/12. However, this performance should be viewed in the 

context of the total number of older people discharged from hospital, and the 

proportion of those that had access to reablement services (3.2% in both 2011/12 

and 2012/13).

Page 97



Figure 4: Permanent admissions of older people (65 and older) to residential and nursing 

care home, per 100,000 population in 2012-13, by local authority

Figure 5: Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days after 

discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation in 2012/13, by local authority

16

Page 98



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
  

Local authority 

 2012-13

2012-13 National Average

32.Figure 5 shows national variation in the effectiveness of reablement services. 

Twenty-two councils, which can be found in Annex E, achieved a rate of over 

90% of people at home 91 days later in 2012/13. For these councils access to 

reablement ranged from 0.9% to 10.0% of older people discharged from 

hospital. In contrast, in Telford and Wrekin, Suffolk, Manchester and 

Shropshire local authorities, fewer than 65% of people were still at home 91 

days after discharge from hospital into reablement services. However, this 

measure should be viewed in the context of how many people are given 

access to this service – of the four councils highlighted, two (Telford and 

Wrekin, and Manchester) provided greater access to reablement/rehabilitation 

services than the national average (3.2%).

I understand how care and support works, and what my entitlements are

33.The availability and ease of access to information and advice is vital in helping 

people, their families and carers to make informed choices about the care they want 

to receive. The ASCOF measures this by capturing the ease with which people are 

able to find information about care and support. Nationally, the picture is stable – in 

2012/13, 74.1% of people who use services said they found it extremely or very 

easy to find information about services, which is similar to 73.8% in 2011/12 and 

74.2% in 2010/11. However, carers reported that they were able to find information 

less easily than users. This shows that there is scope to do more to make sure this 

group have access to the information they need. 

Figure 6: The proportion of people who use services who find it easy to find information about 

services10, by local authority

10
The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at:

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

Page 99



Figure 7: The proportion of carers who use services who find it easy to find 

information about services11, by local authority

I am in control of my care and support

34.The Government wants to give people more control over their health and social 
care.  Personalisation means building support around the individual and providing 
people with more choice, control and flexibility in the way they receive care and 
support – regardless of the setting in which they receive it.  

35.This emphasis on providing care over which users have genuine choice and control 
is reflected in the ASCOF, and the extent to which users of care and support feel in 
control of their daily lives is a key indicator of the personalisation of care. In 
2012/13, 76.1% of respondents reported having either as much control as they want 
or having adequate control over their daily life. This is consistent with last year’s 
figure of 75.1%. Whilst it is positive to see that three quarters of people feel in 
control of their daily lives, it is important that, where possible, more is done to 
improve outcomes in this area for all people who use care and support.

36.A key aspect of control is the roll out of personal budgets, to give people and their 

carers more control and direct purchasing power over their care and support. The 

forthcoming statutory entitlement to personal budgets in the Care Bill underlines the 

Government’s commitment to providing personalised care and support that more 

closely matches the needs and wishes of an individual. It is known that personal 

11
The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at:

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

18

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

Local authority 

 2012-13

 2012-13 National Average

Page 100



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

Local authority 

 2012-13

 2011-12

 2011-12 National average: 43.0%

 2012-13 National average: 55.6%

National Objective: 70%

budgets make a real difference to the people that receive them, by ensuring that 

they are able to exercise control over how care and support is provided. 

37. There has been an increase in the use of personal budgets since the sector 

agreement of the personal budget objective of 70%. The ASCOF showed that

55.5% of users of community based services and carers received a personal 

budget in 2012/13, compared to 43.0% in 2011/12, and 29.2% in 2010/11, 

highlighting the continuing progress of councils in delivering personalised care. 

While this is encouraging, the disparities in local performance continue to be of 

concern, with local level provision ranging from 96.2% down to just 7.4%12.

38. It is widely acknowledged that shortcomings in the way that this measure is 

currently defined and how data are collected mean that it is impossible for councils 

to reach 100% against this measure. Following analysis by DH and ADASS, the 

personal budget objective was set at 70% nationally. As shown in Figure 8, the 

majority of councils still fall well short of this objective. From 2014/15, the definition 

of this ASCOF measure will be revised to ensure that its scope is limited to those 

for whom self-directed support is appropriate. 

Figure 8: Proportion of users and carers in receipt of community-based services 

receiving personal budgets, 2011-12 and 2012-13, by local authority13

12
Findings based on interim data, as published by the HSCIC in November.

13
The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at:

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

Page 101



39.This bar chart shows variation in the provision of personal budgets between 2011-
12 and 2012-13. In most local authorities, the proportion of users and carers 
receiving personal budgets has increased between 2011-12 and 2012-13. 

40.There were ten local authorities where the proportion of people receiving a personal 
budget increased by more than 30 percentage points, demonstrating the possibility 
of rapid progress against this measure. In contrast, twelve local authorities saw a 
decrease in the proportion of people receiving a personal budget in 2011/12 and 
2012/13. These local authorities can be found in Annex E14.

41. In Richmond upon Thames, Nottinghamshire and Islington the proportion of those 
receiving personal budgets was over 90%, however in Somerset and Swindon, 
personal budgets were provided to fewer than a quarter of people who receive 
community based services in their area15.

I feel safe and secure

42.The Government’s aim is to prevent and reduce the risk of adults with care and 
support needs from experiencing abuse or neglect. All adult social care users, many 
of whom will be vulnerable, should feel safe and secure.

43.At the national level, in 2012/13 there has been a small but encouraging increase in 
the proportion of adult social care users who say that the services that they receive 
have made them feel safe and secure, from 75.5% in 2011/12 to 78.1% in 2012/13. 

Figure 9: Proportion of people who used services that said that those services have 

made them feel safe and secure16, by local authority

14
Findings based on interim data, as published by the HSCIC in November

15
Findings based on interim data, as published by the HSCIC in November

16
  The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at:

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

20

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0

70.0

80.0

90.0

100.0

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

Local authority 

 2012-13

 2012-13 National Average

Page 102



44.However, performance continues to vary significantly between local areas. Figure 9 
shows the proportion of people who said that their care and support has contributed 
to making them feel safe and secure, by local authority in 2012-13. There are a 
range of factors that are likely to impact on how safe and secure people feel, many 
of which will not be within the control of the local authority. However, the marked 
variation in this measure at a local level highlights the need for local enquiry into the 
causes of this, and, if necessary, further action. 

Our vision for adult social care

45.The Care Bill will ensure that people’s well-being, and the outcomes which matter 

most to them, will be at the heart of every decision they make. It will also provide a 

new focus on preventing and delaying needs for care and support, and takes a 

historic step for carers by putting them on the same footing as those they care for. 

In providing robust, nationally comparable information on the outcomes and 

experiences of local people, the ASCOF will be integral to both tracking progress in 

improvements of adult social care services, and continuing to reflect the direction 

for the future of adult social care. 

Page 103



The 2014/15 Adult Social Care Outcomes 

Framework

46.The ASCOF is kept under permanent review and is refreshed every year. The 

content of the framework is co-produced by the Department of Health, the 

Association of Directors of Adult Social Services (ADASS) and the Local 

Government Association (LGA). In reviewing and developing the framework, we 

continue to be mindful of the reporting burden placed on councils. This has been 

made explicit in the revised inclusion criteria for the ASCOF for 2014/15.

47.This section outlines how each of the four domains of the ASCOF have been 

updated for 2014/15. Further detail on the technical definitions of the measures will 

be made available in the Handbook of Definitions for 2014/15, which will be 

published in the spring.

48.Over the last year, the development of the ASCOF has taken place within the 

context of a new set of design principles for the framework, which reflect the 

changing role of local authorities in the care and support system. These new 

principles will ensure that the design and content of the framework continues to

respond to the transformation of social care. These principles have been developed 

and agreed with local government and have resulted in some changes to the 

inclusion criteria for new measures in the framework. The changes are discussed in 

more detail below. 

49.The ASCOF for 2013/14, published in November 2012, included a number of 

placeholders, which represented acknowledged gaps in its coverage due to the lack 

of an appropriate data source. Development of these placeholders has been a key 

focus over the last year, as have efforts to ensure that the ASCOF continues to 

support the Department’s priorities and vision for adult social care, as set out in the 

Care and Support White Paper17 and the Care Bill18.

The zero-based review of adult social care data collections

50.Since November 2010, the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC) has 

led a ‘zero-based review’ (ZBR) of adult social care data collections from local 

authorities. The objective of the review was to ensure that the information we collect 

17
Caring for our future: reforming care and support, published by the Department of Health  in July 2012 

(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/caring-for-our-future-reforming-care-and-support)

18
Progress of the Care Bill can be seen at http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2013-14/care.html

22

Page 104



nationally reflects the changing face of adult social care – keeping pace with the 

transformation of care towards more personalised, preventative forms of support. 

This review has actively supported the development of the ASCOF for 2014/15 and

beyond. 

51. In September 2012, the HSCIC announced the first set of changes to data 

collections as a result of the zero-based review19. This included a new safeguarding 

collection, for implementation in 2013/14, and changes to the existing Deprivation of 

Liberty Safeguards collection. In May 2013, the HSCIC announced the second set 

of changes – new collections for Finance and Short and Long-Term Support, both 

drawing on a new equalities and classification framework20.

52.The implementation of the new data sets has supported the revision of existing 

ASCOF measure 1C (self-directed support and direct payments) for 2014/15, and 

also the implementation of a new reablement measure, 2D (the outcome of short-

term services). These changes are outlined in further detail below. 

53.The extent to which implementation of the proposals of the ZBR will further support 

the development of the ASCOF will continue to be explored with local government. 

This work is described in more detail under ‘Next Steps’.

The Care Bill

54.The Care Bill will ensure that each person receiving care and support is placed at 

the very centre of those services, at the heart of every decision that is made about 

them. It will ensure that there is a renewed focus on preventing or delaying people 

from needing care and support, rather than interventions only being made when

someone reaches crisis point.

55.A key driver of the development of the ASCOF for 2014/15 has been to ensure that, 

as far as possible, it continues to support the Department’s priorities for social care,

as set out in the Care Bill, which includes supporting people to maintain their 

independence and their connections to the community, and ensuring that everyone 

has control over the care they receive.

Alignment with the NHS and Public Health Outcomes Frameworks

56.The Department remains committed to improving alignment between the ASCOF 

and the Public Health and NHS Outcomes Frameworks, in recognition of the joint 

contribution of health and social care to improving outcomes. The three frameworks 

19
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/socialcarecollections2013

20
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/socialcarecollections2013

Page 105



continue to contain a number of shared and complementary measures21, and for 

2014/15, a new complementary measure of people’s experience of integrated care 

is included in the ASCOF and the NHS Outcomes Framework. The Department

also remains committed to pursuing the development of a population-based 

measure of loneliness for both the ASCOF and the Public Health Outcomes 

Framework, in recognition of the key role both adult social care services and public 

health services have to play in reducing loneliness.

Inclusion criteria for ASCOF measures

57.As outlined above, this year a new set of design principles were agreed between 

the Department and local government to guide the future development of the 

framework. These principles will help ensure that the ASCOF continues to support 

improvement in the outcomes and experiences of people who use care and 

support, and carers. A number of guiding principles have been agreed for the 

development of the 2014/15 ASCOF and beyond. These are:

- Development of the ASCOF will include a renewed focus on measures which 

capture the effectiveness of joint working by local partners, and so support and 

promote the provision of more integrated services. 

- National-only measures will be considered for inclusion in the framework on a 

case-by-case basis, assessed using criteria outlined below.

- Where appropriate, development will continue to seek to align the framework 

more closely with the NHS and Public Health Outcomes Frameworks.

58.These guiding principles have meant some changes have been made to the 

inclusion criteria for the ASCOF for 2014/15. All measures have been tested against 

the following revised criteria, to assess their suitability for inclusion in the 

framework:

- Relevant and meaningful to the public – measures should be intelligible and

reflect what matters to people

- Influenced by social care – measures must be relevant to councils’ adult social 

care functions, including effective joint working with local partners

- Can be compared between local areas over time (with the exception of national-

only measures) – measures must be consistent to promote transparency

21
A measure is shared when the same measure appears in more than one framework. A measure is 

complementary when a similar measure, addressing the same issue, features in more than one of the 

frameworks. 

24

Page 106



- A measure of a social care-related outcomes, or consistent with an outcomes 

focus

- A robust measure – data used to populate the measure are statistically robust 

and the measure does not create perverse incentives

- Supported by evidence – evidence exists that suggests there are cost effective 

interventions that would have a positive impact on the measure

- Disaggregable by equalities – measures should be able to be broken down to 

support a focus on equalities

- New burdens – where new burdens are created, these will be estimated and 

funded by the Department of Health

- National measures – must meet all the above criteria, as well as:

- Local authorities have local (or regional) level information available against 

which to compare themselves to the national picture;

- The measure would help inform national policy development; and, 

- There is consensus that the outcome is sufficiently significant that its 

omission from the framework on the grounds of a lack of local-level data is 

not justifiable.

Page 107



Domain One: Ensuring quality of life for 

people with care and support needs

Personalisation – measure 1C

59.The Department remains committed that everyone eligible for long-term, 

community-based care should be provided with a personal budget, preferably as a 

direct payment. In the future, the Care Bill sets out that everyone needing care and 

support will have a personal budget as part of their care and support plan, or 

support plan.

60.Last year, the Department committed to revise the definition of 1C, ‘the proportion 

of people using social care who receive self-directed support, and those receiving 

direct payments’, in recognition that the current definition meant that its scope 

included some services and users of care and support for whom self-directed 

support may not be appropriate. 

61.The revision to this measure was dependent on the implementation of the new 

Short and Long-Term Care (SALT) data collection, which was announced by the 

26

Page 108



HSCIC in May, and will be implemented by all local authorities for 2014/1522. This 

has enabled the changes to measure 1C for 2014/15, which were outlined in the 

2013/14 ASCOF. 

62.These changes will ensure that measure 1C better reflects the success of councils 

in delivering personalised care and support. 

63.The changes to measure 1C for 2014/15 include:

- Limiting the scope of 1C to people who receive long-term support, for whom

self-directed support is most relevant;

- Replacing the existing measure 1C with two measures: one which focuses on 

users, and another which focuses on carers, showing progress made on 

personalisation for users and carers separately; 

- Each of these measures will have a sub-measure for users/carers in receipt of 

direct payments; and, 

- The measure will be based on ‘snapshot’ rather than full-year data, to better 

reflect the progress made on personalisation at the end of the year. 

64.The technical definition of measure 1C for 2014/15, including a worked example, 

will be published in the Handbook of Definitions in the spring. 

Personal Outcomes

65.The Care and Support White Paper outlines the need to ensure that care and 

support services respond to people’s needs and the personal outcomes they want 

to achieve. The consultation on the zero-based review included a proposal to test 

the feasibility of developing a national measure of just this - the proportion of people 

in receipt of long-term support who report that they have been able to achieve their 

personal goals. The responses to the consultation were broadly supportive of this 

proposal, but did highlight the challenges around the practicalities of capturing this 

information. 

66.Earlier this year, the Department commissioned research by the Quality and 

Outcomes Research Unit23 to identify:

- Whether developing a measure of personal goals would be achievable via a 

postal survey (on which survey-measures in the ASCOF rely); and, 

- Whether the inclusion of a measure on personal outcomes in the ASCOF would 

add further value beyond the existing measures. 

22
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/socialcarecollections2015

23
http://www.uhb.nhs.uk/quoru.htm

Page 109



67.This research identified, consistent with the findings of local authorities which have 

led work in this area, that it would be very challenging to capture this information via 

a postal survey. The research concluded that a longitudinal survey of clients, which 

would be most effective if delivered face-to-face, would be the most appropriate 

route for capturing this information. The researchers also concluded that it is 

possible that questions developed for this purpose would be similar to questions 

already included in the Adult Social Care Survey. In addition, further work would be 

required to establish whether a personal outcomes approach would yield different 

information to current measures in the framework.

68.The Department has therefore agreed with local government not to pursue a 

national measure of self-reported achievement of personal goals, in recognition of 

the significant challenges and resource requirements associated, and in the 

absence of assurance that the measure would add significant value to the 

framework. 

69.Although a national measure will not be pursued at this time, local authorities may 

wish to consider the development of local measures, which support them to track 

progress in supporting people to achieve their personal goals.  QORU’s research

has been published24, and may be helpful to local authorities which are looking to 

develop a methodology to collect this type of information. 

A population-based measure of loneliness

70.The Care and Support White Paper25 committed to pursue the development of 

measures of loneliness and social isolation for inclusion in the ASCOF and Public 

Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF), in recognition of the clear link between 

loneliness and poor mental and physical health. 

71.As a significant first-step towards achieving this, the 2013/14 ASCOF included a 

new measure of social isolation, shared with a placeholder in the PHOF. This 

measure remains in the ASCOF for 2014/15 and draws on self-reported levels of

social contact as a measure of social isolation. 

72.There are recognised limitations to this measure:

- This measure is of the users of adult social care services and carers only. 

However, the problems of loneliness and social isolation are not limited to 

these groups, and all parts of the health and care system have a role to play 

in preventing and reducing social isolation and loneliness in the broader 

24
http://www.qoru.ac.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/10/Personal-Outcomes-report-October-PSSRU.pdf

25
Caring for our future: reforming care and support, published by the Department of Health  in July 2012 

(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/caring-for-our-future-reforming-care-and-support)

28

Page 110



population; and,

- Social isolation can only be considered a proxy for loneliness. 

73.Work has therefore been taken forward to develop a population-based measure of 

loneliness, for inclusion in both the PHOF and the ASCOF, and an assessment has 

been made of the survey vehicles available to capture information on people’s

reported experience of loneliness. Whilst it has not been possible to develop a new 

measure of loneliness for the 2014/15 framework, this work will continue over the 

next year, with a view to including a new measure in the ASCOF in the future.

74.This measure is proposed to be shared with the PHOF, in recognition that a 

council’s public health services play a key role in improving outcomes in this area. 

However, it is also recognised that there are a number of other factors, many 

outside the control of local government, which may impact on a person’s self-

reported level of loneliness. The presentation of any new measure in the ASCOF 

would need to reflect this; for example it has been proposed that any new measure 

of population-based loneliness could sit as a sub-measure under the existing social 

isolation measure, 1I. 

Future developments

Identifying the impact of adult social care

75.The over-arching measure in Domain One is ‘social care related quality of life’, 

which is a composite measure drawn from a number of responses to the Adult 

Social Care Survey. The overall quality of life measure brings together people’s 

experience of eight outcomes related to social care into a single measure26. This is 

a key high-level measure, which reflects the achievement of outcomes as reported 

by people who use services, 

76.However, whilst this measure tells us about outcomes for social care users, it does 

not isolate the impact that care and support services have on those outcomes. The 

Department has commissioned research from the Quality and Outcomes of Person 

Centred Care Policy Research Unit27 to identify whether there is a way in which we 

could isolate the impact of adult social care on people’s reported quality of life. A 

number of local authorities are supporting this research, which at present is 

collecting information through interviews with users and carers. Analysis will be 

undertaken next year, with a final report in the autumn of 2014. If successful, this 

26
The ASCOT! (Adult Social Care Outcomes Toolkit) measure (1A) is designed to capture information about an individu al’s social care-

related quality of life. The ASCOT is also the source for the questions in the Adult Social Care Survey. Users wishing to make commercial 

use of any of the ASCOT materials should contact the ASCOT team (ascot@kent.ac.uk), who will then be put into contact with Kent 

Innovation and Enterprise, as people need to register to use the ASCOT. Also see http://www.pssru.ac.uk/ascot/.  

27
http://www.lse.ac.uk/LSEHealthAndSocialCare/aboutUs/PSSRU/home.aspx

Page 111



work may allow us to develop a new or additional measure for the ASCOF of the 

specific impact of adult social services on people’s quality of life. 

Social isolation 

77.The calculation of the social isolation measure 1I will change from 2014/15. 

Previously, this measure combined user survey data with the most recent value 

from the Carers Survey data (as the Carers Surveys is currently a biennial 

collection). However, from 2014/15, this measure will be calculated for carers and

users separately, to increase the usefulness of this data locally. Further detail will 

be published in the Handbook of Definitions in the spring. 

30

Page 112



Domain Two: Delaying and reducing the 

need for care and support

78.The development of this domain has been dependent on the implementation of the 

zero-based review, as previously the placeholders in Domain Two reflected both 

the difficulty in articulating measures about reducing and delaying the need for care 

and support in the context of adult social care, but also the paucity of data available 

to support measures in this area. This area was a particular focus of the zero-based 

review. As a result, in 2013/14 a new measure on the success of short-term 

services was included in the framework, for implementation once the required data 

set was implemented as a result of the zero-based review.  

Supporting recovery and regaining independence

79.Measure 2D, ‘the outcome of short-term service: sequel to service’, is a live 

measure in the ASCOF from 2014/15, following the announcement of the proposals 

of the ZBR, and implementation of the new SALT collection from 1 April 201428.

This measure reflects the proportion of those people who received short-term 

services to maximise independence (often described as reablement or rehabilitation 

services) during the year, where no further request was made for on-going support.  

28
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/socialcarecollections2013

Page 113



Since the aim of short-term services is to re-able people and promote their 

independence, this measure will provide evidence of a good outcome in delaying 

dependency or supporting recovery – short-term services that result in no further 

need for services. The detailed definition of measure 2D will be provided in the 

ASCOF Handbook of Definitions, which is due to be published in the spring.

80.The development work undertaken as part of the zero-based review, and the 

implementation of measure 2D, is a significant step forward in capturing the 

effectiveness of reablement and rehabilitation services. However, it was recognised 

in the 2013/14 ASCOF that a second measure would be beneficial to support 

interpretation of measure 2D, and to understand whether there are any unintended 

consequences of the decision to provide no further services. This was reflected 

through the addition of a new placeholder, 2E, on the effectiveness of reablement 

services. 

81.Having worked with local government to identify the range of potential measures 

that could fulfil this role, it has been agreed that it would be most desirable to 

include a measure which asks those in receipt of short term services about their 

outcomes, and/or the quality of services they received. This would require the 

development of a new survey. In addition to being a source of information for any 

new ASCOF measure, a survey of short term services users would also provide a 

valuable source of information to commissioners locally, to aid service improvement 

more broadly. A new survey of short-term service users would therefore ensure that 

the views of this group are captured. 

82.The development of a survey of this type would be a considerable challenge, and 

the feasibility of this will be tested over the course of the next year. If implemented, 

such a survey would have new burdens, which would need to be minimised as far 

as possible, fully assessed and funded by the Department. 

83. It is envisaged that the survey would be used to make an assessment of outcomes 

and the quality of short-term services received by service users. If implemented, 

Domain Two would be reviewed to identify whether it can be further strengthened

with measures drawn from the survey.

Dementia

84.The Prime Minister’s ‘Challenge on Dementia’, launched in March last year, set out 

a renewed ambition to secure greater improvements in care for people with 

Dementia29. To reflect that improved outcomes for people with dementia is a top 

priority for the Department, a shared placeholder was therefore added to the 

29
http://dementiachallenge.dh.gov.uk/

32

Page 114



ASCOF and the NHS Outcomes Framework in 2013/14. This placeholder signalled 

the intent of both frameworks to develop a measure of the effectiveness of post-

diagnosis care in sustaining independence and improving quality of life for people 

with Dementia. The inclusion of the placeholder in both frameworks reflected the 

paramount importance of this outcome across both adult social care and the NHS, 

and the need for integrated working locally. 

85.The NHS Outcomes Framework has commissioned research to explore an 

approach for this measure, based on asking users via a face-to-face survey about 

their quality of life. This research will not be completed until next year and, if 

successful, further work will be required to identify whether this methodology would

support robust comparisons at the local level. 

86.Whilst this research is underway, further work has taken place to identify the range 

of outcomes we would expect for people with Dementia, and their carers, as a 

result of local authority services, with a view to pursuing the development of 

additional or alternative measures for the ASCOF. The work to date suggests an 

approach using a “bundle” of measures might be appropriate, which together will 

provide a picture of the success of adult social care services in improving outcomes

for people with Dementia. It is likely that one or more of these would be a national-

only measure. 

87.Over the next year, development work will be taken forward on the following areas, 

alongside a review of further options and continued close working with the NHS OF:

- Developing a sub-measure of 2A, ‘Permanent admissions to residential and 

nursing care homes’, for people with a primary support reason of ‘memory and 

cognition’, of which a large number will have dementia. 

- Developing a measure drawing on GP records, to establish what proportion of 

people with dementia live at home; 

- Report the NHS Outcomes Framework quality of life measure at a national level 

if a local measure cannot be developed; and

- Drawing on the Carers Survey to report, at a national level, key outcomes for 

carers of people with dementia. 

88. In recognition of the breadth of dementia measures being considered for inclusion 

in a future ASCOF, the placeholder 2F has now been classed as complementary 

with the NHS OF measure 2.6ii.

Future developments

89.Developing further measures of the effectiveness of preventative services remains 

a key priority for the ASCOF. The lack of measures in this area reflects the 

challenge of collecting information on the success of social care services in 

preventing/delaying people from requiring further care and support services.

90.A review of the type of preventative services offered by local authorities’ social care 

Page 115



services and the associated expected outcomes has taken place over the last year. 

Some of the outcomes identified are already measured in the ASCOF, for example 

improved quality of life and access to information, although these only cover those 

in receipt of care, as opposed to though people who have approached a local 

authority and are sign-posted towards other available sources of support. Two key 

areas have been earmarked for further the development. These are:

- The number of people in receipt of services who are admitted to long-term 

support; and, 

- Access to information and advice for all those that come into contact with social 

services – not just those in receipt of care.  

91. It is recognised however, that there are a range of outcomes that preventative 

services aim to achieve, and whilst work will take place to develop measures in 

these proposed areas of focus, this won’t exclude the scoping of further options in 

the development of the 2015/16 framework and beyond. 

34

Page 116



Domain Three: Ensuring that people have a 

positive experience of care and support

Integration

92. In response to findings of the NHS Future Forum that too often patients and users

experience fragmented services, failures in communication and poor transitions 

between services, the Care and Support White Paper restated the Department’s 

commitment to measure and understand people’s experience of integrated care30.

93.The focus for the development of this measure was that it should capture what is 

important to the public in experiencing integrated care – which patients and people 

who use care and support have defined to be ‘person-centred coordinated care’31.

In January 2013, the Department commissioned an options appraisal, which 

recommended that a set of new questions be developed and inserted into existing 

patient and service user surveys. Following this, work to identify and develop 

30
Caring for our future: reforming care and support, published by the Department of Health in July 2012 

(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/caring-for-our-future-reforming-care-and-support)

31
National Voices narrative: A Narrative for Person-Centred Coordinated Care (National Voices,2013), available 

online at: http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/nv-narrative-cc.pdf.

Page 117



appropriate questions was commissioned from the Picker Institute and the 

University of Oxford, which was conducted over the summer32. Eighteen questions 

were proposed as potential candidates for insertion into up to seven surveys33.

94.The Department subsequently worked with a number of stakeholders, including 

local government and the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services, to 

shortlist questions that could support an ASCOF measure of integrated care. These 

questions will now undergo further cognitive testing as part of the Adult Social Care 

Survey (ASCS) and Carers Survey (CS). Depending on the outcome of this testing, 

the questions may undergo further refinement and change, and not all questions will 

necessarily be included in both the ASCS and CS. 

95.This cognitive testing is scheduled to take place in the winter of 2013, and further 

work to agree the form a new ASCOF measure and the definition will take place in 

collaboration with local government early next year. This measure will be

complementary with an NHSOF measure of integrated care. In principle, it has been 

agreed that, although there should be some commonality between the two 

measures, they need not be exactly the same. An update on the progress of this 

development will be included in the Handbook of Definitions in the spring, and the 

final definition of this measure will be included in the handbook in the autumn of 

2014.

96.Whilst the work to develop a measure of integrated care is on-going, it is due for 

completion in time for the inclusion of new questions in the 2014/15 Adult Social 

Care Survey and Carers Survey. As such, the placeholder 3E on people’s 

experience of integrated care has been replaced by a live measure for 2014/15. 

Future developments

Information about services

97.The calculation of measure 3D, the proportion of people who use services and 

carers who find it easy to find information about services, will change from 2014/15. 

Previously, this measure combined user survey data with the most recent value 

from the Carers Survey data (as the Carers Survey is currently a biennial 

collection). However, from 2014/15, this measure will be calculated for carers and 

users separately, to increase the ease of interpretation of this measure and the 

usefulness of this data locally. Further detail will be published in the Handbook of 

Definitions in the spring. 

32
This report is currently undergoing peer review and will be published shortly. Gibbons E, Graham C, King J, Walsh J, 

Developing measures of people’s self-reported experiences of integrated care.

33
GP Patient Survey, NHS Inpatients Survey, VOICES national bereavement survey, Community Mental Health survey, 

National Cancer survey, Personal social services carers survey and Personal social services adult social care survey.

36

Page 118



Domain Four: Safeguarding adults whose 

circumstances make them vulnerable and 

protecting them from avoidable harm

98.The Government’s ambition is to prevent and reduce the risk of adults with care and 

support needs from experiencing abuse or neglect. The area of safeguarding 

therefore remains one of the core priorities of adult social care, and remains a key

area of priority for the ASCOF. However, there are significant challenges associated 

with capturing this type of outcomes information. 

99.A new placeholder was added to this Domain in 2013/14, on measuring the number 

of completed safeguarding referrals where service users reported that they felt safe. 

A consultation on this proposed measure highlighted concerns about how this 

information could be collected in a robust and comparable way, demonstrating that 

piloting of any approach would be required. 

100. The Health and Social Care Information Centre has since been commissioned 

by the Department to work with local government to develop a set of questions and 

a methodology for collecting this information. These questions will be developed 

and cognitively tested over the next few months, and the methodology will be 

piloted within a number of councils next year. If this pilot is successful, the ambition 

is for the collection to be rolled out nationally, and for this placeholder to become a 

live measure in the ASCOF. 

101. In the first instance, it is proposed that any new collection will support a 

national-only measure in the ASCOF, as the sample size in some authorities is 

likely to be too small to enable robust comparison at local level. The Department is 

working with the HSCIC to identify ways in which the local results could be shared 

with councils, to provide them with as much information as possible to benchmark 
Page 119



their own performance and improve their safeguarding services.  The survey would 

also provide an opportunity for local authorities to gather information to inform the 

improvement of services locally.

102. If you would like any further information on this work, or are a local authority 

who would like to be involved in the pilot of this measure, please contact:

safe.guarding1@hscic.gov.uk

38

Page 120



Next steps

103. The ASCOF is the key mechanism by which the Government sets national 

priorities for social care, and measures national progress against these priorities. To 

ensure that the ASCOF continues to reflect these priorities and evolves alongside 

the transforming health and care system, the framework remains under permanent 

review. Over the next year, the Department will work closely with local government 

to ensure the continued focus of the framework on measuring the success of the 

adult social care system in delivering high quality care and support. This will be 

achieved via:

! Working with local government to ensure that the ASCOF evolves to 

reflect the changing care and support system, including the changes 

which, subject to Parliamentary approval, will be provided for in the 

forthcoming Care Act.

! Reviewing the potential of the new data collections for adult social care 

in supporting the development of new measures in the ASCOF. 

! Continuing to further align the outcomes frameworks across the NHS, 

public health and adult social care, through the development of shared 

and complementary measures.

! Working to ensure that the ASCOF continues to align with other 

supports to quality in the system, including NICE Quality Standards and

the CQC fundamental standards of care. 

! Working to develop the placeholders in the ASCOF, with a view to 

strengthening the framework through the addition of new measures in 

future years. 

Page 121



Annex A – Adult Social Care Outcomes 

Framework 2014/15 – at a glance

40

Page 122



Annex B – NHS Outcomes Framework 

2014/15 – at a glance

Page 123



Annex C – Public Health Outcomes 

Framework 2014/15 – at a glance

42

Page 124



Page 125



Annex D – Shared and complementary 

measures in the Health and Social Care 

Outcomes Frameworks

44

Page 126



Annex E – Local authority outcomes

Figure 10: Table of twenty two local authorities that achieved a rate of over 90% of the 

proportion of older people still at home 91 days after discharge from hospital into 

reablement/rehabilitation services in in 2012/1334.

Local authorities  with a rate of over 90% of people at 
home 91 days later in 2012/13

Barking and Dagenham Medway Towns

Bradford Milton Keynes

Camden North East Lincolnshire

Darlington North Lincolnshire

Derby Northumberland

Derbyshire Redcar and Cleveland

Ealing Slough

Hackney Tameside

Hounslow Wandsworth

Islington West Sussex

Lambeth Wirral

Figure 11: Local authorities where the proportion of people receiving a personal 

budget increased by more than 30 percentage points between 2011-12 and 2012-13, 

and  local authorities where the proportion of people receiving a personal budget 

decreased between 2011-12 and 2012-1335.

Local authorities where the proportion 
of people receiving a personal budget 
increased by more than 30 percentage 
points between 2011-12 and 2012-13

Local authorities where the proportion of 
people receiving a personal budget 
decreased between 2011-12 and 2012-13

Derby Barking and Dagenham

Dudley Calderdale

Ealing Cheshire East

Hampshire Darlington

Hillingdon Devon

Kent Essex

Liverpool Manchester

Newham Milton Keynes

Sandwell North Yorkshire

Shropshire South Tyneside

St. Helens

York

34
The score for each local authority against this measure can be found at:

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB12610

35
Findings based on interim data, as published by the HSCIC in November

Page 127



46

Page 128



 
 

 

Meeting:   Overview & Scrutiny Board  Date:   19th February 2014 
  Council     27th February 2014 

Wards Affected:  All 

Report Title:  Capital Investment Plan Update - 2013/14 Quarter 3 

Executive Lead Contact Details:   mayor@torbay.gov.uk 

Supporting Officer Contact Details:   martin.phillips@torbay.gov.uk 
 

1 Purpose 
 
1.1 The Council’s capital investment plan with its investment in new and existing assets is a key part 

of delivering the Council’s outcomes. This is the third Capital Monitoring report for 2013/14 under 
the Authority’s agreed budget monitoring procedures. It provides high-level information on capital 
expenditure and funding for the year compared with the latest budget position as reported to 
Council in December 2013. 
 

2 Proposed Decision 
 
Overview & Scrutiny Board 

 
2.1 That Members note the latest position for the Council’s Capital expenditure and income for 

2013/14 and make any recommendations to Council. 
 

Council 
 

2.2 That Council note the latest position for the Council’s Capital expenditure and funding for 
2013/14.  

 
3 Reasons for Decision 

 
3.1 Quarterly reporting of the Capital Investment Plan to both the Overview and Scrutiny Board and to 

Council is part of the Council’s financial management process.  
 
4 Summary 

 
4.1 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Board and Council receive regular budget monitoring 

reports on the Council’s Capital Investment Plan throughout the year. The Council’s four year 
Capital Investment Plan is updated each quarter through the year. This report is the monitoring 
report for the third quarter 2013/14 and includes variations arising in this quarter. 

 
4.2 Expenditure and commitments to the end of the third quarter is contained in the appendix to this 

report. A summary of spend to date by funding type is as follows: 
       

Funding Type 
Revised Budget 

13/14 (Q3) 

Spend and 
commitments to end 

Quarter Three 

Balance 
Uncommitted 

 £m £m £m 

“Old” Funding 3.3 2.6 0.7 

“New” Funding 10.2 7.1 3.1 

Prudential Borrowing 4.2 2.3 1.9 

Specific Funding 4.2 2.3 1.9 

Total 2013/14 21.9 14.3 7.6 

Agenda Item 8

Page 129



 
 
4.3 The overall funding position of the 4-year Capital Investment Plan Budget of £63.5 million, 

covering the period 2013/14 – 2016/17, is in balance but still relies upon the generation of a 
further £5.4m of capital income from capital receipts (£4.9m) and capital contributions (£0.5m) 
over the life of the Capital Investment Plan. Of this £5.4m, £4.9 million is required from capital 
receipts before the end of the current Plan period. Of this sum £0.7 million of capital receipts has 
been received so far this year, leaving a balance of £4.2 million still to be realised. It is only after 
this target has been reached that any capital receipts can be applied to new schemes. 

 
4.4 The Plan also requires a total of £0.5m from capital contributions including Community 

Infrastructure Levy and S106 developer contributions. In addition to the £0.5m, £2.1m is due to be 
generated from S106 contributions to part fund the South Devon Link Road. As previously noted, 
If the South Devon Link Road contributions are not generated then the Council’s prudential 
borrowing requirement for this scheme will be £20m 

 
4.5 As the target income for capital receipts and capital contributions are required to meet existing 

Council commitments, it is important that any capital income raised is allocated to commitments 
and not used to support additional expenditure on new schemes. 

 
 
5 Supporting Information 

 
5.1 The original capital budget for 2013/14 approved by Council in February 2013 was £25.4 million. 

That has been subsequently revised for re profiling of expenditure from 2012/13, new schemes 
and re profiling expenditure to future years. All changes with reasons have either been included in 
previous monitoring reports, or are detailed in this report.  

 
5.2 It should also be noted that re profiling budgets often result from valid project management 

reasons such as scheme re engineering, further consultations and clarification with users or 
detailed tendering. 
 

5.3 Of the total £63.5 million of the 4 year programme, £21.9 million is currently scheduled to be 
spent in 2013/14. 
  

6            Movements in 2013/14 Estimated expenditure 
 
6.1 The movements in the estimate of expenditure in 2013/14 on the Capital Investment Plan 

between the estimate at Quarter Two of £24.6m and the estimate at Quarter Three of £21.9m, 
split by the categories of funding, are as follows: 

 
 Scheme 

 
Variation in 2013/14 Change 

£m 
Reason 

Estimate as at Quarter 
One – July 2013 

 24.6 
 

Capital Investment Plan 2013/14 
(Report 6 Dec 2013) 

“Old” Funding Regime” 

Childrens’ projects 
 
 
Barton Primary 
 
 
St Margaret Clitherow RC 
Primary School 
 
My Place, Parkfield  

Re profiling to 2014/15 
 
 
Re profiled to 2014/15 
 
 
Re profiling to 2014/15 
 
 
No further expenditure 

(0.3) 
 
 

(0.3) 
 
 

(0.1) 
 
 

(0.1) 
 

Revised profile following  review 
project funds moved to 2014/15 and 
some reallocation between schemes 
Minor delays and changes to 
programme 
  
Phasing revised 
 

Haldon Pier Structural 
repair 

Re profiling to 2014/15 
 

(0.3) Review of likely spend profile in 
2014/15 

  (1.1)  

“New”” Funding Regime 

Cockington School 
expansion 

Part of budget 
transferred 
 

(0.1) 
 
 

Funding diverted to new Torre Valley 
North enhancements 
 

Page 130



Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.4) Delays to Start on Site 

Roselands Primary 
School expansion 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.1) Scheme budget re-profiled for 
consultation 

Torre CoE Primary 
expansion 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.1) To reflect revised spending 

Warberry Primary School 
expansion 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.2) Scheme budget re-profiled to reflect 
outstanding issues 

Whiterock Primary School 
expansion 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.1) Scheme budget re-profiled to reflect 
phased approach 

Flood Defence/Cliff 
stabilisation (with Env 
Agency) 

2013/14 expenditure 
delayed 

(0.1) Legal considerations are delaying 
some works 

Riviera Centre renewal Increased budget 0.1 Additional funding for capital 
improvements 

Transport - Integrated 
Transport Schemes 

Budget adjustments  0.1 Some adjustments of budgets 
between schemes 

  (0.9)  

“New” Ring fenced funding 

Torre Valley North 
Enhancements 

New scheme 0.1 Funding transferred from Childrens 
Services 

Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund / Western 
Corridor 

Budget adjustments  (0.1) Some adjustments of budgets 
between schemes  

White Rock Business 
Park Land swap 

New scheme budget 0.3 Acquire land funded from other 
disposal 

Better Bus Grant Re profiled to 2014/15 
 

(0.3) Scheme now expected to be 
complete by June 2014 

  0  

Prudential Borrowing 

Beach Chalets Meadfoot 
 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.5) Most expenditure on this scheme 
now likely in 2014/15 

Paignton Velodrome 
 

Re profiled to 2014/15 (0.2) Delays in scheme progress 

  (0.7)  

Estimate – Quarter 
Three 2013/14 

  
21.9 

 

 
7 Expenditure 
 
7.1 The Council approved the original 4-year Capital Investment Plan Budget for the period 2012/13 – 

2015/16 in February 2012. This plan has been subsequently updated for any further revision to both 
projects and timing, resulting in the latest revision attached to Annex 1. The Plan now totals £63.5 
million over the 4 year period of which £21.9 million relates to 2013/14 and £26.4 million relates to 
2014/15. 

 
7.2 The purpose of this report and the Monitoring statement attached is to highlight and make 

recommendations in relation to any existing or potential issues which may affect the delivery of 
the major projects included in the Plan and to consider any potential effect on corporate 
resources.  

 
7.3 Expenditure to the end of this third quarter was £11.2 million with a further £3.1 million of 

commitments on the Council’s finance system. The expenditure of £11.2 million is 50% of the 
latest budget for 2013/14. This compares with £11 million (or 58% of outturn) for the third quarter 
last year and is broadly in line with previous years.  

 

 2009/10 
£m - (%) 

2010/11 
£m - (%) 

2011/12 
£m - (%) 

2012/13 
£m – (%) 

2013/14 
£m (%) 

Quarter One 8 – (16%) 10 – (23%) 3 – (14%) 2 – (11%) 4 (18%) 

Quarter Two 11 – (22%) 13 – (30%) 7- (32%) 4 – (21%) 4 (18%) 

Quarter Three 13 – (27%) 9 – (21%) 5 – (22%) 5 – (26%) 3 (14%) 

Quarter Four 17 – (35%) 11 – (26%) 7- (32%) 8 – (42%) - 

Total In Year 49 43 22 19 22 

 

Page 131



 
 
Main Variations & Management Action 

 
8 ”New Funding Regime” 
 
8.1 An estimate of funds was identified in the Capital Investment Plan (February 2012) for the four years 

of the Plan, which was provisionally allocated to a number of “priority” areas.  
 
8.2 The Capital Investment Plan as at 2013/14 Quarter Three shows the approved schemes to the 

extent that funding has been received or confirmed. Where the value of the approved schemes 
exceeds the confirmed funding, temporary prudential borrowing has been used pending the 
future receipt of funds, at which point the funding will be swapped. However if funding is not 
realised, such as lower then anticipated grant funding,  then the Capital Investment Plan will have 
to be reduced accordingly or alternative sources of funding allocated such as prudential 
borrowing.  

 
8.3 Scheme Updates: 

 
Cockington Primary School: The expansion of Cockington Primary School is in progress but as a 
consequence of issues with the adjoining playing field £0.1 million of the scheme budget has been 
transferred to enhance Torre Valley North.  This issue has delayed the start on site and consequently 
£0.4 million budget has been moved to 2014/15. 
 
Part of the 2013/14 budgets for the Primary School Expansion schemes at Roselands (£0.1 m), 
Torre CoE (£0.1 m), Warberry (£0.2 m) and Whiterock (£0.1 m) have been transferred to next 
financial year as a result of various issues arising at each of the projects, as indicated in paragraph 
6.1 above. 
 

 Flood Defence/Cliff stabilisation – Legal issues surrounding some of the scheduled works have 
delayed progress, so budget of £0.1 million has been moved to next financial year. 

 
 
9       ”Old Funding Regime” 
 

This section relates to the schemes in the Capital Investment Plan that were allocated to services 
from capital funding that originated in 2011/12 and earlier financial years.  
 

9.1 Children’s Services:  
 

Barton Primary  - Minor delays (including bad weather) and changes to the work programme 
mean that £0.3 million will not now be spent until 2014/15 
 
£0.3 m of funding set aside for Education Review Projects has been rescheduled to 2014/15 as 
there are currently no definite plans for this funding.  
 
St Margaret Clitherow RC Primary School:  The budget allocation has been re profiled to reflect 
the agreed programme of work which requires that £0.1 m budget can be re-phased to 2014/15. 

  
9.2  Affordable Housing:  
 

The proposed scheme on the former B&Q site in Torre is currently considered unlikely to progress so 
the future year budgets for this scheme have been transferred back to the Housing Advances to be 
Allocated ‘pot’, pending reallocation to other schemes. 
 

9.3 New Growth Points – White Rock Innovation Centre Phase 3  
 

The Mayor, as reported to Council in December 2013, approved that the Council enters into a 
land swap with Abacus Project Limited. Namely: Council to transfer the PLUSS site at Whiterock 
in return for the transfer of Abacus Project Limited’s site fronting onto Brixham Road. The value 
of the land being “swapped” is £0.275m and this value has been included in the capital plan. 
 

9.4 Haldon Pier – structural repairs.  Proposals for works to the inner face of the pier are now scheduled 
for Spring/Summer 2014.  The procurement process for the works will require the engagement of 
specialist contractors. The delay in progressing the works requires £0.334 million of the budget is 

Page 132



transferred to 2014/15. 
 
10 “New” Ring fenced funding  
 
10.1 As mentioned in paragraph 8.3 above, some works are required at Torre Valley North Playing Fields 

in consequence of the adjacent Cockington Primary School expansion.  Consequently a budget of 
£0.127 million has allocated for this work funded from the previous allocation for Cockington Primary 
expansion. 

 
11 Schemes funded from Prudential Borrowing 
 
11.1 Meadfoot Beach Chalets – It is now likely that the bulk of the costs of providing these new 

facilities will not be achieved until next financial year consequently a further £0.5.million of the 
budget has been rephased to 2014/15. 

 
11.2 Paignton Velodrome – some delays caused by ground conditions which are currently being 

investigated result in £0.18 million budget transferred to next financial year. 
 
12 Contingency 
 
12.1 The Capital Investment Plan has a capital contingency. Of this total, £0.5 million is held as 

resource cover in case anticipated funding from the Local Transport Board, for advance works on 
improvements to the Western Corridor, does not materialise.  This element of the contingency is 
funded from existing Transport capital resources.  

 
This contingency is still in place to provide for unforeseen emergencies or shortfall in projected 
income over the 4-year Plan period and represents almost 2% of the total Capital Investment Plan 
budget. Currently it is not anticipated that the contingency will be required this financial year so 
the contingency has been moved to future years 

 
13 Receipts & Funding 
 
13.1 The funding identified for the latest Capital Investment Plan budget is shown in Annex 1. This is 

based on the latest prediction of capital resources available to fund the budgeted expenditure 
over the next 4 years.  A summary of the funding of the Capital Investment Plan is shown in the 
Table below: 

 
 

 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
 

Total @ 
Q3 13/14 

 A B C D E 

Funding £m £m £m £m £m 

Supported Borrowing 1 0 0 0 1 

Unsupported Borrowing 7 12 8 4 31 

Grants 12 11 1 0 24 

Contributions 1 0 0 0 1 

Reserves 1 1 0 0 2 

Revenue 0 1 0 0 1 

Capital Receipts 0 1 1 1 3 

Total 22 26 10 5 63 

 
Notes to Table: 

 
Column E – reflects the Capital Investment Plan as at Quarter Three 2013/14 and shows the 
approved schemes to the extent that funding has been received or confirmed. Where the value of 
the approved schemes exceeds the known funding, temporary prudential borrowing has been 
used pending the future receipt of funds, at which point the funding will be swapped. 

 
 
 
 

Page 133



 
Grants 

 
13.2 Capital Grants are the major funding stream (69% in 12/13) for the Council to progress its 

investment plans. The majority of these grants result from “bid” processes from other public 
sector bodies.  

 
13.3 Since the last Capital Investment Plan Monitoring report which went to Council in December 2013 

the Council has been notified of new Government grant allocations as follows: 
 
 Department for Communities and Local Government – Disabled Facilities Grants 2014/15 

allocation £0.8 million.  Note an allocation for 2014/15 has already been made to this service in 
the quarter two report. 

 
 Department for Education – Basic Need allocations 2015/16 and 2016/17 of £2.8 million and £2.9 

million respectively.  The Council has also received just over £0.1 million to provide facilities 
linked to Universal Infant Free School Meals for 2014/15. The Basic Need allocation for 2015/16 
is £1.7m higher than the 2014/15 allocation, (and £1.7m higher than the Council’s latest 
estimate). The £2.9m allocation for 2016/17 had not been included in Council forecasts.  As this 
and the Infant Free School Meals grant are un-ringfenced grants,  Council will need allocate this 
funding to services. 

 
 DfE has also announced the Schools Capital Maintenance grant allocation for 2014/15 of £0.630 

million, which is also an un-ringfenced grant, and Devolved Formula Capital grant for 2014/15 
£0.130 million, however this allocation is ringfenced to schools. 

 
 Capital Receipts –  
 
13.4 Capital receipts in the year to date are £0.7 million. Within the £0.7m is £0.3m for Bench House in 

Brixham which is part of the funding for the Brixham regeneration project.  
 
13.5      This means that the approved Plan as at 1 April 2013 relies upon the future generation of a total 

of £4.2 million capital receipts from asset sales by the end of 2015/16. These targets are 
expected to be achieved provided that - 

 

• approved disposals currently “in the pipeline” are completed 

• the Council continues with its disposal policy for surplus and underused assets and, 

• no new (or amended) schemes are brought forward that rely on the use of capital receipts 
for funding. 

 
13.6 Of the receipts expected £0.8 million is in relation to the Tesco development at Brixham, £1m 

from the Oldway Development and a significant sum is expected for the disposal of the old 
Paignton Library site. For all of the three named receipts the capital receipt is dependent on 
specific actions from the site developer. All capital receipts up to the target are required to fund 
capital schemes already approved. 

 
13.7 There is an ongoing risk over the value of receipts. However the current approved plan has taken 

a prudent approach on the value of potential receipts and number of assets to be disposed. 
Assets approved for disposal are reported to Council for approval, with the last report presented 
to Council in May 2013 

 
 http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s13655/Asset%20Disposal%202.pdf 
 

Capital Contributions – S106 & Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
13.8 The latest target for securing capital contributions to fund the 4-year Capital Investment Plan is 

£0.5 million (required by March 2016). In addition the South Devon Link Road business case 
estimated external contributions including s106 payments of £2.1m to help fund the scheme. 

 
13.9 The intention is that capital contributions are applied to support schemes already approved as 

part of Capital Investment Plan and not allocated to new schemes unless the agreement with the 
developer is specific to a particular scheme outside the Capital Investment Plan.  

 
13.10 Income from s106’s capital contributions so far in 2013/14 is around £0.3 million and of this £0.04 

million is assigned to help finance the South Devon Link Road. Of the balance where possible 
Page 134



depending on deed conditions this will be allocated to support existing expenditure and therefore 
reduce the target for capital contributions.   

 
14 Borrowing and Prudential Indicators   
 
14.1 The Council set its Prudential Indicators and monitoring arrangements for affordable borrowing in 

February 2013. The Authorised Limit for External Debt including long term liabilities (the 
maximum borrowing the Council can legally undertake) and the Operational Boundary (the day-
to-day limit for cash management purpose) are monitored on a daily basis by the Executive Head 
of Finance and reported to Members quarterly. 

 
 The limits are as follows 

 

• Authorised Limit  £192 million 

• Operational Boundary  £173 million 
 

External Debt, and long term liabilities, such as its PFI liability, as at end of December 2013 was 
£147.4 million, following repayment of £10 million of borrowing in August 2013.  The current level 
of debt is within the Operational Boundary and the Authorised Limit set for the year. No 
management action has been required during the quarter. 
 

14.2      The Council’s capital expenditure has an overall positive impact on the Council’s Balance Sheet.  
The majority of expenditure in the Capital Investment Plan is on the Council’s own assets which 
will therefore increase the value attached to the Council’s fixed assets.  This also applies to 
investment in assets funded from borrowing where the increase in asset value will exceed any 
increase in the Council’s long term liabilities. As at 31 March 2013 the Council’s “Non Current 
Assets” were valued at £286 million. 

  
15 Possibilities and Options 
 
15.1 Council can propose changes to the Capital Investment Plan dependant on available funds. 

 
16 Consultation 
 
16.1 Where appropriate individual capital schemes have public consultation and negotiation with 

stakeholders. 
 
17 Risks 
 
17.1 That capital receipts, other capital contributions such as S106 and Community Infrastructure Levy 

and future year grant allocations will be not be received to support the Plan.  
 
17.2 The contingency is approximately 1% of total planned expenditure on a total programme of £63 

million. There could be inflationary cost pressures on the programme thus increasing 
expenditure. 

 
Appendix 
 

Appendix One - Capital Investment Plan Budget 2013/14 – 2016/17 (as at January 2014) 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

         

Page 135



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

O
ld

 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 P
e
rs
o
n
a
l 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

-
0

0
0

0
0

0

M
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 C
a
re
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s

-
1
5

2
2

2
2

0
0

0
2
2

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 I
C
T
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts

-
8

2
3

2
3

0
0

0
2
3

0
2
3

4
5

0
0

4
5

0
0

0
4
5

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 &
 F
a
m
il
ie
s

A
s
b
e
s
to
s
 R
e
m
o
v
a
l

-
9

9
0

0
0

9

B
a
rt
o
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
p
 P
ro
je
c
t

1
,9
0
8

1
,9
2
1

2
,4
0
2

(3
0
0
)

2
,1
0
2

4
4
0

5
0

0
2
,5
9
2

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
-

4
0

0
0

0
0

0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
-

3
0

2
0
2

2
0
2

0
0

0
2
0
2

C
h
ild
re
n
s
 C
e
n
tr
e
s

4
6
2

7
6

8
1

8
1

3
0
0

0
0

3
8
1

C
u
rl
e
d
g
e
 S
t 
- 
R
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g

2
,6
1
2

3
4

3
3

3
3

0
0

0
3
3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 P
ro
je
c
ts

-
1
1
9

3
0
1

(2
5
0
)

5
1

3
5
0

0
0

4
0
1

E
lla
c
o
m
b
e
 -
 R
e
m
o
d
e
lli
n
g

7
1
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
O
T
A
S
 H
a
ls
w
e
ll 
H
o
u
s
e

4
8

1
0

0
0

0
0

0

F
o
x
h
o
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 M
u
lt
i 
U
s
e
 G
a
m
e
s
 

A
rr
e
a

1
9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

F
o
x
h
o
le
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 -
 A
m
a
lg
a
m
a
ti
o
n

9
,1
2
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

M
in
o
r 
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s
 C
h
ild
c
a
re

-
2

5
5

0
0

0
5

M
y
 P
la
c
e
 P
a
rk
fi
e
ld

5
,2
6
4

9
8

(9
8
)

0
0

0
0

0

O
ld
w
a
y
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 C
h
a
n
g
in
g
 

R
o
o
m
s

1
1
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

Page 136



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 C
o
lle
g
e
 -
 

A
s
tr
o
tu
rf
 p
it
c
h

1
,7
7
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 C
o
lle
g
e
 

M
o
b
ile
 R
e
p
lc
e
 1
4
-1
9
 P
ro
je
c
t

8
9
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
re
s
to
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 -
 A
S
D
 U
n
it

1
,4
7
6

2
4

2
4

2
4

0
0

0
2
4

P
ri
m
a
ry
 P
la
c
e
s
 2
0
1
1
/1
2

-
3

4
4

0
0

0
4

S
c
h
o
o
l 
S
e
c
u
ri
ty

-
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
h
o
rt
 B
re
a
k
s
 f
o
r 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 C
h
ild
re
n

-
6

1
7

1
7

0
0

0
1
7

S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 N
e
e
d
s
 -
 r
e
a
c
ti
v
e
 

w
o
rk
s

-
(2
)

2
4

2
4

0
0

0
2
4

S
t 
M
a
rg
a
re
t 
C
lit
h
e
ro
w
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 B
x
m
 -
 

E
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

2
3

1
5
0

(1
0
0
)

5
0

2
5
0

0
0

3
0
0

T
o
rq
u
a
y
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
o
lle
g
e
 R
e
-b
u
ild
 

(B
u
ild
in
g
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 F
u
tu
re
)

2
8
,6
6
9

1
0
5

1
7
6

1
7
6

0
0

0
1
7
6

W
e
s
tl
a
n
d
s
 1
4
-1
9
 P
ro
je
c
t

6
9
2

1
0

0
0

0
0

0

Y
o
u
th
 M
o
d
u
la
r 
P
ro
je
c
ts

-
5
1

5
1

0
0

0
5
1

5
3
,9
5
2

2
,3
4
7

3
,5
7
7

(7
4
8
)

0
2
,8
2
9

1
,3
4
0

5
0

0
4
,2
1
9

P
la
c
e
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

B
a
b
b
a
c
o
m
b
e
 B
e
a
c
h
 R
o
a
d

-
0

0
7
0

0
0

7
0

B
a
rt
o
n
 I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

3
3

5
2

7
0

7
0

3
5

0
0

1
0
5

B
a
rt
o
n
 P
la
y
in
g
 F
ie
ld
s
 

6
0

0
0

0
0

0

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 137



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
s
it
e
s

1
2

1
8

5
0

(2
0
)

3
0

1
7
3

0
0

2
0
3

F
o
rm

e
r 
B
&
Q
 s
it
e
 T
o
rr
e
 (
2
4
 u
n
it
s
) 
 

-
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

H
a
ld
o
n
 P
ie
r 
- 
S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
re
p
a
ir
 P
h
a
s
e
 I
/2

2
,1
6
3

2
2

4
0
9

(3
3
4
)

7
5

8
3
4

0
0

9
0
9

H
a
rb
o
u
r 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
h
a
s
e
 1
&
2
 (
 

Q
u
a
y
 &
 B
u
ild
in
g
s
)

2
0
,0
8
8

(1
2
2
)

(1
2
2
)

(1
2
2
)

0
0

0
-1
2
2

H
ig
h
w
a
y
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

-
0

0
0

0
0

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

-
0

0
0

0
0

H
o
u
s
in
g
 -
 A
d
v
a
n
c
e
s
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
to
 b
e
 

a
llo
c
a
te
d

-
0

0
3
7
3

2
7
9

2
7
9

9
3
1

N
G
P
 -
 G
re
a
t 
P
a
rk
s
 A
c
c
e
s
s

8
4

3
0

0
0

0
0

0

N
G
P
 -
 H
C
A
 M
a
tc
h
 L
a
n
d
 A
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
s

7
0
2

1
2

1
5

0
1
5

5
8
6

0
0

6
0
1

N
G
P
 -
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
y
c
le
w
a
y

4
1
2

2
4

4
1
3

1
7

0
0

0
1
7

N
G
P
 -
 T
o
rb
a
y
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 P
h
 3

6
9

0
0

3
4
6

0
0

3
4
6

N
G
P
 -
 W

in
d
y
 C
o
rn
e
r 
J
u
n
c
ti
o
n

1
0

1
1

0
0

0
1

S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 H
A
 -
 H
a
y
e
s
 R
o
a
d
 

2
5
0

0
0

2
5
0

0
0

2
5
0

S
a
n
c
tu
a
ry
 H
A
 -
 L
a
n
g
ri
d
g
e
 R
o
a
d
 ,
 P
g
n
 

(4
 u
n
it
s
 a
d
a
p
t)

3
4
6

4
6

0
0

0
4
6

H
e
le
's
 A
n
g
e
ls
 s
c
h
e
m
e

-
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
e
a
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 -
 C
o
c
k
in
g
to
n
 C
o
u
rt

3
,1
8
8

8
1

8
5

4
8
9

0
0

0
8
9

S
o
v
e
re
ig
n
 H
A
 -
 B
e
e
c
h
fi
e
ld
 (
1
0
2
 u
n
it
s
 +
 

a
d
a
p
t 
3
 u
n
it
s
)

1
4
4

1
4
2

1
5
1

1
5
1

0
0

0
1
5
1

T
o
rb
a
y
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 P
ro
je
c
t

5
0
0

0
0

2
5
0

0
0

2
5
0

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 138



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

W
e
s
tc
o
u
n
tr
y
 H
A
 -
 P
re
s
to
n
 D
o
w
n
 R
o
a
d
 

(1
2
 u
n
it
s
)

-
1
1

1
1

1
1

0
0

0
1
1

2
7
,7
1
5

2
4
6

7
2
0

(3
3
7
)

0
3
8
3

2
,9
1
7

2
7
9

2
7
9

3
,8
5
8

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h

In
s
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
c
h
e
m
e

-
0

0
0

0
0

0

P
ri
v
a
te
 S
e
c
to
r 
R
e
n
e
w
a
l

-
2

2
9

2
9

0
0

0
2
9

0
2

2
9

0
0

2
9

0
0

0
2
9

8
1
,6
6
7

2
,6
1
8

4
,3
7
1

(1
,0
8
5
)

0
3
,2
8
6

4
,2
5
7

3
2
9

2
7
9

8
,1
5
1

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 139



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

N
e
w

 

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 &
 F
a
m
il
ie
s

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
-

1
4
6

3
0
2

3
0
2

1
0
0

1
0
0

0
5
0
2

C
o
c
k
in
g
to
n
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
2
2
8

9
2
7

(5
2
7
)

4
0
0

2
,8
0
0

4
5

0
3
,2
4
5

E
lla
c
o
m
b
e
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
0

0
0

0
0

M
a
y
fi
e
ld
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

9
8
7

3
2
0

4
3
4

4
3
4

0
0

0
4
3
4

R
o
s
e
la
n
d
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
1
3
5

3
0
6

(1
0
0
)

2
0
6

2
5
6

0
0

4
6
2

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 A
c
c
e
s
s

-
1
7

4
2

4
2

0
0

0
4
2

T
o
rr
e
 C
o
E
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
3
3
7

7
9
0

(1
0
0
)

6
9
0

6
5
0

1
5

0
1
,3
5
5

W
a
rb
e
rr
y
 C
o
E
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
8
7
3

1
,4
4
6

(2
0
0
)

1
,2
4
6

2
2
1

0
0

1
,4
6
7

W
h
it
e
ro
c
k
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n

-
1
7
6

3
0
0

(1
0
0
)

2
0
0

8
0
0

0
0

1
,0
0
0

9
8
7

2
,2
3
2

4
,5
4
7

(1
,0
2
7
)

0
3
,5
2
0

4
,8
2
7

1
6
0

0
8
,5
0
7

P
la
c
e
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 H
o
u
s
in
g

-
0

0
2
5
1

0
0

2
5
1

F
lo
o
d
 D
e
fe
n
c
e
/C
lif
f 
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 (
w
it
h
 E
n
v
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
)

-
2
0
3

3
7
8

(1
1
2
)

2
6
6

2
6
7

0
0

5
3
3

L
iv
e
rm

e
a
d
 S
e
a
 W

a
ll 
s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
re
p
a
ir

3
4

5
3
1

6
8
6

6
8
6

0
0

0
6
8
6

O
ld
w
a
y
 E
s
ta
te
 w
o
rk
s

0
0

4
0
0

0
0

4
0
0

P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 P
ie
r 
- 
S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
re
p
a
ir
  
(w
it
h
 

E
n
v
 A
g
e
n
c
y
)

-
0

1
,8
5
0

0
0

1
,8
5
0

P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 P
ro
m
e
n
a
d
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 3

5
4

8
9

8
9

0
0

0
8
9

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 140



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

R
iv
ie
ra
 C
e
n
tr
e
 r
e
n
e
w
a
l

-
8
1
3

8
9
1

1
0
0

9
9
1

2
0

0
0

1
,0
1
1

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 -
 H
o
lla
c
o
m
b
e
 C
R
C
 

-
6
0

6
0

6
0

0
0

0
6
0

S
W
IM
 T
o
rq
u
a
y
 -
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s

-
5
0
5

5
5
7

5
5
7

3
0

0
0

5
8
7

T
o
rr
e
 A
b
b
e
y
 R
e
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 -
 P
h
a
s
e
 2

3
,6
4
8

1
,3
1
2

1
,4
2
1

(5
0
)

1
,3
7
1

5
0

0
0

1
,4
2
1

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 G
a
te
w
a
y
 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
t

-
3
0

4
5

(1
4
)

3
1

1
4

0
0

4
5

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s

-
3
9
4

6
3
1

2
6
3

8
9
4

4
9
5

1
2
0

0
1
,5
0
9

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

-
3
7
8

1
,0
3
5

3
0

1
,0
6
5

9
5
3

8
4
0

0
2
,8
5
8

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 W

e
s
te
rn
 C
o
rr
id
o
r

-
7
8

2
4
5

(1
4
2
)

1
0
3

0
0

0
1
0
3

3
,6
8
2

4
,3
5
8

6
,0
3
8

7
5

0
6
,1
1
3

4
,3
3
0

9
6
0

0
1
1
,4
0
3

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h

D
is
a
b
le
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 G
ra
n
ts

-
4
1
4

6
1
4

6
1
4

5
0
0

5
1
9

0
1
,6
3
3

0
4
1
4

6
1
4

0
0

6
1
4

5
0
0

5
1
9

0
1
,6
3
3

G
o
v
t 
D
e
p
t 
N
o
n
-r
in
g
fe
n
c
e
d
 g
ra
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 P
ro
je
c
ts

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

4
,6
6
9

7
,0
0
4

1
1
,1
9
9

(9
5
2
)

0
1
0
,2
4
7

9
,6
5
7

1
,6
3
9

0
2
1
,5
4
3

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 141



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

N
e
w

 

A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
y
 S
y
s
te
m

0
1
6
7

1
6
8

1
6
8

0
0

0
1
6
8

0
1
6
7

1
6
8

0
0

1
6
8

0
0

0
1
6
8

C
h
il
d
re
n
s
, 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 &
 F
a
m
il
ie
s

2
 Y
e
a
r 
O
ld
s
 P
ro
v
is
io
n

5
7

2
5
3

2
5
3

0
0

0
2
5
3

D
e
v
o
lv
e
d
 F
o
rm

u
la
 C
a
p
it
a
l

2
1
6

4
3
8

4
3
8

0
0

0
4
3
8

0
2
7
3

6
9
1

0
0

6
9
1

0
0

0
6
9
1

P
la
c
e
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

B
ri
x
h
a
m
 H
a
rb
o
u
r 
- 
M
a
jo
r 
re
p
a
ir
s

2
5
6

2
4
0

2
4
0

0
0

0
2
4
0

D
fT
 B
e
tt
e
r 
B
u
s
 A
re
a
s

4
5

1
3

4
7
0

(2
7
0
)

2
0
0

2
7
0

0
0

4
7
0

D
fT
 L
o
c
a
l 
S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 F
u
n
d
 

(F
e
rr
y
/C
y
c
le
)

6
0
8

4
7
2

6
5
0

(4
3
)

6
0
7

2
9
5

0
0

9
0
2

E
d
g
in
s
w
e
ll 
S
ta
ti
o
n
- 
P
ro
je
c
t 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t

1
0
0

(2
0
)

8
0

8
0

0
0

1
6
0

E
n
v
 A
g
e
n
c
y
 -
 C
o
lin
 R
o
a
d
 C
u
lv
e
rt
 

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t

9
4

4
0

0
0

4

M
e
a
d
fo
o
t 
S
e
a
 W

a
ll 
s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
re
p
a
ir

2
8
6

2
8
6

0
0

0
2
8
6

P
u
b
lic
 T
o
ile
ts
 -
 U
ti
lit
ie
s
 s
a
v
in
g
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
s

7
0

7
0

3
0

0
0

1
0
0

R
iv
ie
ra
 R
e
n
a
is
s
a
n
c
e
 (
C
o
a
s
ta
l 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 F
u
n
d
)

6
3
6

4
4
8

4
6

4
9
4

1
5
4

0
0

6
4
8

T
o
rb
a
y
 L
e
is
u
re
 C
e
n
tr
e
 -
 s
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 

re
p
a
ir
s

4
3
3

1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1
1

0
0

0
1
1
1

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 142



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
o
rr
e
 V
a
lle
y
 N
o
rt
h
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
m
e
n
ts

1
2
7

1
2
7

0
0

0
1
2
7

W
e
s
te
rn
 C
o
rr
id
o
r

1
0
2

6
0
5

(1
0
5
)

5
0
0

1
,0
5
0

0
0

1
,5
5
0

W
h
it
e
 R
o
c
k
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
a
rk
 L
a
n
d
 s
w
a
p

2
7
5

2
7
5

0
0

0
2
7
5

W
in
d
m
ill
 S
k
a
te
 P
a
rk

5
6

5
6

5
6

0
0

0
5
6

P
u
b
li
c
 H
e
a
lt
h

G
re
e
n
 D
e
a
l 
F
u
e
l 
P
o
v
e
rt
y

1
6
7

3
2
1

3
2
1

3
2
1

0
0

0
3
2
1

1
,2
5
3

1
,9
7
6

3
,3
6
1

(2
6
5
)

2
7
5

3
,3
7
1

1
,8
7
9

0
0

5
,2
5
0

1
,2
5
3

2
,4
1
6

4
,2
2
0

(2
6
5
)

2
7
5

4
,2
3
0

1
,8
7
9

0
0

6
,1
0
9

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 143



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

P
r
u

d

P
la
c
e
 &
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s

B
e
a
c
h
 H
u
t 
A
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 R
e
n
e
w
a
l 

(i
n
c
l.
 B
ro
a
d
s
a
n
d
s
, 
M
e
a
d
fo
o
t)

1
4

1
3
8

1
,3
4
9

(4
5
5
)

8
9
4

8
4
5

0
0

1
,7
3
9

C
o
u
n
c
il 
F
le
e
t 
V
e
h
ic
le
s

2
1
3

1
4

1
0
0

(2
6
)

7
4

1
7
6

0
0

2
5
0

E
m
p
ty
 H
o
m
e
s
 S
c
h
e
m
e

0
2
0

2
0

2
5
5

2
2
5

0
5
0
0

O
ff
ic
e
 R
a
ti
o
n
a
lis
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
je
c
t 
P
h
 2
 -
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
R
e
m
a
in
d
e
r

8
,3
7
2

1
6
2

2
9
3

2
9
3

5
0
0

7
9
3

O
n
 S
tr
e
e
t 
P
a
rk
in
g
 m

e
te
rs

6
5
0

1
4
4

2
0
7

2
0
7

0
0

0
2
0
7

P
a
ig
n
to
n
 V
e
lo
d
ro
m
e
 C
y
c
lo
p
a
rk

1
1

7
8
0

(1
8
0
)

6
0
0

9
6
0

0
0

1
,5
6
0

P
ri
n
c
e
s
s
 P
ro
m
e
n
a
d
e
 (
 W

e
s
te
rn
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
) 
R
e
p
a
ir
s

2
,5
9
2

8
8
7

1
,1
7
6

1
,1
7
6

0
0

0
1
,1
7
6

S
o
u
th
 D
e
v
o
n
 L
in
k
 R
o
a
d
 -
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

1
,2
4
7

6
3

7
0

7
0

6
,8
8
3

7
,3
2
4

4
,6
9
9

1
8
,9
7
6

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 -
 E
n
e
rg
y
 R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

0
5
1
5

0
0

5
1
5

T
o
rr
e
 A
b
b
e
y
 P
a
th
w
a
y

2
5

2
2

2
5

2
5

0
0

0
2
5

T
o
rq
u
a
y
 I
n
n
e
r 
H
a
rb
o
u
r 
P
o
n
to
o
n
s

8
1
5

8
0
0

8
0
0

0
0

0
8
0
0

1
3
,1
1
3

2
,2
5
6

4
,8
2
0

(6
6
1
)

0
4
,1
5
9

1
0
,1
3
4

7
,5
4
9

4
,6
9
9

2
6
,5
4
1

1
3
,1
1
3

2
,2
5
6

4
,8
2
0

(6
6
1
)

0
4
,1
5
9

1
0
,1
3
4

7
,5
4
9

4
,6
9
9

2
6
,5
4
1

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 144



A
n

n
e
x
  

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 

P
re

v
 Y

e
a
rs

 

(a
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

o
n

ly
)

A
c
tu

a
ls

 &
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

@
 Q

tr
 3

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
  
  
  
 

(@
 Q
tr
 2
)

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 Q
3
 

A
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t

s

N
e
w
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4

T
o
ta
l 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

R
e
v
is
e
d

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

T
o
ta
l 
fo
r 
P
la
n
 

P
e
ri
o
d

R
e
v
is
e
d
 4
-y
e
a
r 
P
la
n
 J
a
n
 2
0
1
4

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 3
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
- 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

C
o

n
t

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

0
0

0
4
5
1

6
8
0

0
1
,1
3
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
5
1

6
8
0

0
1
,1
3
1

T
O
T
A
L

S

1
0
0
,7
0
2

1
4
,2
9
4

2
4
,6
1
0

(2
,9
6
3
)

2
7
5

2
1
,9
2
2

2
6
,3
7
8

1
0
,1
9
7

4
,9
7
8

6
3
,4
7
5

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
N

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 

P
L

A
N

 -
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
- 

F
U

N
D

IN
G

S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

5
6
2

(1
0
0
)

4
6
2

3
3
8

0
0

8
0
0

U
n
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

7
,8
2
3

(1
,3
9
2
)

6
,4
3
1

1
2
,6
4
2

7
,8
2
4

4
,4
1
9

3
1
,3
1
6

G
ra
n
ts

1
3
,6
9
3

(1
,5
0
8
)

1
2
,1
8
5

1
0
,5
7
4

1
,1
1
4

5
4

2
3
,9
2
7

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s

7
7
8

(1
8
)

7
6
0

2
9
8

9
3

0
1
,1
5
1

R
e
s
e
rv
e
s

6
7
7

1
0
8

7
8
5

8
5
3

1
8
0

0
1
,8
1
8

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

6
6
5

(2
0
)

6
4
5

4
1
0

3
0
0

2
8
0

1
,6
3
5

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R
e
c
e
ip
ts

4
1
2

(3
3
)

2
7
5

6
5
4

1
,2
6
3

6
8
6

2
2
5

2
,8
2
8

T
o
ta
l

2
4
,6
1
0

(2
,9
6
3
)

2
7
5

2
1
,9
2
2

2
6
,3
7
8

1
0
,1
9
7

4
,9
7
8

6
3
,4
7
5

$
b
5
4
x
fu
x
n
.x
ls
x

0
7
/0
2
/1
4

Page 145


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Allocations Policy - Review and potential changes
	Allocations Policy - Appendix 1
	Allocations Policy - Appendix 2
	Allocations Policy - EIA

	6 Strategic Agreement between Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust and Torbay Council
	Annual Strategic Agreement - Appendix 1
	Annual Strategic Agreement - Annex A
	Annual Strategic Agreement - Annex B
	Annual Strategic Agreement - Annex C
	Annual Strategic Agreement - Annex D

	8 Capital Plan Budget Monitoring 2013/2014 (Quarter 3)
	Appendix 1


